STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
7/18/2017 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

I CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the agenda for July 18, 2017.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the minutes for June 6, 2017.




CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action, approval of the Virginia Township Justice Court Quarterly
Report.

I For possible action, approval of property tax refund to Nancy Kruschke.
III  For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for June 2017.

IV For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $406,196.40 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,765,796.11.

V  For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. ALUMAG AUTOMOTIVE - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV(Installation)
B. DESALITECH, INC - Contractor / 1 Gateway Center ~ Newton, MA(Water
Treatment System)
C. LYNX CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / PO Box 138 ~ Israel (Control
Systems)
D. ENCORE AUTOMATION, LLC -Contractor /50Corporate Dr. Auburn Hills, MI
(Installation)
E. ROE PAINTING, INC - Contractor /~ PO Box 7351 Boise, ID (Painting
Contractor)
F. DAN MILLS CONSTRUCTION NEVADA, INC -Contractor / Po Box
19760~Reno, NV (Framing Sub-Contractor)
G. HESCO SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 862 West Fine Drive ~ Salt lake City, UT
(Contractor)
H. CHAMPION EMPLOYMENT GROUP - General / 10358 Gratiot Ave, Columbus
MI (Staffing )
I. VERUS ASSOCIATES NEVADA, LLC -Professional/ 9210 Prototype Dr. #101
Reno, NV(Engineering)
J. M & L ELECTRICAL, INC - Contractor / 6060 Scottsville Rd, Bowling Green KY
(Electrical Contractor)
K. SLE ELECTRONIC GMBH - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV(
(Design)
L. HIRATA ENGINEERING INCORPORATED - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~
Reno, NV (Design)
M. GIROUX GLASS, INC -Contractor / 850 W. Washington Blvd. #200, Los
Angeles, CA (Safety Evaluation)
N. BELAY ENGINEERING CO. - Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave # L, Santa Clara,
CA(Contractor)
O. XION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV
(Installation)
P. AMADA MACHINE TOOLS AMERICA, INC. - Contractor / 2324 Palmer Dr.,
Schaumbung, IL (Installation)
Q. NORBLAST, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV (Installation)




R. CTH INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, LLC - Professional/ 7550 Bluewater Hwy,
Saranac, MI (Engineering)

S. PRECISION CONTROL SYSTEMS GROUP, LLC - Professional / 29355 W 9
Mile Rd, Farmington, MI (Computer Programming)

T.] & RTADROS, INC. - Professional / 130950Trail Dust Ave, San Diego, CA
(Consultant)

U. SEYI-AMERICA, INC. - Professional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal
Stamping)

V. CDWDIRECT, LLC - Professional / 200 N. Milwaukee Ave, Vernon Hills IL
(Direct Marketer)

W. BETS SERVICIOS PROFESSIONALES - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV (Engineering)

X. BECK FACILITY SERVICES, LLC -Contractor / 147 Jackson St.,, Newnan, GA
(Janitorial)

Y. ACCLAIMED INSPECTION SERVICES, INC -Professional- 598 Damonte Ranch
Prkwy # B112, Reno, NV (Inspector)

Z. TOOLING SYSTEMS GROUP - Contractor /4315 3 Mile Rd, Grand Rapids, MI
(Manufacturing)

AA. R.E LEWIS REFRIGERATION, INC. - Contractor / PO BOX 92 ~ Creston, A (
Refrigeration Contractor )

BB. PINNACLE HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING - Contractor / 5301 Longley
Lane Bldg. #201,Reno, NV(HVAC)

CC. EMPLOYBRIDGE - General / 5580 Mill St., Reno, NV (Staffing)

DD. SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION OF MN CO. - Contractor / 575 Minnehaha Ave
W, St. Paul, MI (Design)

EE. STEYER ASSOCIATES, INC General/ 115 Hall Brothers Loop #104, Bainbridge
[sland, WA (Staffing)

FF. 3R AUTOMATION, INCOPORATED- Contractor/5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno,
NV(Automation)

GG. COMPLETE ROBOTICS, INC - Professional - 3509 Elizabeth lake Rd~
Waterford , MI (Computer Programing)

HH. CBR ENTERPRISES, LLC - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV
(Project Management )

[I. TECNOEFFE, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd. # 2, Sparks, NV
(Installation)

JJ. CENTERAL STRIPING SERVICE, INC - Contractor / 3489 Luyung Dr.,Rancho
Cordova, CA(Roadway Stripping)

KK. BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION - Pro / 425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN (
sales)

LL. HOMEGROWN GASTROPUB - General / 719 D. Virginia St., Reno, NV
(Mobile Food Truck)

MM. AUTOMATION ELECTRIC, INC. - Professional / 3983 S MCCarran Blvd.,
#491 , Reno, NV (Troubleshooting)

NN. ALPHA ASSEMBLY SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville
NY (Manufacturer)




OO. NORTH AMERICAN MILLWORK, INC. - Contractor / 105 Catron Dr., Reno,
NV (Contractor)

PP. ARMAC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 343 Fairview Dr. #103,
Carson City, NV ( Excavation)

QQ. CONCEPT SYSTEMS, INC. - Professional /1957 Fescue St. SE, Albany, OR
(Field Service Tech.)

RR. RENO TAHOE ADVENTURES, LLC - Transpiration/ 18224 Fontana Ct.,~
Reno, NV (Tour Operations)

SS. US GRANITE- NEVADA, INC - Contractor / 5350 Capital Ct., #100, Reno, NV
(Fabrication)

TT. COAST MACHINERY MOVERS OF NV, INC. -Transpiration/2431 Chico Ave,
So El Monte,CA (Machinery Moving)

UU. R & E AUTOMATED SYSTEMS- Professional /17500 23 Mile Rd . Macomb MI(
Engineering)

VV. ABC EMPLOYMENT HOLDINGS, LLC General/ 6610 N Shadeland Ave.,
Indianapolis, IN (Staffing)

WW. MILLWRIGHTS 4 HIRE, LLC - General/ 237 Lexington St. Lancaster, KY (
Staffing)

XX.  QUALITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC Contractor/ 212 Murray Street ~
Garden City, ID (Cabling Contractor)

YY. RKIINSTRUMENTS, INC Professional/ 33248 Central Ave, Union City, CA (
Training)

ZZ. HUMAN RESOURCES UNLTD, INC. General - 3451 Dunckel Rd #200
Lansing, MI ( Staffing)

AAA. LEVEL ONE ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, INC - Pro- 401 Ryland St. #2004,
Reno, NV (Software)

BBB. ].E.SIMAS FLOORS,INC. - Contractor/ 9400 S Virginia St. Reno, NV (Floor
Covering - Sales, Install)

CCC. ENTEGEE, INC. - Professional /10151 Deerwood Park Blvd # 200,
Jacksonville, FI ( Robot Programing )

DDD. TOX ~-PRESSOTECHNIK L.L.C - Contractor - 4250 Weaver Prkwy,
Warrenville, IL (Manufacturing )

EEE. YOUNG FAIRBANKS NTERPRISES, LL.C- dba ~ Kim's Kool Treats- General -
2725 E 9th St., Silver Springs, NV ( Mobile Food Truck)

FFF. COMPRESSOR-PUMP & SERVICE, INC. - Professional- 3333 W. 2400 South.,
Salt Lake City, UT ( Sales)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Update from Mike Kazmierski, President and CEO of Economic Development

Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN).

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):




Storey County Federal Government Affairs partner and U.S. Congressman (NV-Ret)
Honorable Jon Porter providing updates on federal matters of interest including in
general and specific to Storey County including H.R. 756 (Postal Reform), H.R. 2193
(Remote Transaction Parity) and Public Lands conveyance in the Virginia City, Gold
Hill and Mark Twain areas.

10.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Authorize the Storey County Manager to approve a contract with the United States
Geological Survey (USGS) up to $11,000 for the USGS to acquire high-resolution
digital elevation data developed from airborne Lidar in the Mark Twain Estates, Six
Mile Canyon, Virginia City, and Gold Hill areas in Storey County, Nevada. The Lidar
data will be used to evaluate area topography for the purpose of planning and
developing stormwater flood mitigation in the subject areas.

11.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution No. 17-465 clarifying the economic benefits of improved rail
service to and from Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and the
northern Nevada region by means of rail-oriented land ferry system, and
recommending to the Nevada Department of Transportation that the benefits of a
land ferry system are studied in further detail and that it applies for and accept
federal, state, and other funding opportunities to develop and carry out a state plan
for land ferry rail service.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of contract with DEVNET for $230,413.70, entering a 5-year contract for
CAMA software to replace current ADS software being phased out.

13.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Setting a date for a workshop to discuss possible Ad Valorem rate reduction.

14.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Business Licenses Second Readings:
A. DORNER MFG. CORP - Contractor / 975 Cottonwood Ave ~ Hartland,
W](Installation)
B. ABEINSA ABENER TEYMA GENERAL PARTNERSHIP - Contractor /3030 N
Central Ave Ste 808 ~ Phoenix, AZ (Engineering)
C. PIGLER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 724 Main Street Ste F ~ Longmonty,
Co (Programming Service)
D. ADVANCED MACHINES & TOOL CORPORATION -Contractor /5421 Kietzke
Lane Ste100~Reno,NV (Engineering)
E. SPECIALTY WELDING SUPPLY (dba)- Contractor /~ PO Box 504 Sparks, NV

(Sales & Distribution)
F. SMALL MINE DEVELOPMENT, LLC. -Contractor / 967 E Park Center Blvd PMB

396 ~ Boise , ID (Contracting Service)




G. PROGRESSIVE PEST MANAGEMENT - Pro / PO Box 50117 ~ Reno, NV (Pest &
weed control)

H.  COATING UNLIMITED, INC - Contractor / 4325 Bridgeton Industrial Dr.
Bridgeton MO (Painting Contractor)

I. WESTERN ENVIROMENTAL TESTING LABORATORY -Contractor/ 475 E Greg
Street #119 Sparks, NV(Testing Service)

J. SMC CORPORATION OF AMERICA. - Contractor / 10100 SMC Blvd ~
Noblesville, IN (Distribution)

K. APPLIED INNOVATION GROUP, INC. - Contractor / 2365 Paragon Dr. Ste C ~
San Jose, CA (Installation)

L. INTEGRATED SAFETY CONCEPTS, INC. - Pro / 2200 N D’ Andrea Parkway
Stel726 ~ Sparks, NV (Safety Consulting)

M. COMPOINTE CORPORATION -Pro / 1128 Keene Land Ct ~ Indianapolis ,IN
(Software)

N. HARELSON MECHANICAL, INC. - Contractor / 3899 Security Park Dr. ~ Rancho
Cordova, CA(Contractor)

O. APPLIED ENERGY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 180 Quaker Lane ~ MalVern, PA
(Manufacturer)

P. LASER DEPTH DYNAMICS, INC - Contractor / 176 Railway Street ~ Kingston
ON, Canada (Monitoring Instruments)

Q. HUMANUS SOLUTIONS, LLC - Contractor / 9835 N Desert Rose Dr. ~ Fountain
Hills AZ(Consultant)

R. OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC - Contractor / 11911 FM 529 Houston,
TX (Engineering)

S. NORTHERN NEVADA FIRE PROTECTION, INC - Contractor / PO Box 1921 ~
Fernley, NV(Fire Protection)

T. NEWARK CORPORATION - Pro/ 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI
(Distribution)

U. R.S. HUGHES COMPANY, INC - General / 1162 Sonora Ct. Sunnyvale, CA
(Wholesaler)

V. AVNET, INC - Pro / 2211 S 47th Street ~ Phoenix, AZ(Wholesaler)

W. KISTLER INSTRUMENT CORP - Pro / 75 John Glenn Dr., Amherst, , NY
(Distributor)

X. S&A SOLUTIONS, INC - General / 38600 Van Dyke Ave Ste 350 ~ Sterling
Heights, MI (Staffing)

Y. VALKYRIE METAL WORKS, LLC - GeneralPO Box 1040 Virginia City, NV~VC
Blacksmith reenactment & Sales)

Z. PHANTOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane Ste100
~ Reno, NV (Software Installation)

AA. IBG PRUFCCOMPUTER GMBH - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane Ste100 ~
Reno, NV(Manufacturer)

BB. CHEMETALL US, INC - Contractor / 675 Central Ave ~ New Providence N]J
(Sales & Manufacture)

CC. MOTION CONTROLS ROBOTICS, INC ~ Contractor / 1500 Walter Ave ~
Fremont, OH (Robotic Service)




DD. MICHIGAN CUSTOM MACHINES - Contractor / 22750 Heslip Dr. Novi, MI
(Machine Construction)

EE. PSARA TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Pro/ 10925 Reed Hartman hwy Ste220
Cincinnati OH (Consulting)

FF. PHOENIX CONSULTING, LLC- Contractor/ 3201 Stellhorn Road ~ Ft Wayne, IN
Programing Support)

GG. AUTOMATION & MODULAR COMPONENTS, INC. - Contractor / 10301
Enterprise Dr. ~ Davisburg, MI (Installation)

HH. PARTNER PERSONNEL, INC. - General / 2222 Franklin Rd~ Bloomfield Hills,
MI (Staffing)

II. INTERROLL CORPORATION - Contractor / 3000 Corporate Dr ~ Wilmington,
NC Manufacturer)

JJ. LANCE JOHNSON, INC. - Contractor / 2152 Reno hwy #E ~ Fallon , NV(
Earthwork )

KK. NOL-TEC SYSTEMS, INC - Pro / 425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN ( sales)

LL. AVERNA - Contractor / 3500 Hasselt ~ Belgium , Poland (Engineering
Consulting)

MM. CALVARY DESIGN TEAM, INC - Pro / 855 Publishers Parkway, Webster, NY
(Installation)

NN. AMBRELL CORPORATION - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY
(Manufacturer)

OO0. IBG NDT SYSTEMS CORPORATION - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno
NV (Designer)

PP. EXACT LASER MEASUREMENTS USA - Contractor /

QQ. FULLER ENGINEERING CO., LLC - Contractor /43334 Seven Mile Rd
~Northville, MI (Automotive & Aerspace)

RR. WISE CONSULTING & TRAINING, INC. - Contractor / 500 Ryland Street Ste250
~ Reno, NV (Consulting)

SS. NEVADA TAP MASTER - Contractor / 1647 Willow Pass Road #131, Concord
CA (Industrial Plumbing)

TT. AIR WAY AUTOMATION - Contractor / PO Box 563, Grayling MI ( Tool
Designer)

UU. LOGOMAT AUTOMATION SYSTEMS, INC- Contractor/2595 Arbor Tech Dr.
Hebron KY ( Installation)

VV. AJSSTOVES- Contractor/ 1267 A Hwy 395 N Gardnerville NV ( Chimney
Cleaning)

WW. AITA CONSULTING SERVICE- Pro/ 6-80 Towne Center Dr. North Brunswick
NJ ( Professional service)

XX. COPPERSTATE BOLT & NUT CO., INC.-Contractor/ 3622 N 34th Ave~
Phoenix AZ (Distributor)

YY. ABICOR BINZEL US- Contractor/ 650 Medimmune Ct. #110 Fredrick MD
Z7Z. STTRUCTURES, INC.- Contractor/5224 US Hwy 50 East ~ Carson City, NV (
Steel Fabrication)

AAA. DWFRITZ AUTOMATION, INC.- Contractor/ 27200 SW Parkway Ave~
Wilsonville OR ( Installation)




BBB. DIVERSE AUTOMATION, INC. - Contractor/ 3271 Brushy Creek Road~
Greer SC ( Automation)

CCC. GUDELINC. - Contractor/ 4881 Runway Blvd ~ Ann Arbor MI ( linear
Automation)

DDD. ROBOT SUPPORT, INC. - Contractor/ 20506 Hall Rd. Clinton Township, MI
(Software service )

EEE. CARSON MFG., INC- General /5001 Grumman Dr.~ Carson City, NV (
Manufacturing)

FFF. ASIAN UNION CHEMICALS RENO - General/ 1400 Waltham Way ~
McCarran , NV (Office Use Only)

15. CORRESPONDENCE (No Action)
Denied Agenda Item request from Mr. Mark Joseph Phillips

16.  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
17. ADJOURNMENT
18. CLOSED SESSION:

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County
Sheriff’s Office Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. The meeting will
commence immediately following the regular board of commissioners meeting.

NOTICE:
* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e [tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

e In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all




bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
[, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 7/12/2017; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

Bymw

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 18,2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the minutes for June 6, 2017.

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Clerk

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4, Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

Hem



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 6, 2017 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Deputy Clerk & Treasurer Wendy Bacus, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Fire Chief
Appointee Jeff Nevin, Director of Tourism Deny Dotson, Director of Security Melanie Keener,
Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Planner Kathy Canfield, Community ,
Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert, Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:08 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 16, 2017.

County Manager Pat Whitten requested Item #13 be continued and to strike Item #30 as there is no
need for a closed session.

Public Comment:
None.

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 6, 2017, with corrections, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 2, 2017.




Public Comment:

None.

Motion: Approve Minutes of May 2, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $586,277.33 and accounts

payable claims in the amount of $779,530.02

II' For possible action: Approval of the Treasurer’s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due Notice for all
Delinquent Parcels.

IIT For possible action: Cancellation of the July 4, 2017 Board of Commissioners meeting,
IV For possible action: Approval of refund for APN 003-303-17, Houts.

V' For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:

CHIPBLASTER, INC. - Contractor/ 13605 S. Mosiertown ~ Meadville, PA (Contractor)

SCHOELER OF AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 11220 Elm Lane ~ Charlotte, NC (machinery)
CONSTRUCTION SAFETY EXPERTS - Pro / 7032 Copperleaf Place ~ Cary, NC (safety consultant)
SOUTHEASTERN SEATING - Contractor / 903 E 17" Ave ~ Tampa, FL (bleacher assembly)

CAIRE - Contractor / 4 Rue Nicolas Copernic ~ 41100 Vendome FRANCE (machine installation)
COTMAC ELECTRONICS, INC. — Pro / 830 Kirts Blvd ~ Troy, MI (engineer)

THE BRUNCH BOX, LLC — General / 450 McClur Circle ~ Sparks (food truck)

SIMAC TECH S.R.L. - Contractor / via Delindustria 24/26 Fiorano Modenese ITALY (machine installation)
SILVER QUEEN SISTERS dba Cobb Mansion Bed & Breakfast — General / 18 S A (bed and bkfst)VC
QUALITY DESIGN SERVICES, INC. - Pro / 3914 Highwood P1 ~ Okemas, MI (engincering)

TYRELL RESOURCES, INC. — Contractor / 275 Hilltop Drive ~ Redding, CA (contractor)

BEE CLEEN CARPET & GLASS — General / PO Box 21932 ~ Carson City (office cleaning)

. TEST RESEARCH USA, INC. — General / 832 Jury Ct ~ San Jose, CA (sales and service of equipment)
PRECISION CRANE & HOIST SVCS. — Contractor / 2047 Pabco Rd ~ Henderson, NV (crane service)
JIRT, LLC - General / 1284 Cedar Book Court ~ Gardnerville (contractor)
ZIMMER GROUP US, INC. - Contractor / 1095 7™ Street ~ Hickory, NC (machinery)
HEMI SYSTEMS - Contractor / 126 Industrial Drive ~ Maysville, GA (rigging contractor)
ANDERSON LOCK AND KEY - Contractor / 601 Pyramid ~ Sparks (locksmith)
CALHOUN & POXON CO., INC. - Contractor / 5330 Alhambra Ave ~ Los Angeles (machinery)
EDGEWATER AUTOMATION, LLC - Contractor / 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI (equip install)
TEC GROUP, INC. — General / 850 Stephenson Hwy ~ Troy, MI (staffing)
KINETIC SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 4900 Prospectus Dr ~ Durham, NC (contractor)

. WHR DESIGN PC — Pro /201 Fuller Road, FLS, Albany, NY (architect)
JETT SOLUTIONS, LLC - Contractor / 7322 N Hwy 8a ~ Duncan, OK (contractor)
NOZATO ELECTRICAL ENG & CONST - Contractor / 2-4-1 Kashiwazato Osaka JAPAN (Contractor)
VALIANT INTERNATIONAL, INC. — Contractor / 6555 Hawthorne Dr ~ Windsor CANADA (equip install)
KURTEC, INC, - Contractor/10449 Copper Cove Dr — Ft. Wayne, IN (automation)
GIGAIMPLIANTI, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd ~ Sparks, NV (equipment installation)
WACHTER, INC. — Contractor / 16001 W 99" St ~ Lenexa, KS (contractor)

. OOKSAN IMT CO., LTD - Contractor / 1316 Hammadero Gyeongurn KOREA (equipment installation)

ZOLLERN GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / Hitzkofer Strasse Sigmaringen GERMANY (equip installation)

CLOCKWORK - General / 423 Delaware Street ~ Kansas City, MO (staffing)

OSE / VALEO - Contractor / 2 chemin du Pullousard, 49130 Los Ponts-de-ca FRANCE (machine install)

2

>
PNRYSSCHPRORNQOZENASNIQEET AW

THEC AW
RAEERE




HH. NEXTGEN SRO - Contractor / 24ES Cadca SLOVAKIA (equipment installation)

II.

JJ.

SEBASTIAN SOBOTA - HB / 414 Ave de la Bleu de Clair ~ Lockwood (handyman)
SPARK TALENT ACQUISITION, INC. — General / 701 S Carson Street ~ Carson City (staffing)

KK. SHAHEEN BEAUCHAMP BUILDERS, LLC — Contractor / 318 N Carson St ~ Carson City (contractor)
LL. SIGNAL X TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 15800 Centennial Dr ~ Northville, MI (equipment install)
MM. HINO SYSTECH CORPORATION - Pro / 1-20-2 Minamirokugo, Otaku, Tokyo JAPAN (engineer)

NN. UNDERGROUND VIDEO TECHNOLOGY, INC. — Contractor / 65 McCart ~ Fernley (sewer cleaning)
00. TESLA, INC. - General / 201 Ireland Drive (warehouse material storage) TRI
PP. GEMA USA, INC. - Contractor / 4141 W 54" St ~ Indianapolis, IN (equipment installation)

QQ. EVAPCO, INC. — Contractor / PO Box 1300 ~ Westminster, MO (warranty work)

RR. MTM-CS LP - Contractor / 1170 Howell Hill Rd ~ Atlanta, GA (equipment installation)

SS.

ANGUIL ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 8855 N 55" St ~ Milwaukee, WI (equip
install)

TT. TT DL AUTOMATION & CONTROL SYSTEMS - Contractor / 13/14 PremBhgyan Bundar

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for June 6, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Veterans of Foreign Wars Presentation.

Presentation not given.

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin:

Thank you to all who attended the groundbreaking ceremony at the Community Center. It
was a special day and huge success. One of the funders, Pennington, was in attendance.
Notes were received from several others all of whom are very grateful that it is moving along
and is under construction. State Library representatives were also there.

There is great cooperation with the contractors, Shaheen-Beauchamp.

State Library representatives are meeting with the librarian, Sandy, to set-up on-line databases.
Within weeks the library will have virtually all resources on-line, including books, periodicals,
research bases - everything that can be accessed from computers, phones, etc. As much as the
University has.

Amy Geddes from Lyon County library is assisting Sandy in cataloging books.

February 28, 2018 is the contract deadline for the construction.

Thank you to Public Works Director Jason VanHavel for assistance in moving dirt and to
Hugh Roy Marshall for allowing dirt to be put on his property.

Deputy Community Chest Director Eric Schoen:

Reminder: Community Chest has Case Management programs with counselors and staff to
assist residents in need of help with situations such as substance abuse, domestic violence, as
well as other support.

This is the time children will be in the park with approximately three-quarters of the
elementary students enrolled in the summer program - held from 7AM to 6PM. There will be
a lot of activity in the park and Community Center.




Senior Citizens Center Director Stacey Gilbert:
e Mike Dixon, driver for the Center, has noted the need for fans for seniors in their homes
during the hot weather.
e The Center is conducting a “fan drive”, collecting new fans to be distributed to seniors in need.
New fans or monetary donations can be made to the Senior Citizens Center. The “drop off”
spot will be at the Community Chest.

Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:

e Six Mile Canyon has been paved and is open.

» Meeting with Federal Highways to discuss a potential project for upgrades in the Canyon.

» Paving was also done in the parking near the pool, as well as at St. Mary’s Art Center.

» Before the end of fiscal year, the bridge at Patrick should be moved over to the Painted Rock
area.

¢ The sign in front of the Courthouse listing times of public and Courthouse parking is
continually being hit. A ballard will be placed to hopefully keep people from running into this
sign.

e The swimming pool will open mid-next week. The lifeguard shortage has been taken care of.
e Portions of Electric Avenue in TRI have been closed for the GID to expand the water line. This
has caused significant traffic issues along USA Parkway and Electric Avenue. This work is

expected to be done within the next week or two and the road will re-open.

Fire Chief Appointee Jeff Nevin:

e Open burning closed at the end of May.

e A “pile” was burned in the Mark Twain area by the Fire Department. There was a huge
amount of illegal dumping in this pile - tire, furniture, trash. Once burned, this area has been
closed down. Options will be looked at in order to curb this activity.

e The area in the Highlands is still open for vegetation dumping by residents.

e The “U Call - We Haul” trailers are still available through the Fire Department.

e Will be working with NDOT to remove some dead trees between the summit and Five Mile
Canyon.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:
e A couple of items to be presented at the next meeting for approval: Augmentations for the
current year and selection for the new County auditor.
¢ The auditor interview process will start next week.
¢ Update on replacement of Automated Data Systems (ADS):
1. Met with DevNet - a firm that will hopefully handle the Assessor’s and Clerk-
Treasurer’s functions, for the most part property taxes.
2. Meetings will continue with various firms for “back-office applications” - including
vouchers, payroll, budgets, business licenses and permitting.
3. Hopefully this will be done by July 1, 2018. If not, July 1, 2019. It will not be started in
the middle of a year.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:
e A hearing was heard in Federal District Court regarding whether or not to grant a preliminary
injunction to control the Sutro Springs roadway. The decision was the road is clearly a RS2477
roadway to be open and available for public use. Approximately 44 people signed statements

4




that they had used this road for a long time without being hindered. Resident Tom Zachary
said at least 100 more signatures could be obtained.
» A RS2477 road goes back in history:

1. When Virginia City was first established, mines, canals and roads were put in place
without benefit of authorization from the Federal Government - who owned all of the
land.

2. It was determined that development would proceed better if the land was just given
(for the mines, roads).

3. This argument won out and the 1866 Mining Law was passed, with a provision stating
that “any roads that are used by the public are the public roads”. The roads were
accepted by public use alone.

¢ The Federal Court was satisfied that this road is a RS2477 road - that it had been publicly used
for 130 years.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

e Under the Consent Calendar the July 4 Commission meeting is cancelled. The next meeting
will be June 20t%, and then the one meeting in July on July 18.

e Recently there was an issue at Hillside Elementary School which continued at Louise Peri
Park. The School Superintendent requested that the park be considered under the full
jurisdiction and responsibility of the school district during school hours, and consent was
given. The issue of the park being under school district jurisdiction during school hours will
be discussed further.

e The District Attorney/Sheriff’s Office is being painted. When that is complete, the entrance
area to the Courthouse will also be painted.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Vice Chairman McGuffey:
e Thank you to Public Works for the great job on paving the parking lot next to the pool. As
well as at St. Mary’s Art Center. This makes a big difference.
e SB57, V&T Bill, has been signed by the Governor. There will be a new Board in by October,
enabling the V&T to be run more efficiently.

Chairman McBride:
e 2,000 runner participating in the Reno-Tahoe Odyssey came through Virginia City Saturday
morning. This brings business into town.
¢ Street Vibrations Spring Rally was also this weekend.
e Today is the 73 anniversary of the “D Day” invasion.
e Resident Clifford Miller passed away this last week. Mr. Miller grew up in Virginia City and
was a Sheriff in Carson City.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or
legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State
Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman
or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57 which
staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289, SB271, AB290, SB356, SB469,
and AB384.




County Manager Whitten: Walker & Associates, along with Bum Hess, will have an item on the June
20th Commission meeting to review all of the bills of interest.
e SB8: State Grants for Body Cams - This bill died. Hopefully, there will be a grant program
available for body cams.
e 5B439: 5 Cent Diesel Tax - Bill died.

The general consensus is everything came out OK. An interesting session filled with partisanship.

Austin Osborne: A couple of bills being looked at regarding employment and collective bargaining,
were:
e AB271: Collective Bargaining - Binding fact-finding bill. This bill did not make it.
e Financial Stabilization Bill - This was gutted, but includes amendment allowing unions paid
work time to do union business.
e AB384: Criminal History - Appears to have passed. It may or may not be vetoed.
e SB289: Out of Network Bill - Appears to have died in Finance.
e End-fund Balance re-opener: Appears with veto, will remain at 25% that a fact-finder after
collective bargaining is not subject to.
e Wind machines: Has moved forward with amendment that special use can be required and
can be regulated based on historical or other environmental concerns.
e Most of the water bills, especially water curtailment, have died in one way or another.
¢ Industrial hemp appears to have passed the Senate and may move forward. This is hemp that
has no THC - is used for rope and such.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2017-2018

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher stated the POOL fund for 2017-18 is $293,024, a 7% increase from what
it was. This is mostly due to claims, mainly with FEMA for weather-related events.

POOL representative Carol Ingalls: The purpose of the POOL is to try to stabilize premiums from
having peaks and valleys. A 7% increase is not great, but not outrageous. Increase in property
values, number of vehicles, operating expenses - all are going up incrementally, generating the
warranted increase in premium. A concern this year was the late notice in getting renewal packages
out.

Mike Rebaleati: Would like to come back with a full presentation in detail of how and what POOL
does. Thank you to the Board and Virginia City for maintaining the historic buildings. Highlights of
prevention and loss control programs available are:
e Risk management grants: available through the loss control committee. Body cams will be a
topic in an upcoming session. A lot of grants were given this year.
e On-line “e-learning” safety courses: This helps with all human resource matters.
 Site safety and inspections: Includes playground/park safety surveys; work station
evaluations; combined space assessments; facility surveys; fire extinguisher education; and
many more. Also wellness and health education training.
e PACT is also tied in with law enforcement training. This includes sponsoring specialized
training.




e Cyber-prevention program. Storey County will be contacted regarding this program which
consists of a very extensive assessment.

Commissioner Gilman: Requested that POOL submit recommendations to the County in writing - a
“punch list” that the County can be aware for loss control.

Mr. Rebaleati: That is the purpose of asking to come back another time. The list just presented will
be sent to Mr. Whitten for distribution.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve payments to the POOL/Pact in the amount of $293,024.00,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 10:53 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:02 AM

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to reject all bids received for the
construction of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project Phases Two through Five (2-5) and
authorization to amend the project for a new bid process to commence.

Mike Nevin, All Comstock Consulting, presented this item.

e Initial bids for this project were opened May 4th. Two bids were received: Q&D Construction
was the apparent low bid at approximately $17 million; and a bid from Sierra Nevada
Construction at almost $21 million.

e The engineer’s estimate for this project is $10.3 million. The bids were well over.

e USDA, funding agency for this project, was contacted regarding alternatives. One suggestion
was to negotiate in good faith with low bidder.

¢ Q&D was contacted to see there was any way to reduce the bid. This resulted in some savings
but still not enough to be in the best interest of the project.

e Bid tabulations were reviewed by staff, the engineer, and USDA.

e The Gold Hill phase, with about 50 customers serviced, was estimated at $5 to 6 million. $3.4
million was paid for the sewer facility in Virginia City - indicating the Gold Hill phase did not
pencil out.

e Reasons the Gold Hill phase of the project was so expensive included having to deal with
NDOT (utility lines run down SR342) and possibly a new highway to meet NDOT
requirements, and NVEnergy for power to three lift stations.

¢ The decision was made to eliminate the Gold Hill phase.

e The Commission is being requested to reject the two bids and allow the project to be re-bid.

e Three additional contractors have been contacted. One contractor, not aware of the bid, is very
interested. Hopefully there will be better results with more competitive numbers.

e The new engineer’s estimate for the base bid is approximately $9.6 million.

e Request for bids will be published in the local newspaper with a new bid opening scheduled
for July 7th, Project should begin sometime in the middle of September.

7




e The USDA engineer is in agreement to re-bid this project including removal of the Gold Hill
project.

e If there are funds left (from the project), the existing Gold Hill collection system could be
vastly improved.

Chairman McBride: There is no choice but to reject these bids - the amounts received were not
anticipated and the funds are not there. Either the engineers under-estimated the bid, or the
contractors are out to gouge the County.

Mr. Nevin: The contractors are very busy. As seen in the industrial park, there are labor shortages.
Chair McBride: Labor shortages or not, the (bid) amounts are unacceptable.

Commission Gilman: Has a couple of quality contractors that can be added to the list for bids.
Chair McBride: A higher number of companies bidding may make it more competitive.

Mr. Whitten: Eliminating the Gold Hill portion, which has about 50 hook-ups with a bid of $6
million, is a huge “chunk”. Gold Hill was designed as a “3-lift” system and with on-going expenses
for electricity, this makes sense at this point.

Chair McBride: If bids had come in at the engineer’s estimate, the (Gold Hill) portion would have
been $3 million, not $6 million - it might have been considered.

Mr. Nevin: There is an option to eventually reach out to USDA and increase the loan amount.

Public Comment:
Gold Hill Resident, Sam Toll: Concurs with Mr. Nevin's findings. It would be difficult to consider
that tax dollars would be used in such a manner - it is a prudent move to consider re-bidding.

Motion: I move to reject the two bids received for the construction of the Virginia City Sewer
Improvement Project Phases Two through Five (2-5). Due to the bids greatly exceeding the
engineer’s estimate of costs, it is in the public’s best interest to reject all bids and authorize staff to
amend the project for a new bid to commence, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Allow Storey County Sheriff's Office to enter into an
agreement with Washoe County Medical Examiner’s Office.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis stated the proposed agreement has been reviewed. This is a
long-standing process where the Washoe County Medical Examiner’s Office provides services for
autopsy’s and medical examinations.

District Attorney Anne Langer: This contract has been renewed every three years and basically the
contract has not changed. One item is there is a new Medical Examiner in Washoe County.

8




Chairman McBride: Are the fees the same as before? Some look a little “outlandish”.

Sheriff Antinoro: The Agreement being talked about does not address the fees. The fee schedule may
have been included, but that is normally sent out on an annual basis. The fees now being charged
were incorporated in this year’s budget cycle - there was a minor increase across the board. This is
pretty much the only “game in town”.

Ms. Langer: In this County, funeral homes normally pick up the bodies, not the Medical Examiner.
Chair McBride: Would there be an exception for crime scene investigation?

Sheriff Antinoro: That’s a different contract. This contract is strictly for services at the Medical
Examiner’s office.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve the interlocal pathology services agreement with the Washoe
County Medical Examiner’s Office, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of contract with T.W.
Vending, Inc. d/b/a TurnKey Corrections to provide inmate services including video visitation,
telephone services, inmate email and commissary services.

This item continued to June 20, 2017.

Item 14 moved to follow Item 18

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the On Sale Liquor License for Jennifer Nair
for the Palace Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV

Chairman McBride stated that he holds a liquor license in proximity to the Palace Restaurant. Voting
on this item would no more affect Ms. Nair than anyone else holding the same license.

Commissioner Gilman: Has the same comment.
Sheriff Antinoro said the background investigation has been concluded. There is nothing to
preclude the applicant from holding a license. Jennifer Nair has been there for years, waiting tables

in high school, and beyond. This is the Second Reading and approval is recommended.

Chair McBride: Ms. Nair has been there for about 14 years and worked the way up to buying the
business.




Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the On-Sale Liquor License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace
Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amendment to current liquor license. Approval of the Off
Sale Liquor License for Connie Carlson for the Silver Queen Sisters, 28 N C Street, Virginia City, NV.

Sheriff Antinoro: Ms. Carlson is requesting to expand the current liquor license to include liquor that
“goes out the door”. Ms. Carlson has no violations and is in good standing - approval is
recommended.

Chair McBride: The family has had the business for many years. For full disclosure, “T also have a
license in proximity to the Silver Queen and voting on this item would no more affect Ms. Carlson
than anyone else”.

Commissioner Gilman: “I make the same disclosure”.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve amendment to current Liquor License adding on Off Sale
Liquor License for Connie Carlson for the Silver Queen Sisters, 28 N C St., Virginia City, NV, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of General Business License for Jennifer Nair for
the Palace Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV.

Sheriff Antinoro: This applicant has already been talked about under the Liquor License. Are there
any questions?

Chair McBride: This is for the restaurant portion of the license.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the General Business License for Jennifer Nair for the Palace
Restaurant & Saloon, 54 S C St., Virginia City, NV, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

10




19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading Ordinance No. 17-275 amending Storey
County Code (Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana
establishments, including prohibition of allowed uses, special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses
within all zoning districts, and other properly related matters.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item. This is a proposed Ordinance which has
been heard by the Planning Commission with a recommendation of approval.

The purpose of the Ordinance is to clarify that prohibition of the use and cultivation of marijuana
includes medical marijuana. The Ordinance expands the types of uses not authorized, to include
marijuana establishments - testing laboratories, cultivation and production facilities - things of that
nature.

A question has been raised regarding the meaning of Section 1, paragraph B, #2 - “The sale or
display of items intended for use as marijuana paraphernalia to persons under the age of 21 years is
also a prohibited use.”
e This paragraph has been clarified and will be amended to: “The display of items of marijuana
paraphernalia intended for sale to persons under the age of 21 years is also a prohibited use”.
e Sales of paraphernalia over the age of 21 is legal; sales to persons under 21 is not.
e [t can be prohibited by a County ordinance.

Public Comment:
Gold Hill resident, Sam Toll: Referred to a Storey County Community Development letter dated July
25, 2015, regarding this Ordinance and it’s use.

e Note the type of business owned by Mr. Quigley (“root beer barrel kid”) as having infractions
to this code.

A concern by many merchants on C Street is the unfair application of this Ordinance.

e Itisinteresting that this ordinance is being modified to address medical and commercial
marijuana usage, but it is glossed over that this ordinance is not being uniformly enforced
throughout businesses on C Street.

Inconsistent application of the law borders on hypocrisy.

¢ Regarding the re-wording of the Ordinance: does this mean (the County) is going to prohibit
everyone in the County from the legal ability to cultivate recreational and medical marijuana
in their homes? Is that under the jurisdiction of this ordinance change?

Mr. Loomis: The personal cultivation and use of marijuana - medicinal and soon to be recreational -
is authorized by law. The Ordinance is going to prohibit the marijuana establishments, not personal
use and cultivation.

Mr. Toll: Storey County (to his knowledge) is the only county in the United States, under contract,
that manufactures, distributes, and sells a controlled substance - alcohol. It is his opinion that alcohol
is the most dangerous substance affecting public safety and is responsible for a 911's worth of death
each month across the country. Law enforcement would say that when making an arrest of a person
under the influence of alcohol or marijuana - the preference would be to deal with a person who was
stoned and not drunk.

11




e The fact that Storey County folks have approved Question Two in the 2016 election, reflects
the fact that conservative Republicans share the notion the 1930’s style of addressing this
problem is one that should be in the rear-view mirror.

 In the wording of the proposed change, there is a “whereas” talking about the Federal
Government prohibiting substances - folks should be reminded of the 10" Amendment and its
application on that sentence.

e The hypocrisy of the County producing alcohol and selling it as taxpayers, and then
prohibiting someone from opening a legal business to provide marijuana products to the
public, speaks for itself.

e If (the County) proceeds with this process, (the County) will probably be employing the POOL
attorneys that were here (earlier in this meeting) with a lawsuit with the folks that have a
license pending.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Mr. Toll - you referred to hypocrisy in the County - some people are
getting away with things, some are not - do you have any proof to back that up?

Mr. Toll: Has talked with almost every vendor on C Street. Looking at the fact that this gentleman
has loud music and signs posted in front of his building in direct violation of this ordinance, and
there are folks up and across the street not allowed to play music loudly or display signs similarly,
that reflects an inconsistent application of the code.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Are there complaints to back up those allegations?

Mr. Toll: Does not know if anyone has the courage to come up and speak in front of you as he does.

e Mr. Toll has had these conversations directly and can share them.

e It has been discussed that if someone remains silent, consent is given silently to the mis-
application. It is a sentiment that exists.

e Discussions were held at the VCTC April meeting regarding reconsideration of the entire
ordinance, how to bring folks into reflecting the look and feel of the historic nature - having
signs that are consistent with the 1860’s and not with Coney Island.

e The Ordinance needs to be applied consistently with respect to every business - this would go
a long way to mend hurt feelings. It's the idea the “root beer barrel kid” can flaunt every
aspect of this Ordinance with impunity because he walks - folks in this building ...(inaudible).

Mr. Loomis: Not sure Mr. Toll understands what is being done here. When an ordinance is being
amended, the ordinance has to be published in full. What is being added and deleted must be
indicated. Mr. Toll is talking about a different portion of the Ordinance having nothing to do with
the marijuana provision being addressed today.

Mr. Toll: That is correct. The point being made is that if this Ordinance is going to be fixed,
everything that is wrong with it should be tackled. It is wrong that looking at just marijuana as to
what is prohibited, without looking at the other things since 2015 that have been looked at, trying to
deal with and address at the VCTC meeting. There was talk about bringing that Ordinance up.

Mr. Toll suggests that motivations for inserting these into the Ordinance are motivated with different
motivations. In fact, if we look at the entire Ordinance, perhaps we should fix the entire thing before
we penalize a business that ....

12




Chairman McBride: Mr. Toll, can you wrap it up? We're talking about two different ordinances here.
It is known that the sign ordinance has been difficult to enforce as written, headway is being made
with that. The marijuana issue is with us now. It will be made perfectly clear that marijuana is still
deemed by the Federal Government as a Schedule One drug - it is illegal Federally.

Earlier in this meeting, funding with USDA for water, sewer, and the like, was discussed. (The
County) would be remiss to jeopardize the relationship with the Federal Government - monies that
help us out with to do construction and improvements - to “slap them in the face” by going forward
in legalizing marijuana when it is a Federal prohibition. We don’t care what is done in other counties
- we have to look out for Storey County residents, taxpayers, and citizens.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I,
Commissioner McGuffey, motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No 17-275 amending Storey
County Code (Title 17 Zoning) 17.10 and 17.12 pertaining to marijuana and medical marijuana
establishments, including prohibition of allowed uses, special uses, accessory uses, or temporary uses
within all zoning districts, and other properly related matters, including the correction of Section 2,
paragraph B - 2,

Mr. Loomis read the title:
An ordinance amending zoning provisions in Storey County Code Title 17 to
clarify that the prohibition on the use of property for the sale, cultivation,
dispensing or display of marijuana includes medical and recreational marijuana,
expanding that prohibition to include prohibitions on medicinal marijuana
establishment uses, and recreational marijuana establishment uses, removing
the prohibition on the sale or display of marijuana paraphernalia to persons
over the age of 21 years or use of marijuana by persons over the age of 21 years
and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve contract with
Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC for the assistance in providing administrative functions and
oversight of the Storey County Community Development Department.

County Manager Pat Whitten presented this item. With the retirement of Community Development
Director, Dean Haymore, the approach to finding the next path is daunting. Staff is recommending
to not look outside for replacement. The typical building inspector comes in with an attitude of “let
me show you how it’s done” in other cities and counties. There have been many times when a
perspective business has asked how long it would take to get a permit in Storey County and Dean
would say all that is needed is the plans and a check. That led to the decision to find the strength (for
the position) internally or through a new structure.

Mr. Whitten stressed awareness of a lot of talk about “the good ole boy days”. This is an

independent services contract and when looking at the economics, it makes sense. Douglas County
has taken this approach in the hiring of an independent contractor for the County Manager position.

13




The Douglas County contract was used as a base. This contract was reviewed by Human Resources
and the District Attorney’s Office to be sure it meets all tests and legalities.

The reason to go with Battle Born Consulting and Gary Hames, is there is no “ramp up” time. Gary
is aware and actively involved in all projects throughout the County and understands the key role
that economic development has in local government. Most people hate government - our job is to
make it the easiest, smoothest, most cost effective way for people to deal with. Including those that
are developing projects - big and small. Most importantly, Gary understands Storey County. There
is no worry about bringing in “outside attitude” to correct it, break it, mold it or anything like that.

Mr. Whitten is very pleased to recommend Battle Born Consulting, subsequent to Chief Hames
retirement, to step in and provide the services.

Looking at the economics of this decision, there were three solutions:

« Go out to try and replace Mr. Haymore. Between salary and benefits - PERS and medical, cell
phone and car allowances, this would have cost the County approximately $207 to $208,000.

e Same scenario with salaries and benefits being requested, was a solution costing $262,000.

e The contract price bottom line with Battle Born Consulting Services, is $136,248 total. Battle
Born Consulting will have its own truck, pay for gas, tires, and cell phone. These will not be
provided. Many ancillary expenses that Battle Born will have, including attorneys and such,
will have to be paid for by Battle Born.

« The County has not been looking at “this path” for very long. It was not necessarily the first
solution.

e There has been a lot of “chat” about a class in Denver, authorized by the County Manager -
the only one who can do so by policy. This was done only because the County was buried in
plan checks on all projects - including those inside and outside of TRI. Plan checks are greatly
important in terms of safely permitting projects and limiting the County’s liability when it
comes to stamping forms stating it is a “certified, qualified, trained” inspector or plan
reviewer, verifying the plans are safe. The class was not done in anticipation of this move.

Mr. Whitten strongly recommends approval of this contract.
Chairman McBride: Explain how the contract would be terminated if it does not work out.

Mr. Whitten: Termination is covered in section 6, stating “either party can terminate this contract
without clause provided that the termination of the contract shall not be effective until 30 days after
the party has served written notice on the other party. All monies due and owing up to the point of
termination shall be paid by Storey County to the contractor within 60 days unless otherwise agreed
upon by the parties”.

Public Comment:

Gold Hill Resident, Sam Toll: Mr. Toll commented about not going out to bid for a contract and the
issue of “rubber stamping” contracts. If there are only two contractors bidding, the same type of
aggressive approach is not received as if you had ten. If promoting from within is suggested, the
people promoted under those conditions must be the best and the brightest. It is shortsighted to not
look outside because other sets of “clear eyes” may be looking at what is done here. Mr. Toll has
suggested that other contracts, ie., Liquid Blue and Rad Strategies, not be “rubber stamped” every

14




year, but go out to bid so there is a sense that a free market is being looked at. If contracts are kept
within associates and friends, that gives the impression of “chrony-ism”.

Mr. Whitten: There is a lot of talk about bid, this is a contract for professional services, nothing more
- nothing less. Contracts for professional services are not out for bid. It be out for “RFQ”. Working
with Gary for 20+ years - don’t need to RFQ or look around, or solicit for a brighter person. Mr.
Whitten has worked with Gary, watched Gary work and help with Tesla and Switch, and “land”
countless companies.

Mr. Whitten stands by his recommendation.

Storey County Resident, Nicole Barde: How is this an independent contractor? This contract does
not meet the State’s 3 out of the 5 conditions, the IRS 20-factor test, and the ABC’s. With an indefinite
contract, being paid monthly - with invoices, performing a core business function on the employer’s
premises, using employer’s equipment and rules, only providing guidance to employer to hire and
fire employees - how (does) this meets Federal Law, which State Law cannot overcome?

Mr. Whitten: (This contractor) is not using the employer’s equipment. Mr. Hames is using is own
truck, his own computer . . .

Ms. Barde: Where is he going to be conducting business?
Mr. Whitten: In and out of a home office as well as with staff at County facilities, and in the field.

Ms. Barde: The question still stands. It also requires a substantial investment of a contractor in their
own business to qualify as an independent contractor. How is this an independent contractor?

Mr. Loomis: This contract is modeled on the Douglas County contract with County Manager Larry
Warner as an independent contractor. The contract is with Battle Born (Consulting Services), LLC - a
limited liability company - not with Gary Hames personally. Battle Born will be providing Gary
Hames as the person fulfilling the terms of this contract and follows the IRS 20-factor test as much as
it can. The State requirements are being followed. Most importantly, this is a contract with an LLC
and not with Gary Hames.

Ms. Barde: This is an exclusive contract. The services are not offered to anyone else. Thank you for
the explanation, but (Ms. Barde) still not satisfied. This will be taken to others to find out of if this
does match independent contracting - it is based on an existing contract without - and I'm probably
wrong with this - basing it on “what little Bobby is doing and his mom says its okay”. Not so sure
the Douglas County contract is legal, that way.

Kris Thompson: The two prior speakers want the County to go to other areas and bring someone in
with experience in those (other areas) institutions. Storey County is different - this is why the
County is exploding in economy not because corners are cut. The inspectors enforce the same
building code and same environmental standards. Storey County has found a way to do this faster
and more efficiently, with an attitude of fast turn-around times - assisting and not hampering
business, as would be with the people these folks would like to see hired (from California).

15




Gary Hames is a stand-out person - in work ethic and honesty and is clearly qualified to do the job
based on licensing and experience at TRI. After Mr. Haymore leaves, no one in the County has more
experience on the ground with the businesses in TRL

There is no “back deal” - there was a different thought process, which was put aside for good
reasons. If this is the option from the County, (TRI) supports it. Mr. Hames is qualified, and will
fulfill the County’s attitude of high environmental and building code quality bringing in leaders from
around the globe.

Chairman McBride: When there is a good team in place, knowing how everything works, it is not
necessary to go out to bid every time. If there are issues with anyone, that person will be cut loose
and the County will go on. The County can’t go out to bid every year for services just to go out to
bid. When it’s a good thing, stick with it.

Chair McBride is comfortable with this decision. Staff recommends approval.

Mr. Whitten: There are “non-substantive” changes that need to be made to the contract before
signing. Paragraph 3 references termination in paragraph 7 - change to paragraph 6.

Motion: I, Commissioner McGuffey move to approve authorizing the Storey County Manager to
enter the County into contract with Battle Born Consulting Services, LLC for the assistance in
providing administrative functions and oversight of the Storey County Community Development
Department as set forth in the proposed contract enclosed herewith, with correction noted, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

21. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 17-
455 to appoint hearing officers to hear appeals from persons appealing notices of nuisance issued by
the County, setting the fees for filing the appeal, and setting the amount of compensation to be paid
to the hearing officers.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: The recently passed nuisance ordinance contains provisions
for appointment of hearing officers. Among the persons that can be considered is a pro-tem Judge
from outside the jurisdiction. The ordinance also provides that the Board is to set the fees for filing
an appeal from a notice of nuisance as well as fees for hearing officers and for appeal of the decision
of the hearing officer for appeal before the Board of County Commissioners.
¢ Two pro-tem Judges have agreed to act as hearing officers as the need arises - David
Sarnowski and Jessica Prunty.
e The proposed compensation is $100 for half-day hearing; $200 for full day. This is the same fee
paid by Carson City for pro-tem Judges.
e The fee for the appeal will cover the cost of the hearing officer as well as for preparation of a
transcript of the hearing before the hearing officer.
e The proposed fee for the appeal is $300.

District Attorney Anne Langer: Dave Sarnowski is retired, giving him time to do these cases, and
was with the Attorney General’s Office and then worked with Judicial Ethics. Jessica Prunty has
worked for a private firm for approximately 20 years. Both are on the pro-tem calendar in Carson

16




City, indicating experience as pro tem judges in the past and would understand the nuances of a
nuisance case. Ms. Langer highly recommends both.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Dave Sarnowski was the attorney for the Ethics Commission at the time of
a matter involving myself. Mr. Sarnowski wrote an exoneration letter. Would this be a conflict of
interest?

Ms. Langer: Yes, there could be conflict. It is best that Vice Chairman McGuffey not vote on this
item,

Chairman McBride: If a person should prevail in appealing the nuisance before a hearing officer, are
the fees refunded?

Mr. Whitten: I think so.

Public Comment:
None

Vice Chairman McGuffey abstained from voting.

Motion: I move to Approve Resolution No. 17-455 setting the fees for filing appeals in nuisance
cases, setting the amount of compensation to be paid to the hearing officers, and the appointment of
Jessica Prunty and David Sarnowski as hearing officers to hear appeals from notices of nuisance
issued by the County and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: 2017-019 BLA by Pamela Loy/Dave Thomas. The
Applicant requests approval of a Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) between Lots 331 and 332A of
Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs) 003-101-06 (Lot 331) and 003-101-67
(Lot 332A). The adjustment is being requested to accommodate a driveway for Lot 332A that was
constructed across the property line. Upon completion of this Boundary Line Adjustment, the
driveway will be completely contained on Lot 332A. The adjustment will be an equal area exchange
so that the parcel sizes remain the same. The properties are located at 1935 and 1941 Saddleback
Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item. An addendum has been passed out. This item is a
simple boundary line adjustment where a driveway was built across an adjacent property. The
adjustment will be an equal area exchange allowing the driveway to be on the applicant’s property.
No objections were received from surrounding property owners.

Public Comment:
None

Findings of Fact:
The applicant requests approval of a boundary line adjustment between lots 331
and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers 003-101-06

17




(Lot 331) and 003-101-167 (Lot 332A).

The Boundary Line Adjustment complies with NRS 278.475 through 278.477
relating to the change in location of boundary line.

The Boundary Line Adjustment complies with all Federal, State, and County
Regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps, BLA and allowed land uses.

The Boundary Line Adjustment will not impose substantial adverse impacts
or the surrounding vicinity.

The conditions of approval for the requested Boundary Line Adjustment do
not conflict with the minimum requirements in Storey County Code Chapters
17.40 Estate Zone or any other Federal, State, or County regulations.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Storey County Planning
Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all
Conditions of Approval, I, Commissioner McGuffey, hereby recommend approval with conditions
for the Boundary Line Adjustment Application Number 2017-019 for a boundary line adjustment
between Lots 331 and 332A of Virginia City Highlands Unit 1, Assessor Parcel Numbers 003-101-06
(Lot 331) and 003-101-67 (Lot 332A), Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2017-018 by Tim Roth/Jack McGuffey (changed
from McGuffey to Collins Construction at the Planning Commission meeting). The applicant
requests a variance to the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-story, one-car
garage. The applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to the
proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The property
is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN)
001-253-07.

Based on his affiliation with Collins Construction, Vice Chairman McGuffey, recused himself from
discussion and vote on this item.

Planner Kathy Canfield: This is a Variance request to construct a single, one story car garage on a
residential property. Two existing sheds will be removed when the garage is constructed. The
request is for the side yard setback be reduced from 8 feet to 4.5 feet with the rear yard setback to go
from 20 feet to 6 feet. Staff is recommending approval. The garage will be constructed to match the
house which has historical characteristics.

Public Comment:
None

18




Findings of Fact:
The applicant requests a variance to the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a
one-story, one-car garage. The applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the
required 8-feet to the proposed 4.5-feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the
proposed 6-feet. The property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, APN 001-253-07.

The subject property is located within R1 Residential zoning with an existing residence as a
primary use and the proposed garage as an allowed accessory use. ,_

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances and
17.16 R1 Residential Zones when all Conditions of Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and policies of
the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Commissioner Gilman: The Planning Commission did a very professional job in reviewing and
approving this project.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, 1, Lance Gilman, recommend approval of a
variance (Variance 2017-018) to the side and rear yard setbacks for the construction of a one-story,
one-car garage. The Applicant requests the side yard setback be reduced from the required 8-feet to
the proposed 4.5 feet, and the rear setback from the required 20-feet to the proposed 6-feet. The
property is located at 196 S. P Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-253-07, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: SUP 2017-016 by Patrick Bacon. The Applicant requests a
Special Use Permit to construct a maximum 75-foot high tower to support non-commercial amateur

19




"ham" radio telecommunications equipment at the Applicant's residence located at 188 Martin Lane,
"Mark Twain" (Dayton). Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13.

Planner Kathy Canfield stated Applicant’s request is for an amateur radio tower, with a maximum of
75 feet, at a residential property in Mark Twain.

Applicant proposes to construct the antenna toward the middle of the property with a 75 foot
setback from rear and side property line.
In case of a failure, the (antenna) would fall on applicant’s property without impacting
neighbors.
Aesthetics of the tower was discussed at the Planning Commission.
An illustration is presented in the packet. The tower is collapsible and can go up and down to
various heights - a maximum of 75 feet.
Two neighbors expressed concern about seeing the tower and impact on property values.
Applicant indicated he will work with the neighbors. Applicant also talked with neighbors
and has a list of those not opposed.
Staff recommends approval with conditions:
1. Insurance - the County is satisfied with $300,000 insurance, based on the location of the
tower;
2. Strike “Condition U” as being redundant. Condition “C” covers the same items.
3. New “Condition U” was added: “The proposed tower design shall be consistent with
the engineered plans submitted to Storey County Planning Department and as depicted
in the Staff Report for this Special Use Permit.”

Public Comment:

Chairman McBride: Heard the concerns of neighbors at the Planning Commission meeting. Mr.
Bacon is within the guidelines of Ordinance and Law in erecting this (tower). One concern, was the
telephone poles on the property. Is there a limit to how many telephone poles will be put in?

Applicant, Patrick Bacon: Those are the only poles that will be put up.

The poles are within the law and are used for flags for each of the services for which telephone
patches are run for injured military.

There is a wire around the poles used as a nighttime antenna.

Phone patches are run around the world, many times at night. The antenna that will be on top
of the tower will be for daytime use.

The tower is motorized, goes up and down, and can be remotely controlled. Itisin
compliance.

The poles were professionally installed and are to code. This is the only nighttime antenna
and the poles are in compliance with every other pole in the neighborhood.

Every adjacent property had no problem.

One person in the back - one property over, said in might affect sale of his home. Another
resident thought the tower might be unsightly.

The tower is a pipe tower with the top section being 3 inches square - nearly imperceptible
from V4 to % miles away, and will probably be down a lot of the time.

There are poles all around in this area. The power lines....

20




Chairman McBride: Understands and is familiar with the antenna being erected. Mr. Bacon might
have to agree that the neighbors seeing four telephone poles - although within legal rights -
understand how that might be an eyesore.

Mr. Bacon: Neighbors across the street and on the other side of the property, have signed that it does
not bother them.
e The person worrying about his property value going down has so many trees, Mr. Bacon does
not understand how the poles can be seen.
e All ordinances have been complied with.
e Originally there were five poles, one is horizontal and will be left horizontal.
e The antenna goes up to 75 feet. Mr. Bacon will experiment to determine the height needed to
reach injured military in the Persian Gulf.
e Mr. Bacon has also been a ham radio operator for many years with friends around the world.

Vice Chair McGuffey: Does this (antenna) open the door to remove the poles?
Mr. Bacon: Then there wouldn’t be antenna on two bands.

Austin Osborne: The applicant has explained everything. The poles are compliant with code and
appear to meet building requirements, however the conditions state that there will be no more.

Ms. Canfield: The SUP is non-transferable. If the property is sold, the antenna would have to come
down.

Mr. Bacon: Will agree that if he is no longer the owner of the property or deceased, the antenna and
poles will come down.

Findings of Fact:

The Applicant requests a Special Use Permit to construct a maximum 75-foot high tower to
support non-commercial amateur “ham” radio telecommunications equipment at the
Applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13.

In accordance with Taormina v. Storey County and the PRB-1 Ruling of the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC), the county may “attempt to negotiate a compromise
with the applicant” in order to provide for a “reasonable accommodation” for amateur radio
communications in administering practicable regulations with regard to health, safety, and
aesthetic considerations for the area. Under the rule of the Ninth Circuit Court noted in
Howard v. City of Burlingame and included in Taormina, “the city [county] may deny the
antenna permit” if attempts “to negotiate a compromise with the [amateur radio] applicant” in
accordance with factual findings are unsuccessful.

Storey County’s local ordinances do not outright ban or impose unreasonable restrictions on

the height or placement of radio communications towers; therefore, the federal law under
PRB-1 of the FCC does not preempt the local ordinances regulating such structures.

21




The conditions and stipulations in accordance with the motion “which involve placement and
other restrictions, based on health, safety, and aesthetic considerations” have been crafted to
provide a “reasonable accommodation” for amateur communications, and to represent a
minimum practicable regulation to accomplish the county’s legitimate purposes.

Section 17.62.010 (Special Uses) of the Storey County Code provides for “reasonable
accommodation” of amateur communications in that, “Certain uses may be permitted by the
Board of Storey County Commissioners in zones in which they are not permitted by this title
where such use are deemed essential or desirable for the public convenience or welfare.”

The motion provides for effective and efficient amateur communications at the local, regional,
national, and global level.

Storey County has considered the Special Use Permit application, hereby proposes factual
findings to be included with a motion for approval, has engaged the applicant in the
appropriate public process, and has attempted to negotiate a compromise for a “reasonable
accommodation” for amateur communications.

The applicant has agreed that the support structure (tower) will remain below Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA) height limitations which would necessitate lighting and tower
coloration.

In accordance with federal regulations under the FCC, electromagnetic and other radio-wave
interference resulting from the amateur communication systems is entirely within the
jurisdiction of the FCC and that the local jurisdiction may not impose or enforce regulations
related thereto.

This Special Use Permit allows for additional height up to a maximum of 75 feet for the non-
commercial communications tower and antennas on the subject property. The tower is an
accessory use to the primary residential use on the property.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Mark Twain
planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding
for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.D of this staff report and the contents
thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing residential neighborhood in the Mark Twain
Estates area of Storey County. The zoning is Estates and the primary use on the property is
residential which is consistent with the Estates zoning. The proposed non-commercial
communications tower and amateur radio equipment are an accessory use to the primary
residence on the property.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not under the circumstances of the particular case
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing in the
neighborhood of the subject property. The project is expected to meet the safety and health
requirements for the subject area. The use will also be subject to building plan review in order
to ensure compliance with federal, state and other codes.

22




The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state and
county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and Section 17.40, E - Estate
Zone.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the
public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area
of the subject property.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I,
Commissioner McGuffey, recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-016 allowing the
applicant to construct a maximum 75 foot high non-commercial communications tower to support
amateur “ham” radio equipment at the applicant’s residence located at 188 Martin Lane, Mark Twain,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-284-13, with the added condition that
no other poles or towers be installed and that all towers and poles be removed once ownership
changes, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 12:54 PM
Meeting reconvened at 1:01 PM

[tem 26 moved and heard before Item 25.

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Grant and conveyance to TRI General Improvement District a perpetual right and
easement to construct, operate, add, modify, maintain, and repair aboveground
and/ or underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump stations,
valves, treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults,
service boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements,
and to access the easement area for construction, repair, and maintenance of allowed
uses upon, over, under, and through right-of-way property owned by Storey County
and located approximately at the northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drive and the
northeasterly right-of-way of West Sydney Drive, McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center), Storey County, Nevada.

23




Commissioner Gilman recused from discussion and vote on this item

Planning Director Austin Osborne presented this item. Applicant is requesting to install a well
within the right-of-way of the road, serving companies adjacent to the area at Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center.
e This includes structures related to the well.
e This is a standard use in the area.
e There will not be a storage tank at this location. There are storage tanks located far away in
other area of TRI.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I, Commissioner McGuffey, motion to approve the grant conveyance to TRI General
Improvement District a perpetual right and easement to construct, operate, add, modify, maintain,
and repair aboveground and/or underground water well facilities, consisting of pipes, wells, pump
stations, valves, treatment facilities, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, manholes, vaults, service
boxes, cabinets, and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements, and to access the
easement area for construction, repair, and maintenance of allowed uses upon, over, under, and
through right-of-way property owned by Storey County and located approximately at the
northeasterly right-of-way of Peru Drie and the northeasterly right-of-way of West Sydney Drive,
McCarran (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center), Storey County, Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: SUP 2017-017 by Tyra Fuller. A Special Use Permit to
operate a historical re-enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-enactment
will include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation of a
picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for
shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

Planner Kathy Canfield presented this item. This is for blacksmithing activity located on C Street.
Ms. Fuller is currently operating under a Tourism Commission Special Permit.

The Planning Commission had numerous questions about Ms. Fuller’s operation but had no
objections.
e Asan amendment to the conditions, it was requested that the County be added as additional
insured to Ms. Fuller’s insurance. This has been added as an addendum.
e Another condition added - to not operate during “red-flag” days.
e Applicant has agreed to these conditions.

County Manager Whitten: The County would like to be more precise in the definition of windy days.
This is sustained wind in excess of 10 miles per hour - as predicted and available on the National
Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration’s site.

24




Mr. Osborne: The Fire District recommends simply - “no operation of the forge during red-flag
warning days”. Red-flag warning days are triggered not necessarily just by the wind. The Fire
District will also do periodic reviews to insure the premises are safe.

Mr. Whitten: There is a specific condition that a qualified person must remain physically on-site at
any time there is an active fire. Having seen this in operation - it is “way cool”.

Mr. Osborne: It's very authentic and consistent with what we want to bring here.
Vice Chairman McGuffey: How will applicant know when/if it is a red flag day?

Mr. Osborne: Flags go up on the fire station. A condition could be added that the applicant call the
Fire Department on windy days. The applicant is responsible for shutting the forge down and
checking with the Fire Department on windy days.

Mr. Whitten: The Fire Department usually knows well in advance if there is a red-flag warning,

Public Comment:

Applicant, Tyra Fuller: If you stop working with a coal forge for even five minutes, it goes out. At
times wind blows through the blower and it looks like smoke, but it is ash - which is not lit. Coal
does not spark like charcoal and is hard to light. A chalk board is put up during windy times
indicating the forge is not being lit due to the conditions. There is also a dome to be put over the
forge at times when applicant is away from the area. Basically, it's “burning rock”.

Mr. Osborne: Is there any objection to a condition that coal would be used and not charcoal.

Ms. Fuller: Does not use charcoal, other than to sometimes light the coal. Ms. Fuller was required to
use charcoal in the past, and did not like the results. Ms. Fuller indicated she has four means of
suppressing the fire: a fire extinguisher, the dome, sand, and buckets of water.

Ms. Canfield: Note this Special Use Permit is not transferable.

Findings of Fact:
This approval is for a Special Use Permit to operate a historical re-enactment of
blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number(APN)001-074-03. The historical re-enactment will
include the use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation
of a picket fence for a barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-
sided structure for shade/cover and the sale of metal works.

The subject property is located within a commercial area along C Street in Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada. The zoning is Commercial-Residential and the primary

use on the property is commercial, with the proposed use as an outdoor venue.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion

25




supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the contents
thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not under the circumstances of the particular
case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing in the
neighborhood of the subject property. The project is expected to meet the safety and
health requirements for the subject area. The use will also be subject to building and
fire plan review in order to ensure compliance with federal, state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards
on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal,
state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and Section
17.30, CR - Commercial Residential Zone.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular
case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or
working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially
detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in
the neighborhood or area of the subject property.

The proposed use will conform to all requirements of the Storey County Fire Protection
District as a condition of this Special Use Permit.

Chairman McBride: In regards to the condition of having applicant name the County as additional
insured, staff does not seem to know if this has been done in the past with a Special Use Permit.

Commissioner Gilman: At this point, it seems to be an unusual precedent.

Mr. Whitten: Believes this is a condition under the VCTC special event permitting. Anytime there is
a short, limited permit, this would be needed. In this case, Mr. Whitten agrees that this (condition) is
not necessary.

Mr. Osborne: Agrees with this as well. Staff’s original position was not to have it - this was added
by the Planning Commission.

Staff is recommending approval.

Commissioner Gilman: Strike the condition regarding the County being named as additional insured
(added by the Planning Commission).

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board
of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Commissioner
Lance Gilman, recommend approval of Special Use Permit 2017-017 to operate a historical re-

26




enactment of blacksmithing activities, located at 109 S. C Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-074-03. The historical re-enactment will include the
use of a small coal-fired forge, dressing in historical clothing, the installation of a picket fence for a
barrier between the public and blacksmith activities, an open-sided structure for shade/cover and the
sale of metal works, with the added condition that no operating shall occur under Fire District issued
red-flag warnings, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman
McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Business License Second Readings:

A. ALL THINGS ELECTRIC - Contractor / 4632 Sommerville Way ~ Reno (Contractor)

B. TUFF WRAP INSTALLATIONS, INC. - Contractor / 2080 Detwiler Road ~ Harleysville, PA
(Contractor)

C. SUPREME CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 5295 Coggins Road ~ Reno (Contractor)

D. SOUTH ATLANTIC CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 10226 Governor Blvd ~ Williamsport, MD
(Cont.)

E. ROCKWELL AUTOMATION - Contractor / 3000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon, CA
(Professional)

F. PRO-BEAM USA, INC. - Contractor / 3909 75th Street ~ Aurora, IL (Contractor)

G. HAS CONSULTING, LLC - Professional / 3450 Madison Road ~ Cincinnati, OH (Software
Developer)

H. ROSENBERGER HFT GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / PO Box 1260 Tittmoning, Germany
(Contractor)

I. LJS SOLUTIONS - Contractor / PO Box 969 ~ Sumter, SC (Contractor)

J. CC CLEANING SERVICE, LLC - General / 9115 Hummer Drive ~ Reno (General)

K. MEMORY LANE JEWELRY - Home Business / 340 Cartwright Rd ~ Reno (online sales)

L. PALETTI USA, LLC - Contractor / 145 Keystone Drive ~ Montgomeryville, PA (Contractor)

M. BAYSIDE INTERIORS, INC. - Contractor / 3220 Darby Common ~ Fremont, CA (Contractor)
N. JAPAN SYSTEMS CO., LTD - Professional / 1-5-17 Dojima, Kita-ku, Osaka JAPAN
(Professional)

O. HERO CO., LTD - Professional / 6-6-6 Nishinakajima Yodogawa-ku, Osaka JAPAN
(Professional)

P. PROMTEC INDUSTRIEMONTAGE GMBH - Contractor / Benzstrasse 2, GERMANY (installer)
Q. GO GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 956 ~ Crystal Bay, NV (roofing
contractor)

R. TK SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 6949 Buckeye Street ~ Chino, CA (Contractor-pallet racking)
S. BBS AUTOMATION PENANG SDN.BHD - Contractor / Plot 313 Pulau Pinang, Malaysia
(Contractor)

T. STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, INC. - General / 28161 N Keith ~ Lake Forest,
IL (labor)

U. CENTIMARK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5380 South Watt ~ Sacramento (roofing
contractor)

V. BRIDGE CRANE SPECIALISTS, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 940 ~ Kiefer, OK (Contractor)

W. PLAN B CONSULTANCY, INC. - Professional / 696 McVey Avenue ~ Lake Oswego, OR
(consultant)

X. AUTOMATION NTH, LLC - Professional / 491 Waldron ~ Lavergne, TN (Engineer)

Y. EATON CORPORATION - Professional / 1000 Moon Township, PA (Engineer)

27




Z. AMADOR STATELINES, INC. - Transportation / 1331 C Street ~ Sacramento, CA (bus
transportation)

AA. ATS ASSEMBLY AND TEST, INC. - Contractor / One ATS Drive ~ Nixom, MI (Contractor)
BB. KYZEN CORPORATION - Contractor / 430 Harding Industries ~ Nashville, TN (Contractor)
CC. MEI RIGGING & CRATING, LLC - Contractor / 3838 Western Way NE ~ Albany, OR

(Contractor)

DD. INNOVATIVE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. - Professional / 825 Watters Creek ~
Allen, TX (prof)

EE. SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. - General / 2555 USA Parkway (logistics) TRI

TRI
On behalf of Community Development, Mr. Whitten, requested that Item EE be continued. Items A
through DD to be approved.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to continue Item EE, Syncreon Technology, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Motion: I move to approve Items A through DD., Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Gilman, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=2)

26. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Gold Hill resident, Sam Toll: Has attended many County Commission meetings and in every one
the public comment section is at the beginning of the meeting - not the end. By placing public
comment at the end of the meeting, there is no way to know when that will be - if someone needs to
leave or go out. It sends a message to the public that their comments are less important than the rest
of the process. It would be in the best interests of the public to move (public comment) to where most
meetings have it, at the beginning. Mr. Toll acknowledged that there have been persons who take
advantage of and abuse the amount of time it takes - but, public comment is critical. The Board'’s
consideration is appreciated.

County Manager Whitten: Just received a message from the County’s analyst, Tom Gransbery, saying
for the first nine months - July through receipt of the last tax payment - the County’s SCRRT’s were a
positive gain over the guaranteed share, of $171,500 in excess.

27. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by call of the Chair at 1:30 PM

28. CLOSED SESSION: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the
purpose of conferring with County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4277 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the
regular commission meeting.

28




This item taken of the agenda.

Respectfully submitted,

vy s Rephoscs
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer

29




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
VEVAD
Meet;ng Date: Tuesday, July 18, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular [J Public Hearing Required [
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
3. Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4. Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for April, May, June 2017
6. Fiscal Impact: None X
Funds Available: n/a Fund: CJ Comptroller [
7. Legal Review Required: District Attorney [
8. Reviewed By:
[J Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
[J County Manager [0 Other Agency Review
9. Board Action:
J Approve [J Approved with Modifications
0 Denied O Continued

Agenda ltem No. 5 T




csimile: 775-847-0915
www.storeycounty.org

2017JUN 28 PM b: 54

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

July 3,2017 v

QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for April, May, and June, 2017.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of

NRS 4.100.
:g [
TD = p—_—

E.F. Herrington
Justice of the Peace

Subscrib‘ed and sworn‘before me
this > dayof S e\ e, 20077,

Justice Court Clerk

.




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT EOP LISTING - ACTUAL APRIL 2017

Acct Payee Disbursed Amount
170-000-34206 AA FEE - STATE (AOC) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 1,828.67
187-000-35104 AA FEE - JUSTICE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 294.00
001-000-35103 AA FEE - JUVENILE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 84.00
170-000-35114 AA FEE STATE (GENERAL) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 185.00
180-000-35101 AA FEE GENETIC MARKER ANALYSIS STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 130.00
001-000-34245 ATTORNEY REIMBURSMENT FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER

APPEAL FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
001-000-34204 BOND PROCESSING FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
001-000-34204 CIVIL FEES STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 405.00
187-000-35104 CIVIL FEES - COURT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 341.62
001-000-35101 CHEMICAL ANALYSIS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 25.00
001-000-34204 CERTIFIED MAILING STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
001-000-34204 COPY FEES S 13.13
001-000-35109 FINE - COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 4,133.00
187-000-35111 COURT FACILITY FEE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 430.00
170-000-34212 MARRIAGE FEE NV STATE TREASURER S 55.00
001-000-35109 OVERPAYMENTS TO COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
187-000-35044 PRETRIAL SERVICES ACCOUNT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 522.00
001-000-34204 RECORDS SEARCH STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 606.75
170-000-34217 SPECIALTY COURT FEE (MM) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 310.00
170-000-34206 DUI SPECIALTY COURT FEE NV STATE CONTROLLER S 50.00
001-000-34204 SMALL CLAIMS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER
170-000-34201 CENSUS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 1.00
170-000-35108 BOND FILING FEE VOC NV STATE CONTROLLER

DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 9,414.17
AFTER-HOURS MARRIAGE FEES P S 210.00




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT EOP LISTING - ACTUAL MAY 2017

Acct Payee Disbursed Amount
170-000-34206 AA FEE - STATE {AOC) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 3,372.00
187-000-35104 AA FEE - JUSTICE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 546.00
001-000-35103 AA FEE - JUVENILE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 156.00
170-000-35114 AA FEE STATE (GENERAL) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 361.00
180-000-35101 AA FEE GENETIC MARKER ANALYSIS STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 227.00
001-000-34245 ATTORNEY REIMBURSMENT FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
APPEAL FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
001-000-34204 BOND PROCESSING FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 112.50
001-000-34204 CIVIL FEES STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 108.75
187-000-35104 CIVIL FEES - COURT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 343.37
001-000-35101 CHEMICAL ANALYSIS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 35.00
001-000-34204 CERTIFIED MAILING STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
001-000-34204 COPY FEES STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 0.38
170-000-34208 DOMESTIC VIOLENCE FEES NV STATE CONTROLLER S 15.00
001-000-35109 FINE - COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 8,464.00
187-000-35111 COURT FACILITY FEE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 750.00
170-000-34212 MARRIAGE FEE NV STATE TREASURER S 35.00
001-000-35109 OVERPAYMENTS TO COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 2.00
187-000-29709 PRETRIAL SERVICES ACCOUNT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT ] 338.50
001-000-34204 RECORDS SEARCH STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 808.50
170-000-34217 SPECIALTY COURT FEE (MM) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 523.00
170-000-34206 DUI SPECIALTY COURT FEE NV STATE CONTROLLER S 250.00
001-000-34204 SMALL CLAIMS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
170-000-34201 CENSUS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER ) 1.00
170-000-35108 BOND FILING FEE VOC NV STATE CONTROLLER S 150.00
DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 16,599.00
AFTER-HOURS MARRIAGE FEES IP S 350.00




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT EOP LISTING - ACTUAL JUNE 2017

Acct Payee Disbursed Amount
170-000-34206 AA FEE - STATE (AOC) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 3,897.33
187-000-35104 AA FEE - JUSTICE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 600.00
001-000-35103 AA FEE - JUVENILE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 170.00
170-000-35114 AA FEE STATE (GENERAL) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 410.00
180-000-35101 AA FEE GENETIC MARKER ANALYSIS STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 204.00
001-000-34245 ATTORNEY REIMBURSMENT FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER $ 200.00
APPEAL FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
001-000-34204 BOND PROCESSING FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 56.25
001-000-34204 CIVIL FEES STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 423.75
187-000-35104 CIVIL FEES - COURT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 483.00
001-000-35101 CHEMICAL ANALYSIS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 180.00
001-000-34204 CERTIFIED MAILING STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S -
001-000-34204 COPY FEES STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 7.50
170-000-34208 DOMESTIC VIOLENCE FEES NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER S 20.00
001-000-35109 FINE - COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 7,387.00
187-000-35111 COURT FACILITY FEE VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 703.34
170-000-34212 MARRIAGE FEE NV STATE TREASURER S 50.00
001-000-35109 OVERPAYMENTS TO COUNTY STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 2.12
187-000-29709 PRETRIAL SERVICES ACCOUNT VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT S 1,047.38
001-000-34204 RECORDS SEARCH STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 897.75
170-000-34217 SPECIALTY COURT FEE (MM) NV STATE CONTROLLER S 476.00
170-000-34206 DUI SPECIALTY COURT FEE NV STATE CONTROLLER S 200.00
001-000-34204 SMALL CLAIMS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 63.75
170-000-34201 CENSUS FEE STOREY COUNTY TREASURER S 6.00
170-000-35108 BOND FILING FEE VOC NV STATE CONTROLLER S 75.00
DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 17,560.17
AFTER-HOURS MARRIAGE FEES JP S 420.00




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/17 Estimate of time required: 1 min

Agenda: Consent [X ] Regular agenda[ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Refund for Nancy Kruschke

2. Recommended motion  Approve

3. Prepared by: Jana Seddon
Department: Assessor Telephone:

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[ —

Agenda Item No. 5 T



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

Memo to: Storey County Clerk-Treasurer
Storey County Commissioners

July 10, 2017

Re: APN 1-246-11
Nancy Kruschke

It has come to our attention that the above referenced property has a faulty foundation due to
incorrect ground compaction. The foundation was the only improvement we picked up for the
2017-18 tax year. This improvement has no value as it will need to be demoed and the property
correctly graded and compacted and a new foundation poured. Please correct the 2017-18 tax
bill as follows:

Value Taxes Correct Correct Refund
Tax Year Assessed Paid Assessed Taxes Due
2017-18 §25,660 | $577.64 $20,418 $396.23 $181.41

Total Refund $181.41

Please advise the Treasurer to send a refund check for the difference to the above reference home
owners.

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 18, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0 min,
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for June 2017.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Treasurer

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Monthlr report prepared by the Treasurer.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fisecal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

Hemn 5 1t



00"

00"

00"
-00°000°000"T
-¥L°8¥%0'TEY
-€8°0%TL0Z
-1V Ze6‘g6e’e
-Z8°€20°€6
-15°628°SER
-€0"BTE
~IB ¥ZSLS
-LZ TIT900°€E
-S¥ 9¥0 02T

00"

-8L ETILE
-TLTBEPTIT
-99°29Z°L¥
-61°BE9'SEL
-6£7B¥6 TITT
9L°559

PO T6E'€E
-00°0§
~¥9°195°280'E
-S6°0%Z TT¥

00"

-00"099
-00°000000°T
-S07L9T 9L9"%
-Z0"8¥L ¥IL T
-€2°259°0L8°T
-0T S6E‘6YY

LETOLBOY
-tz 9L8°'%8

00"

00"

¥S°6%9°66

-S0E¥T
-TL STE’ €98

00"

-6T 186 ‘$8%
-T2 825 T¥8°62

00°00Z

0070002

00°00T'T

0E 6E¥

oL vee'ELT’®

05°T0T’6ST L

€S°8TLSZYSE

00"

00°

0L ETT'S

8v°9¥6‘e

00"

EONVTYE DNIGNS

T sbed

00~

[
00"
00"
00~
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00°
oo”
(I
oo-°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00°
00~
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00~
00"
00"
00"
oo-°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00°
00°
00"
00"
00"
00’
00"
00"
00
00"
00°

IN0 SaadsSRVaL

00~
00°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00°
00"
00"
00"
00°
0o
00
00"
00"
00
00"
00"
oo*
00"
oo*
00*
00"
00"
00"
00°*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00*
00°*
00"
00*
0o0*
00"
oc*

NI SddasSNYaL SYEHEDN0A NENoL

00"

00°

00°

00°

00"

00"
I1°958°SL
LB Z8S‘T
00"

00°

00"
-00°000°SLE
00"

00"

00*

00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

00*

00"
-00"T9T ‘99
00°TZL 62
00"

00"

00"
-0L*809
00°

00"

00" TLE'ZY
00"

00"

00"

00°

00"

oo0*
~EL'098'0L
00"

00"
69°TZ9'99€
00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

00°
-¥2°220°'¢€
00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

8E°ZTIS 1T 15°585°62T

00° 00"

09°S0T EYS ZETSTO'PT

S8 TESTH 297 9¥8°LIZ

00" 00"

00" 00"

00° 6L°888 VT
[ 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°9ZS

00" 00"

00" 00" €6

00" T6°800°9
00" -10°8ST

00" 90 TOE‘LT
00" T 0L 16
00" 00-0Z

00" 8T°¥06 0T
19°525°9T 99°0LE L
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

ZT TSE 0E PETEST T
00" 00"

00" L9°656LZT
00° 00"

00° 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00° 008

$0°TZE'2Z 0L 09€°0ST

00" 00"

00" ZOTEBT ‘¥
LE'SPO'92Z6 T6°852°'058°9

00" 00"

00" 00"

00 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"
-L6"Z6P'T6S'T -Z2°9TB LB 'L
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00° 00"

00" 00"
STI0aA%d SINTEsenes1a

LT0Z/90 ¥od

LIFHS ONIDNVIVE XTHINOW
ONILINNODOY SwdFANSVEAL
FIANSVIEL ALNAOD AZTIOLS

00°

00"

00"

00"

00"

060"
-L0"Z£6°669
-8L°968°€91

00"

00"
-¥0°0T8°LT

00"

00"

00"
~ZTLTEER'T
-897 09T
-00°569
-ZL EVZ'ES
-66° ¥6L
ST TILS'T
-9E"¥ST'8
-00°02Z

00"

-@Z 6LEZE

00"

00"

00"
-61°ZE6 'PY
-9T°SE£8'02
-ETCEF €T
-6Z°Z%S

00"

00"

00*

00°

00"
-00°0%8
-28°252'6¢

00"
-E6°0TT
-0B7LLY‘ZET' ¥

00"

00"

00°

0o0°

00"

00"

9Z°STT'#19'S

00*

00"

00"

58"

00"

S1dId0FE

00*

00*

00"
-00'000°000°T
-£9°9¥1°ZLS
-€8° 09T L0T
-LE'0B6‘TER'T
-9€' 681161
-15°628‘S¢ER
-£0°BTE
-95'€03'vS
-LZTTIT1E9°2
~S¥'9%0 ‘02T

00"
-90°9TE‘SE
-£0°8LZ 1T
-99°099 ‘9%
-BE €9V ‘869
-6E'$66 01T
-ST ¥L0 ‘ST
-¥L %2108
-00° 0S5
-ZB*YOELEO'E
-¥6'BLYZEY

00"
~00°099
-00°000°000°T
-Z9*091°589‘1
-98'ZI6‘E€PL’T
~LL'FLTSLE'T
-TB*EZL 'TEY

LE"OLS‘OF
-LZ°5L8°%8

00°*

00*

¥S*6%9'66
-S0"£0T
-0€" €88 526

00*
-82'ESD‘68F
-8E"9LL'6BY EE

00-00Z

00°'000°T

00" 00T'‘T

0E°6€Y

0L ¥68'8LT S

05202 '6ST L

DL ¥E6 ‘E6Z'6E

00"

00"

DL'EZT’S

€9°S¥6 ‘8

00"

qEYME0E " TWH

SaNnd TTY TYLOL

ONIQTOH SEXYLI aFuNDIS
ONIMIOH SEXVI AFENDASNO
F¥IS LOACOUE TYLIAYD
aI¥ TYALOW

ZONIOWEWE HNII
IDTHISIA FHII
NOISSINWOD WSI¥NOL DA
LOELO¥d TIVE DA

aNns OaT8 TIVL S.JITEIHS
SLNWYD TY¥IaEd

MOWEAYE IEL

aNna MEva

1aN 1L

aNnd LEN0D EDIISAr
INZAIIOV INEOIANI
1¥N0D IDTHISIA

FIVIS

aNNd AOCTONHDEL

1930 T00HDS

TOCHDS

LIN0D SNEA

O9¥VE STIIM GNOE vasn
WAMES FAYALQ VINIDEIA
ALID VINIDNIA J0 NMOL
TIIH TI0D IO NMOL
NOIIVZITISVLS

WALSAS ¥aLvM

aNNE FANIONELSTHANT
SIDEro¥d TYLIAYD
NOTLISINOOY INSWAINDE
EDIAN¥ES

AIV THALOW

IDINISIA EWIZ
ADNEOWEWT FEIA

=1

NOTIALIIS®A

Savoy

X¥L- FONVLSISSY LNEIOHIANT
TYOTAEA LNEDTIANT
TENENED

HOSSESSY HSWD ALLId
44I4EHS HSYD ALLEd
HSWD ALL3d

SNICD 10

INNODOVY dIOT AIVLS
I@AYYHW AINOW OD¥Wd STIAM
INNODDY DD 09¥Wd STIIM
SHTYS AI¥EIOEd ¥ 40 €
SQAVYOD MNVE SSENISNE
ANVE NI HSYO

ONICTIOH I1¥N0D IDIWISIA
HSYD WASN OD¥W STTAM

006
ooe
082
0Lz
092
0SsZ
0g€2
0zz
0Tz
90T
002
06T
687
L8T
S8t
0BT
0LT
S91
091

1 24
SET

0z1
o1t

060
080
oLo
090
0S50
Svo
0¥0

0EC
¥Zo
ozo
STO
oTo

“NOTIATIoSHA 1oV

85782701 LI/TIL/LO :

uny

00TZYUL ON 3x0day



00°00S'T LT/€2/9
00°008'L LT/€2/9
00" 9€T L1/€2/9
00°Z60°'T LT/€2/9
1€ %9 LT/€2/9
TIL°6LT LT/€2/9
00°00T LT/€2/9
00°00€ LT/€2/9
00°126°2 LT/€T/9
GL"9€E LT/€2/9
£€5°€LS LT/€2/9
€0 T9¥% ‘€1 LT/€2/9
TE"L99 LT/€2/9
00°LST LT/€2/9
ST°90¢€ LT/€2/9
99°29 LT/€2/9
0S5°508 LT/€2/9
05°90T'2 LT/60/9
00°00S L1/60/9
00°00T L1/60/9
0S5 ¥6¢€ LT/60/9
06°22 L1/92/s
6T 9L LT/92/S
00°00T LT/ 9T/S
00°08% LT/2T/S
00°%%0'T LT/LT/E
80°¥%28'1T LT/€0/€
SV LT LT/€0/T
L8 0% 91/60/TT
0082 9T1/60/2T
69°%29 91/60/2CT
00°89L'1T 9T1/LZ/0T
LY BVE’'Z 9T/¥%1/0T
00" 9% 9T/9T/6
00°%T 91/91/6
00" ¥¥E’T 91/20/6
£%°8 91/20/6
00°9% 91/20/6
00°9% 9T/61/8
29°62 91/61/8
£6°6T 9t/ze/L
6T°ST 91/80/L
00° 00T 91/80/L
veE ST 91/01/9
00°TO8 9T/8T1/€
80" %1 S1/81/6
00°SL ST1/%0/6
00 8L S1/%2/L
8T 06 S1/92/%
S0°98 ST/2T/9S
00°06 ST/21/%
SL 6€E ST/LT/¥Y
16°9T ST/LT/¥®
00°09 ST/LT/%
Junowy I32d 2940
LT/TE/9 - oowoouo

666666 UbnoIyul T

ON
T abed

syoouyn burpueisino
ILNNODOVY Sw¥3INSYHIL

ONIINIVd 44170094

ONI 'SAND0¥Ad

a OTIONY ‘INIILHEA

ANVAWQOD ® SETMONM AHTAHA
YALNID TYNOIDIE TVINd AIN
aIAv¥d ‘XISANIT

TYId TYNOIDEY HOHYI mMIYT
S HLIEM ‘NOsdnr

SNOIHSYA MOANIM NOZIJOH
¥YSSITEW ‘dTaId

dT SYOTIIAYYII

OTT ‘SNOIIYDINQWWOD D24
avD TYIDVEWOD SIH ODLSOD
SENIONA TTYHS NOSHYD

JAYS 3 SSYIHD ‘MDOT M ® D
TYNOISSHAOEd ¥ SSANISNH
SIMET LLODS ‘T1a¥dng
SESIYANILNT MVHAd NNS
AYINNOD AOGMOD SVYAYAEN

S HLI ‘NOsSdne

SIMAT LLODS ‘TIaddNd

ONI JFINIDLIY SAVVW INIVS
(¥D) ONI 0D NUDIYOW AWA

S HLIEM ’'NOSdNr

JI¥S ¥ SSYID ‘AD0T M ¥ D
00 FOAYD AYHHATAO NHSNYH
JYOD ONIMONIL FLITIFANID
TIYWYL NUYDIW

NOSY[ ‘TIAVHNYA

OT1 EDILON ISHL

HSYFEWIW JTYSHTOHM ODISOD
SHSTAJHALNT MVdEd NS

¥SIT ® LLODS ‘NOSIAYW
SNOISSHIAWI HAILYAONNTI
NYad ' SYOWAVH

SHSIEAEELNA Mvdd NNS
ALSETHED ¥ NNIATO ‘NOILHOIHAT
SNOISSHIAWI FIAILYAONNI
ILOIV¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S

oL HIgd0od ‘1SIng

NOSY[ ‘SNIMMYH

q¥vod ONIZYY¥D VAYAEN
YANOL ‘MOTIVH

HI¥YdL ‘HONA'T

ONI DID0TIAJI0D

NOOVIY FI¥YW NNY ‘ATIEON
YHLIEYL ‘NOSHOH

ONI 999 HHI¥HL

HONH 'I¥ODJJHAL

A¥¥Yd ¥ VANIT ‘¥3dId
NHOL ‘@ENSHIANA

NHOL ‘AVES

aQYHD ‘SNVYAH

HYJ09dd ‘3IANILI

sweN @9Aorduyg/aopusp
woxd

#3(03yD woxg

Z1:62:0T

ALNNOD AHEJOLS

6967%0%
L6LVOY
S68E07
TLEEOD
820%0%
8v0S0%
26620T
9S0S0¥
S80S0%
00TSO¥
SLE6EOY
LSLYOY
0Z000T
SS6S00T
SE00T

£9V00T
TLIEOY
268¢c07%
060S07%
990S0¥%
TLOEOY
S6€002
LE6ZOY
950S0¥%
SE£00T

€2050%
¥S900T
6C9¢0¥
S00S0%
8T8%0¥%
LYZE0T
2680V
£99%0%
0vce0T
LLBOOT
z68E07
€96707%
O¥EECT
LTILIOT
9t6707
806%07
96ZT10T
S68V07¥
€LB8VOT
LLIEOY
L69F0V
9ELYOV
8E6E0V
9L9%0%
0LOVOT
c8telv
619%07
T129%0%
6S6€£0%

00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T

# uosasg bos jyueg

T swTy uny

LT/TT/LO

SLTe8 AD
$LTe8 MO
TLT68 2D
69168 D
8GT68 D
LPT68 D
Y7168 D
OPvTe8 AD
CcETI68 D
IZT68 D
02168 D
81168 D
TIT68 D
00T68 D
S6068 2D
¥6068 MO
£6068 O
85068 2D
L2068 D
60068 2D
99688 D
82688 XD
81688 2O
6888 MO
Z2ZL8s MO
0szZg8 D
6TI88 2D
Sg6eL8 2O
0¥SL8 D
$ESLS  MAD
6E¥LE 2D
SPIL8 XD
L9698 D
€¥L98 D
8€L98 D
9L998 D
¥2998 2D
T1998 2D
8€598 D
evvys8 2D
S6T98 D
£€L088 XD
TZ2098 D
T9LS8 D
66678 D
06€E8 D
0SZES D
LT6C8 XD
6528 MO
SL¥Z8 MO
yovzcg O
€L6T8 D
LEE6TS JAD
TZ6T8 MO
# o9y di
: 92eQ Uny

Z9LTIE :ON 2xoday



z

abed

18°898'8L i Te3l0L
18°898'8L 1 TR0 ueqg
00°009'TT :Tea0g odAL
00°SLE'TT LT/0E/9 ONIINIVE HAATTOAYA
00°522 LT/0E/9 (DAY  FOIJLJ0LS0d SN
69 EFE’ST :Te30g odAL
SLTEPS LT/0€/9 YHIIEVL ‘NEDVE-NOSHOH
TIT°1ST LT/0€/9 LT0D ‘SSHH
ZZ E€T0'T LT/0€/9 O DEYD ‘SSEH
00°0IE'T LT/0€E/9 LZZ¥4% DOSSY ¥HALHODIA HJIA
ST 1v¥ LT/0€/9 SHNd NOINN/HWDSAY
96619 LT/0€/9 XVIL dHLAY SNI HSYM/AAAdWE
00° 0§ LT/0€/9 0D SNI HJ4IT DIJAIOVA
0Z°96¢ LT/0€E/9 X¥1 414V OWVIJdY/QEd dWd
82 T06 LT/0€/9 NY'Id SZT OVIdY/d3d dWH
0G°TED0'S LT/0€/9 dWOD aaE¥YESIA
00°SL9 LT/0E/9 (XYL-¥E14AY) dWOD aEIyHARA
€L°0S LT/0€/9 SZT "SNI HAIT TYINOTIOD
1€°8 LT/0E/S INIAIDOY TYINOTOD
88°668 LT/91/9 L 9F¥D ‘SSHH
00°0TE'T LT/91/9 LZZV7# DOSSY ¥HLHOISL HAIA
€6°9€L 91/80/% HONVENSNI FJIT
€STEPT'T ST/60/0T dnAng FFAXOTAWEH /TYOIAANW
€L°05 ST/%1/8 GZT “SNI HAIT TYINOTOD
TL 0T y1/S1/8 ¥O/NOILDETIOD dJHA JATIJHHS
Z1°sz6'1S iTe30l 3dAL
00°00T LT/€2/9 HAT SEITIM
GZ°00€ LT/€2/9 DLOA
9€° 95T LT/€2/% NOSYL ‘' TIAVHNYA
9%°09¢ LT/€2/9 ODYDIHD J0 ALISIYEAINN
00°2S0°Z LT/€2/9 SA0EMOD HANOLSHWOL HHL
05°€62’'€ LT/€2/9 SESTIVAYALNT YVAd NNS
LE 60T LT/€T/9 APITO 0D IS
00°8%T LT/E2/9 TYINFANOYIANT WAYHIS
0% 90T LT/€2/9 ONTI SYOLNETILSIA NAVWIHHS
00°8 LT/€2/9 ONI ¥FINFDIIY SXAYYW INIVS
Jjunowy 23BQ M23Yd suweN @24or1dug/Iopusa
LT/T€/9 - 00/00/0 wWOII
666666 Ubnoaul T #}09yD woad

s3yoayp burpuelsing

DNILNNODOVY SudFANSTIAL

XALNNOD XHIOLS

C1:62-0T

696¥%0¥ 00
SY8TOT 00
€TCT 00
61CT 00
Z11 00
105006 00
20%006 00
LOEOO6 00
£0€006 00
Z0€E006 00
T0e006 00
00€£006 00
662006 00
102006 00
002006 00
211 00
105006 00
£€TT006 00
LOTOO06 00
102006 00
ST9006 00
660S0% 00
£86€0¥% 00
S00S0V 00
Zesvoy 00
T06€0% 00
268¢07 00
LTLTOT 00
Z9%C0T 00
T80S0% 00
S6€£002 00

# uosasdqg bag

sutl uny LT

66T
66T

66T
66T
661
661
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T

66T
661
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
661
661
66T

jued

/TT/LO
zoLTag

€CC68 dan
¢Tce8 d4da
689S¢ dd
8895¢ ¥d
L89GE ¥d
$895¢ d¥d
#8955t dd
£€89G¢E ¥4
289G6¢ dd
T89St A4
0895t ¥d
6L9G€ ¥Ud
8L9S¢ A4
LL9SE ¥d
9L9St dd
TL9GSE Ad
699S¢ ¥4
€T0SE d¥d
PLLYPE ¥d
SO0LVPE ¥d
TECPE dd
8TZ68 D
60268 2D
80268 MO
L0Z68 2AD
z0zZs8 D
00268 D
96T68 2D
06T68 D
98T68 D
€8T68 D
# oayd di
: @3ed uny
:OoN 3xoday



BLTIE9BY S 669 § - $ 2607 $ SII660LS IS6I6S $ 1680 S B8909T § €60IT § TI'SYB'T $ 6ZIVS S SITTLST § SQEWST'S8 $ BESTL9 $ ZwEwSZT $  TVLOLANVYED

$ $§ = § = $§ = $ = B = S 1510 2d
$9'T8 $ ISET $ 110 $ €0 $ SsTO % [Za $ 65€ $ 198 $ LEEY $ 1510 Xd
= $§ & § = g = $ = $ = $ LSIa XW
S $ - s - 5 - s - $ 1510 24'xd
2590
“6ST6t 6 660 § - & (60 § STEr ¢ 6505 6 SvO 6 86T § 160 § 0851 & ZZ€ 6 Tber § €969 S - S 95v9T _ §  D3SNNIVIOL
awAedianpg
9T'9TE $ s $ 9TLT $ 98T S WY $ LEO $ STT $ sto  $ goEt $ 96T $ (01T S s $ 8'SET $ LY02/9T02
£U'SL $ T § 99'€ $ vt $ E8'8 $ 800 $ €T0 $ 910 $ e $ 180 $ vEZ $ 9rzn $ - $ wse $  ¥OINdIVIOL
18TH S o0 $ 802 S LTL S 10§ $ S00 S ET0 S 600 § ST $ 90 S E€T $ 169 S TE9T S 9T02/ST0¢
29'€€ $ €0 $ 8s'T $ s¢ $ 8€ $ 00 $ oT0 $ w00 $ oI $ ss0 $ T0T $ szs $ sbeT $ |ea03gng
29°€€ S €50 S 85T $ sTL $ 8¢ S €00 $ 0T0 $ 00 S OCT $ S€0 S 10T S SCS $ 3 as $ ST0Z/v10C
- $ ¥T0Z/£102
£T0T/TT02
- $ T102/1T02
- s 1102/0T02
. S 0T0Z/600C
c $ 6002/8002
- $ 8002/£002
- $ £002/9002
HOSSISSY
Poester S - 8 - 8 - § S6t601S Ibss@s S Sesp § E68ST § /LG0T o I1EGI8T S BCLES 5 GSIDSST § 10908 § SE9IL9 S 68VEEZl S SIVIOL14043Y
. $ paindag punyay
vegst'sy § - $ - $ S6'/PE'OT$ TY'SS8'S ¢ SEBP ¢ E€6'8ST $ LL60T § TE6ZV'T $ 8TLES ¢ SI'PSS'T ¢ 21990'8 § BEINL9  § GRPEEZT § @IWNIISTIVIOL
sruszw $ - § = $ DVEE6'T § 9L680°E § LEST 0§ O00V8 § SS'SS 0§ 20S96 S BTEBT $ TTIT8 S vELSITY § SpS8O0'S  § E€EU6Y $ LI/9TIVIOL
- $ $535SY |eads
SLUSTT S VrEE6'T $ 9L680E $ (EST S 00V8 $ SSSS S T0S96 S BTEBT $ TTTIT8 S YELSTY S SYSBOS  § gEwev S £L102/9102
6rsss'sc ¢ - § 0 - $ - ¢ ISHTOB § S9SL'T $ 86TZ $ S6bL 0§ VS $ 6ZV9R  $ 00WSZ $ 6'ZEL  $ 8808 §$ €6°0£9'T $ 9S'TYEL § MO WIOL
ssvove $ - $ - § ¢ S ETIVE'T $ EEWLIT S 0L6 S 98TE  $ 09TT S TSL9E S €8LOT $ BOOIE $ TTLIYT  $ £60€9T S LL48TT S 9707/5107
S5955Y |enads
STWET $ EEVLIT ¢ O0L6 S 9ETE S 09TT  $ TSULSE S €8LO0T $ 600TE S TTLIYT § €60f9T S LLL8TT § 9102/5T02
121819 § 28909 ¢ ZETIGS'T § 8TET $ £SEv $ 29%E 0§ L9 § LToT $ S8Iewy § 9STI6TT § - $ 6LwLT'S § |e3oiqns
£8'68V'E $ §90T8 $ 8YIZY § I9¢€ $ T9TL S 9Lt $ 9STET ¢ TLUBE S 96TIT  $ TYO8S s - $ soweET § sT02/v102
ssassy (e1ads
S90T8 S 8YIZY $ 19¢€ $ 9TT  $ 9L $ 9STET ¢ TwWweE S 96TIT  § THO8S $ SouET § s102/v102
68SSLT S TT998 S 8EL6¢ S 9vT S BI8 S 9¥S S 816 $ 0€4Z S TO6L S €S°60v § = S €5°196 $  YI0Z/ET0T Ie30L
Ssassy |e13adg
68SSLT S TT998 S 8EL6L 5 9V S 6I'8 S 9v's $ 86 $ 08LZ S T06L S €560V $ €5°£96 $ vI0Z/€T0T
07995 S 0s9te  $§ sesLe $§ LT $ 857 $ 90S $ S6'S8 $ 8rsT § 9reL S 6T'6LE $ 98568 $ £10Z/2102
(118724 A T09sL $ S6vsT S 1T $ WL S 69 S 896L S TYET  $ w9 $ OTTSE $ 6V'678 $ TT0Z/110T
290192 S SSOIT'T & 909:Z S S6T $ 0s9 S vEY S 69'EL $ 912 R dars:] S 60'SZE S S0'89L S 1102/0T0Z
LsL0ge $ 9T'S69'T $ EV'96 $ 080 $ 99T $ TI€S $ 0T0E $ (88 $ €95C $ 192ET S 00°0TE s 0T02/6002
00'SL S 743 $ 196 S 800 S L0E S 60 S €97 S T9¢€T S 181€ S 6002/800C
= S 8002/L00T
- S £002/900Z
- $ 9002/5002
wi0L %ZY¥/V  LANJYAO  %9¥/V  S3ILTYNId  ¥3W3I/3WId  HLNOA JDVANI  GIWANI VIS NOV dvd aa HIS dOHIS aro 1SNani TVHINID YIUNSYIUL
S9T  90S95-T00 YOTYE-TO0 100 0sz 100 S8T 010 oLt 090 091 0ST 00S-100 100

LI0Z dunf



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 18, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 0 min
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $406,196.40 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,765,796.11

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Treasurer

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4, Staff Summary: Attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: Attached

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




TYNIJL
-]

abeg

HAANSVHAL

FITTOELAWOD

YINOISSTIWWNOD YINOISSINWOD

NVWAIVHD

:SI9UOTSSTUWO] JO pIeog Ajuno) Aaxo3ls 3yl Aq pasoxddy

0% 96T '90% i pasangsta
6T 0€EY'8T :1030npaQg O3 IIFSURIL IISN
70 TSS‘ET 19714 deg ITQ uo pxaIX Spag 2aLorduz
TL'LLE'96T :31sodag 3931Tq 2@2Aordug
80°808°T 809y 2afordum
09'€8S’‘6 1S)03Y) I02DNPaq
8L S¥8°G9 1S4dL4F I0I I9ISUBI] X38N
junouwy 23fed # pag

6 B8 L 9 S v €
LT/S2/90 :33ed pus-poTa3d LT/DE/90 :33ed 23Yyd

I338TH9y oaYyd
WHLSAS TIO¥AYd ALNNOD AFIOLS

/4 duz

z 1 :sdnoxy 1roaked
aernbay :adAl TTCadRg

Te30L

T=30L
Te3l0L
Te30L
Telol
Te30L

Te301

# aa
/3o3ud

6252 2T LT/62/90 :uny
Y01S0¥a :3dey



T

0z°zs
00°0TT

ST°90¢€

99°29

05°s08

00" 00¢€
00°0S€E
127691
00°6LZ
00°0s
¥8°67%
81°0LY

v8 6%S 9L

vSTEPT

00°005'¥%

LY TET

TYLOL
ADEHD

obeg

SEET
66" 9¢€
0T 6S
kAR 4
62 €T
L9z
8V 6T
6¥v°S

SE° 0V
S6°62
967 6€
-~86°1T

gzrzs
0070TT

0S° LY
$9°8SZ

99-29

00-0ZL
0S-¢<8

00°00€
00°0SE

T2 6917
00°6LT
00-0S

¥8° 67

BT 0LY
ZS'LES’9
TETELY 1Y
00°6€5°82
SZ'IY
Y18
vZ'TL

z2s 01T
25°'91
LL™8

08 €1
007005’V
88°€0T
6S°LZ

LINONOWY

L1608 LT/€Z/9 AO0LS A3M -W¥E a3

L1608  LTI/€Z/9 LIN MIVATA -T00d
L1608 LT/€2/9 2¥d IINV -¥a7T LVD
LT608 LT/€2/9 TYES LAHS NI 906ZE¥d
L1608 LT/€2/9 LAVHS JANWVAD VH¥ -906Z€dd
LTE08 LT/€2/9 SAVl Fdld
L1608 L1/€2/9 STATHM dWIND dOHS
LTE08 L1/€2/9 dWT TILN TL-F
L1608 LT/€2/9 dV¥D d0H -£0LMd
L1608 L1/€2/9 STTNILILYE YWY-dOHS
LTE08 L1/€2/9 INIVd ‘S¥ILTIA
L1608 L1/€2/9 NOILDENNOD ONITIIE
Z6608 L1/ez/9 WIAMIES ¥ HALYM
16608 LT/€T/9 ¥IVAIA NDOT FEOIAI0 ZId
£1608 LT/€2/9 SAEN -700d
£€1608 LTI/€2/9 SATA -dOHS
96608 LT/€2/9 QISANESIA LNIWHSINYYD
09608 L1/€2/9 LT0Z ‘%T-1 =INAC

0v608 L1/ee/9

L1018 LT/€T/9

6€608 LT/E2/9 TOEWWD AL H0VAdNS MOTIE
06608 LT/€2/9 HLSYSHLOOL ® OOdWVHS
91608 LY/E2/9 1 AVEH’TIVL ZE8L9/TEBLIOS
6€0T8 L1/€2/9 SNOILIWVDINOWWOD
ZS0T8  LTI/EZ/9 FOIAYES EONIZIINODETHL
8€608 LT/EZ/9 dOHS LdI9 ¥0d XO00d
ST608 LT/ET/9 J ONIAVYE LIYHASY JTIW 9
51608 LT/€2/9 HAVE LOT X¥Wd S.AdVN LS
ST608 LT/€2/9 ONIAWd 1S NOSIYD
v1608 LT/€2/9 HD
71608 L1/€2/9 dOHS
$1608 Lt/€2/9 dOHS
8EQTR LT/€2/9 A¥ANOYT YL 1S
8€0T8  LTI/EZ/9 ANANOWT SL LS
8EOT8 L1/€2/39 AJANOYT 2L LIS
BEOT8 LT/€2/9 X9ANNYT TL 1S
SI0T8 Lt1/e2/9 L0-26 rO¥d HAO¥AWI dAIYM
LEOTS LT/€2/9 SHIT34NS SWI
LEOT8  LT/€2/9 SHITAANS SWE
#SNVAL qLva # 0/a NOILdT¥OSEA IDIOANI

LT/€2/9 MILSIDAE ADIHD
XINQOD RHEOLS

SILIVE OINVY ALID IVYLIAVD

NIWAAOQAAWI "IVIIANTD NOANVD

ONI SEDTIA¥ES T-TWD

Zd¥S ¥ SSYID ‘¥DOT M % D

TYNOISSHI0¥E ¥ SSENISNE

SIMET LIODS ‘T1a¥¥nd
NATOL AENLIHM 'QACH

“ONI SNOTILONAOAd SNENOE
ONI ANVAWOD ¥aANYVE €0d
OTT INIOANDVIH
SEASIUAAELNE A¥dId

IA¥ES FONIUFANODITIL IAZLY

ONI ONIHSITENd VIQVOAV

ONIAYA % DNIAVED XEAV

ONI QDS

OTT MDOLSWOD TIV

ONI NON SVDMIV
YOANIA

LI/22/90
steTEd

86068
LEOES

96068

S6068

¥6068

€6068
Z6068
16068
06068
€8068
88068
L8068

98068

S8068

v8068

£€goéee

ZB068

JIEWON
XD3HD
23eq uny
ON 3jxoday



(4

£€0°¢8
Z0° L1

TE"L99

00" E6T

£Z°T0%'T

00" ve

Z8°612'ST

SLTPLT'T
007 0S€
Z6°C61

L1509

00°SLT

00" zoc

00°LST
S0°LEE

€6°L9¢E

TYLOL
MDEHO

abeg

9976V
L0 32T
18°90€
€0°S
6LTLTT
TL Y0
90°0L9
BE" LS

€0°¢Z8
Z0° L1

BE B89
-L0°12
00°6
00°veT
05" L6
007052
0S"6%T

00°v0T
€2 06L

00" 92

00°8LE L
zZ8"TvZ L
SL'YLTT
00°0S€
267261
20" S
10707
z0°o08

0T 00%
I0°0%
10°0%
00°SLT

00" 10T
go-totT

00°LST
907 LEE
80761
86°6V
PLET
LO"ES

INNOWY

12608
12608
12608
T2608
Tz608
12608
TZ608
TZ608

2¢Zo1s
S£608

22608
[4439]:]

14434
Y7608

0so0Te
60018
£9608
£9608
£9608

£€v608

TS608
vsoT18

950718
6V608
1ve08
€2018
800718
L2018
ovote
ovets
vL608
82608

0zZeoe
0Z&08

6TE08
81608
L1608
L1608
L1608
L1608

#SNWIL

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€Z/9
LI/€Z/9
L1/€z/9
L1/€2/9
LY/€2/9
LT/€2/9

L1/e2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9

Lr/ee/o
L1/€2/9

L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

L1/€2/9

Lt/ez/e
Lr/€ee/9

L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2Z/9
L1/€2/9
LTI/ET/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

L1/E2/9
L1/€z/9

Lt/ee/9
L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/ET/9
LI/ET/9
L1/€2/9

JLva

# 0/4

¥ LNO TV¥ES ‘dl1d FENT-FHId
ASYD VLTIIA NVAL-066TIMd
0D ‘ATA dXET'IVES -90£950S
TYaS TIFHM -09¥%LS0S
HOLOTD ‘IT3€ A-90£9S0S
HOLIMS -9T8LEMd

ATISSY E@NH -0€0ESANAS
YOSNIANOD -90€9508

INHE4008 ¥AINED QOOMNDIOT
ONOL‘W¥EHL ‘LSHL ENINOTHD
SNOISSHONOD 100d Z1/9
aNnday XVl Z1/9

LTOZ ‘¥T-T INOAL

v/a

SONILSOd lanHand

¥LZ-LT QO

YLZ-LT MO

ISIT XVL 1Ea

NOII¥NOO EILLOE ¥=d 1$

¥O4dNS TVANNY NV ONIDVWI
8TAd IAd INIVW TYONNY

LINVHOTSA0LS

TVNNNY DONILSOH €3M
SHITEANS WOOALSTA
10000-S600252L6 QUVOUIV
ENOHd SHOMNH

¥YivVaQ aver
TO000-LTOLSOZ¥PELIDOVY
T0000-208LEOCYELIOOV

LT/9 I4IM YO0ZZTOLBLEHANI
I¥ES-¥aT L¥D

L¥04dns X100
I30d44Ns X100

INIVA MVYS NIVHD
L¥0ddns -8¥BTSOS
SOSIa -71004
XdLd-dOHS

2dV¥L TVaS -¥a1
HOLINMS -Wd" 0¥

NOILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

LI/EZ/9 WIALSTOIY ADFHO

ALNNOD AZHEOLS

ONI ATdéNS 01NVY LLOITTH
NOILWIO4¥0D SHA HSIA

AN ODSTY-SHSIAJVALNA d¥a

dIVD TYIDYIWOD S¥YH 0DLS0D

OTT TIIW Q709 MJO0LSWOD

(DA) FTOINOUHD MOOLSWOD

IVONNOA A¥HLIWED MDOLSWOD

T0S LNWONW WNDOd ZLITIWOD
ONI ILSEHD ALINNWWOD
ANYdKWOD ONIHSITENE =02

A1ddNS AVVIINYS TVALNID

dTHSYINLAYY ODT1TED

d¥0D INIAWAINDOH NYWHSYD

ONI FTTISVO
SANIONZ TIVWS NOSWWD

ONI Q304 TVLIEWD

YOANHIA

Lt/Tz/9%0
STETEd

v1iT168
€1168

Z1ies

TTT68

0TTER

60168

80168

LOTeg
90168
S0T68

v0168

£0T68

Z0T68

T0T68
00168

66068

AIEWON

ADIHD
33eq uny
ON 3xoday



€

CELPL'T

00°9S9°‘€ET

go-Lsz’s
SL™9¢E

€S ELS

€E6°6LE'T

€0 199 €1

LT 8L 0T

297 81T
00°0%S

66°8€E’T

TYLOL
ADEHO

abeg

7S %09
8L°Z¥S

00°008°T
00°002°T
00°o0zZL'E
00°9LS'9
00°09¢

00-LSZ'8
SLT9¢€

1Z2°%92
68°0%2
£Ev°89

L6°21¥
967996

€0 IOV €T

SL'EBV'Z
0s°ZeéT1
0s"Ls6‘e
00°0T12Z
Zy wLz’'z
00°S¥S‘T
0S"LYVT
0S°L90°T

T9 8TIT
00°0%S

Lz ez

oL Se

ST T6T
86769
S9'PIT
S9'¥TT
¥9°L

S0° %S
217 0T
v6" 1Y
¥9°L

-02°2Z6€
20’0zt
88 v¢€
26821
8L 2T
oz L

S9TPIT
S9°PTT
8L EY

INNOWY

£2608
£Z608

8S0T8
85018
85018
8S018
BSOT8

82018
86608

£6608
€6608
voots

62608
62608

18608

0EOTB
0E0TS8
QEO0TS8
0E0T8
0E0TS
0£0TE
0018
0E0TR

ZL608
vzotis

12608
12608
12608
12608
TZ608
TZ608
TZ608
12608
1z608
TZ608
12608
1Z608
1Z608
12608
1Z608
12608
1Z608
1Z608
TZ608
1Z608

HENWAL

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€2T/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9

LT/€2/9
Lr/ez/9
LI/€e/9

L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

L1/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/ET/9
LT/e2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
Lt/€2/9
Lt/€2/9
LT/€2/9

L1/€z/9
L1/€2/9

L1/€2/9
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
LT/EZ/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€T/9
LT/E2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LI/€2/9

2LYa

802 T78a / OET INN-I¥L
9%T 1TSA / 0ST TINO M1T

NINaY

NINAQY DI7TdNé 1Sd
NIWAY DITENd 1LSd
HWOLETST

NIWAY OITENd Lsd

LNIWIEOVTIdEE OV Wd A¥ES
VISEL OL TTIWS XFaZd
TIVL INVAOAd

TIVL INVdOdd

ONINIVEL O HI¥ON T1vT

STYIYALYIW ONIEWNTE -T00d
STYIYNIELYN - ¥ELYM

JONVITTEAANS FSNOHIANOD
IONVHD ZdANNOH SNSNED SN

HOUNIVIA NIVML XdVW
SHOIA¥IS SIH

II ESVHd 1DE,O¥d dALYM DA

LOT ONIX¥WA ¥ TTYM HO

II ESVHd JLOHELO¥d WALYM DA
II JSVH4 LOHL0¥d ¥IALVM DA
IT dSVYHd JOHLO¥d HIALYM DA

JHLNID dOOMADOT -FIII0D

F0T440 M¥ETO - NOILDHAASNI

ACQOE JTLLO¥YHL TTE9S0S
Z6PEIX DLW 90£950S

ASY JASNEANOD 90€£950S
AdTINd -90€9508

e/t 9TBLEMG

z/1 ~TTE9SOS
AALIIA FdNT €20990S
¥YV¥IM ISOd -09%LSCOS
I¥ES TI0 09%LSOS
NOD¥AW ‘Zdd LNV 8¥8TSOS
ATLTIA FEOT 066T9Md
90£9508

HOLYIAVd -8vB1SO0S

L7108 SO0P9SAYES

IAYHS Z/T AD SO¥9SAMES
LEDIZM ¥EONISSVd JOHS
SLHOIEM 'TETHM

Dd 59 T3 -~TTIE9S0S
OdS9 THA 9TBLEMA
saavid -ceeLs OS

NOILJI¥DSEA FDIOANT

LT/ET/9 W™IALSIDIY NDFHD

ALNNOD ASAOLS

UHAONIVED

WNETOALId LIS/ILVD NEATOD

‘Y QAVMAE ‘ONIAAWIO
YOONI ¥IV ¥ ONILVEH LAITA

¥SSITAW ‘dTEId

d1 SYDTTINNIL

ONI SHSINd¥EINT NOSNONII

DTT ‘SNOILYDINNWWOD DD

ONI¥EENIONE LSIM JHVA
0D Soud JYIWAVA

NOILDHASNI TWLNIWNOUIANT

YOANSEA

L1/ze/90
STETdd

SZT68

vZies

£ZT68
[4411.]

1Z168

02168

61168

8TT68

L1168
91168

S1T168

HHEWON
ADFHD

21eQ uny
:ON 3xoday



v

9L70¢€
00°00T
ST°LE
9€° 96
00°082°'T
00°00€

LB 2T

9Z'8v6°‘8

90°66%

00°96%

0Z°€E0¥‘00€E

0scze
00°00S°LZ

00°126°2

L% 88BZ

00°68¢€

00" 0ve
IT°L2ZZ

09 €6E°€E

00°06
86°9%%

TYLOL
ADIHD

2b6eq

L8°SLS
00" S0T
00°0ST
9L70¢€
00°00T
STTLE
9t°96
00-082°T
00°00€E

85°S8
62 L
s2'92
S9TEVO’L
9€°8L8'T

LL-89e
6Z°0EC

00°96%

00°vzo‘tez
0Z 6LE"L

0s°zZ8
00°00s°LZ

00"vED‘T
00"Le8’T
LE €€
I8° 1YV
627 E1Z

00" TSE
00°8€

00" 092
IT°L22
¥ LSE’T
¥V OLSE'T
2L 8LS
0006
86°'9¥%¥

LNNOWY

€Ev018
EV01B
€%018
81018
Y018
Zvotis
LZ608
11018
91018

z9018
Z9018

9001e
90018
90018

SzZoTe
89018

¥T018

9018
9v608

zZo01s
LY608

0t1oTE
[oadvan:)

T00TE
92608
9Ze08

Sv608
S¥608

TLE0B
SzZ608
vZ608
¥Zeos8
v2608
9L608
€S018

#SNVAL

L1/€2/9
LT/ez/9
LT/€2/9
LT/E2/9
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€ez/s
LT/E2/9
Lr/ez/s

LI/ET/9
LT/€2/9

Lt/ez/9
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LL/€2/9
LT/€2/9

L1/€2/9

LI/€2/9
LT/€2Z/9

Lt/e2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€ET/9

L1/€2/9
LT/€E2/9
LT/€T/9

LT/€Z/9
LT/€2T/9

LY/€2/9
Lt/€2/9
LT/E2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

JLva

SEITddNS SWa
SFITAdANS SWA
SZITddNS SKA

SENA dIHSYIGWIW TVANNY
goavd a4 NIIUO

YM@IH DSIH

YIEWYHD -9062E¥ S
IIX JEANIVALS - TIL-3

DAVL IENLIVWS ODSID VOHDA
OWWS INIAWIOVIdEY ¥ILNOA
Q¥VYD INI JILNON SWIN

2/1 FTOSNOD NIE UHNHS
ENOL OIS WId AHNOIS/LPTIN

YONVAL

LYOOTI¥ LSOO WAIWE¥d LTO0Z
8T/LT WNIWZ¥d FONWVANSNI

LINJIINT CTLLS

200A
FDIJI0 SUINOISSIWWOD

83001
SNEIYOS IANINIA -T100d
SEITddNS ONIEWNTd -T00d

LT0Z ‘%T-T INOL

ONINVATO ¥IWVHD JOOMIDOT
S§700L avod

Savod

savoyd

Savod

ZX 00°S¥

SdI¥LS LSAEL NOILVDJISSYID

NOII&I¥DSEA IDIOANI

LT/€2/9 WELSIOIW NDIHD

ALNNOD AFIOLS

ONI ISISSY-d411 9v168

NI SIDIANAS ENIT TOVNONYT Svie8
H¥Id TYNOIDEY HOHVL aNVT vv1i68

SNOS 2 SII¥ND N 1 €Ev168

ISIMAIN TIVEWIX [4241]
‘D ONHOL ‘DINTawd %168

S HLIaX ‘Nosanr ovies

211 dEr 6ET68

OT7T d0¥N0sS TLI 8£168

NI IOW OANI NIVINNOW NO¥I LETEB

ONI IdEO¥ILNI 9ELe8

0711 ‘SELVIDOSSY % STIVONI SET68
ONI AaNVEavodd LOdS LOH YET6E8B

ONI SIHDIN LSNONY LOH EET68

SNOIHSYJd MOCNIM NOZINOH ZETE8

F0IANIS LIAIND LOdHA HWOH TET1E8

OHDS (¥¥M HI¥NOd DIVOLSIH 0ET68

NHOL ‘YAWIEH 62168

LT ATddNS LSNOD A71ddNS QH BZ168

arT ‘ILvH LZ168

WOL 'XuFESNVEO Eiady]

YOANZEA YTEWAN
ADEHD

L1/2Z/90 : 33eq uny

STETEd :ON 3Jxoday



S

00°0EQ0 ‘%9
8T TZ9
0s°292

007962

8€°ZST
00°S6T
00°000°0T
00°0S
007002

1E° 99

ZI°0ET’S

Sz'Ts0’'t
19°9S6

69°6L0°9
oo-oo0z’‘z
€9°9L2Z°1

98" %1

T10°SS¥

0S°SBS

00°000°LE
TLBLT
9€"ET2'T

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

00°0€0°¥9
81°1Z9
05-292

co-sLz
0081

8€°2ST
00°S61
00°000°0T
00°0§
00°o002
(4204 4
68°6
SE° Y
S6° Vv
06°25%
00°98€'T
ZZ'0E0'T
00°192°2
SZ'TISOT
19°9S6
69°6L0"9
00-o00zZ‘z

00°0%0°T
€9°9¢€2

98° %1

BP 6EE
€S°SIT

00° LTS

00 ES
0SS
00°000°L6E
TL 6L

00'8%
6 vEL

LNOOWY

ZEBOB
29608
62018

19608
19608

0zo1e
€0018
09608
09018
€TO0T8
22018
[44h1:]
2zo1s
22018
15018
TSOT8
15018
1s018
vee0e
S5608
TeEe08
LSOT8

0E608
25608

(AN he:]

650718
650718

65608
65608
65608
8v608
LS608

£P0T8
€908

#SNWAL

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€Z/9
LT/€Z/9
Lr/€z/s
LL/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€e2/9
LI/ET/9
Lr/€2/8
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LI/EZ/9

L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9

Lr/ez/9

LT/€EZ/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/ez/9
L1/ee/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€EZ/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9

a1va

# 0/d

YIILS AINS DZEE ar
LT/€T/LO -LT/92/90
HOVE SL°€ 099SEL ISND

SAVW ¥¥D HAO
NOLTIVAIW CQYVMV INId

EDI440 XAFTO

TYOIQEW JILWVNI
NOILOWO¥d OIQ¥Y ¥ AL
J3d TYI¥0d ATHINOW

84 JLV¥DI4AILI¥ED
NOSI¥YOW JIVODICEW TIddV
NOSI¥JYOW AIVDIAHAW HOAVW
NOST¥IOW dIVOIQaEW €3J
NOSTHYOW JIVOIdIEW NV
TOPPOP0OSTEVZA LNIVIAWOD
TOEPIPOLTEPZE INIVIIWOD
J3I7T8d ONI/D3a
T060SY09TEPZd LNIVIAWOD
SANNOYONDOVE ¥ INIJUEONIS
JYIALAVNO HLY ISd
HSYHOUNd YILVM AVK
LT/9T/9 NIHL LT0Z/S

SW¥0a T1I€
SEJOTEANT TELNI¥EG

YIAdVG ' SAJOTIANE
HO3IOANI Q10

LT0Z ‘¥T-T ENOD

LNEWAVA¥IAO ANNITA

SHIITddNE SKI
SdITddNS SKWE

NOILdI¥DSAA HDIOANT

LT/€2/9 NILSIDIAW MDEHD
ALNNOD ATUOLS

ONI SDINOWIDZETH dd 89168

KXYANTHOVW ddvd L3168

OTT VICAW LNOYALNO 99168

ONI LHDISNIWNLJAO 53168

IS ¥ SOTHAWND HAIS HHI NO »3168
0TI ‘LOdEd WLI¥d ALISIL0 £9168
HLTH TYNOIIVANDD0 WAWAIN 29168

OSSV SYALSYOUAVOEE WAYAIN 19168

alT #ENTd YAYAIN 09168

40 NOISIAICQ FLVLS AVAIN 65768

YHLNIZD TYNOIDEY TWaNA AIN 85168

Td SNI XDNHEDV DITHNd AEN LSTE8
ALFIVS DITENd IdJ3d AEN 9s168
ALZAVS DITENd A0 IdEA AIN SS168

SANNO¥D ¥ DATH NIWAVY AIN vSie8

L LYZE0Y ‘SIWIOW €5168

OTT IOSATIA HOYYNOW ZS168

VAVAYL ‘NVOIW 15168

NI SNOILNTOS HDIJJ0 OJLAW 05168

NOTISNVYW AWIOVW 67168

D71 SINEAZ dnTd A1ndii BY168

aIAVa ‘XISANIT LYTE8
YOANAA HAEWON
MOFHD

LT/TZ/90 : @3eg uny
STE1€d ‘ON 3xoday



ONI SHDIA¥ES TYHOTO JES S8T68

L 20T veze 68608  LI/€Z/9 OLDA
1A 68608  LTI/€Z/9 ONINNYTA
S9- 68608 LT/€Z/9 (DA) TNII
86 ¢ 68608 L1/€z/9 YANOISS IWWOD
ot* 68608 L1/€2/9 va
8y €2 68608 LT/€2/9 HOLVASTA TWVALNID
06°ST 68608  L1/€2/9 ¥OSSHASSY
L6 9 68608  LT/€T/9 LNZWdOTIAZA ALINNWWOD
96°5 68608 LT/EZ/9 (OA) F¥Id
£5° 68608 LT/EZT/9 aOOMDOT/3NIA
59°9 68608  LT/€Z/9 NIWAY/JITTOAIAN0D
¥z 1 68608  LT/£2/9 J4TJIHS
ST°S 68608 LT/€Z/9 ar
99" 68608 LT/€2/9 AATHAHS
69°T 68608 Lt/€z/9 SM¥OM DITdnd
1€” 68608 L1/€2/9 (OA) =NIA
66" 68608 L1/€2/9 HIQEODTA
zZ0" ¥ 68608 L1/€2/9 iy
zz'1 68608 L1/€2/9 INL/39Id
09" 68608 LI/€2/9 dTAZA ALINOWWOD
T NI SEDIANIS TVEOTD DES b8T168
00°8 00°8 L9608 LI/€Z/9 LT0Z ‘%-T aNOL
ONI ¥EINIOLAEY SANVW INIVS EBT68
0T" €€2 0T €€2 9%018  LI/EZT/9 SHITAANS SWE
ONI 0Dddnid z8T68
LY E¥ LY €¥ S6608  LT/€2/9 JESANESIA INZWHS IN¥YD
ONI SAIONAZY 'H ATYNON TET68
SP-008 L9°9LT SE608  LTI/€2Z/9 NIVIS-7100d
88°69T SE608  LTI/EZ/9 SHITddNS INIVE-T00d
06°€S5¥ SE608 LT/€z/9 INIVE €800
LUV INIVd ON&Y 08168
00°LZZ 00°L2ZZ S%018 L1/€2/9 ONINIVIL
LdEd NOILIWONAE VSKIEA 6LT68
00°0ST 00°09T 99608 L1/€2/9 dOHS LJID JOd WALYM
YILYM DNINAS HO0W aay BLI6E
65 €62 65° €62 66608 LT/€2/9 SADITO WHIJOD TLIS
(¥2) ONI 0D NVDNOW AWY LLTES
00" 082 00°0%T vE608 LT/€2/9 TYINTY WOONLSEN IW
00°0%T vE608 L1/€2/9 TYLNTY WOOULSEN HOA
D717 FOVdS QIdWyd 9LT68
00°00S°T 00°00S°T LPOTB L1/€ET/9 LNWAVYd TYNIZ - ZSNOHIAN0D
ONTINIVE FJ2ITDAWH SLT68
00°005°¢L 00°00S“L 59608 t1/€2/9
ONI ‘SANO0¥AA vLLI68
00°006°T 00°006'T £5608 LT/€EC/9 €69ST09T LNNODDY
¥EAMOd FSVHOENG €LT68
LET06T T LE'06T'T 95608 L1/€2/9 YELIVAD HLY INIWAVd FSVAT
(Y1) TYEOTO SEMOH AENLIE ZL168
00°9€T 00" 9€T v9608 LT/€2/9 LTO0Z ‘¥I-T 3NOL
0 OTEONVY ‘INI¥LIEd TLT68
10° 658 T0° 5SS ££608 L1/€2/9 FIANII-606BSUI
4 % SI¥Vd NONAL IIIENHALIE 0LT68
00°260°T 00°260°1 89608 L1/€2/9 SEITddNS FOLINOW S¥D ¥
ANVAROD 3 STTMONXY A31d3d 69168
00-02ZZ'€ 00°02z'¢€ S5018 L1/€2/9 SUVAYE ¥
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNWEL FLva # 0/a NOILJIYISEA FIIOANI JOANIA FIEWON
MDFHD XDEHD
LT/€Z/9 MILSIDAA ADIHD LT/22/90 : @3eq uny

9  abeg ALNNOD XZYOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday




L

08°S8
00°000°002

BT LE6'E

0o-08

00-zs0‘z

ST1°62T

0S°€E62°€E

SY°'19

S6°SST

00"V
LE"60T
¥8°290°T
08°0S9°T
LY ¥9T
00766
00°SS
00°8YT
00°S8L°T
L0 0S9

00°S¥%

0v-90T

S8 SE0'Y

TYI0L
ADIHD

abeg

08-s8
00°000°002
9z LeET
63°€08°T
L6 T9E

9z ¥v9’t
0008

0o0-zsge
0g-oLL’t
ST 62T
00°9L2
0s°12
00°686°2Z
00°L
SP°19

S0°S6
06709

00" ¥
LE 60T
¥8°Z290'T
08°089°T
LY %91
00°66
00°§S
00" 89T
00°S8L'T
L0059

00" 2%
00°¢

0Z° €S
0Z° €S

LY 59
06°068°¢
8% 6L

LINNOWY

08608
LOOTSB
TEOT®
TEQT8
TE0T8
1e018
L6608

6L608
6L608

88608
8L608
eLe608
8L608
8L608
0s608

ivote
vote

LLEOB
85608
L8608
SL608
soote
TZ018
ELE60B
98608
vs608
LEE08B

€9608
69608

000718
ooot8

3E018
3E018
StQtIe

#SNWUL

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/EZ/9
LT/€z/9
Lr/ee/9
LI/EZ/9
LT/€2/9

LY/EZ/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€EZ/9
LT/€2/9
LT/€2/9
Lr/ee/9

LI/€2/9
LT/€Z/9

LT/€2/9
LT/€Z/9
LT/€Z/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/E2/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

LI/€2/9
LT/ee/9

LT/€z/9
LI/€2/9

LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
L1/€2/9

ILYa

# 0/d

HAV¥VYA AVA WAW

LS €°S 0S /1S ¥'S sL’‘sS
L 1SA -HOA

0€€ 7ISQ / SLS DIW -Md
SZT 118A / S5 DAU-HOA
0SZ TS / T0S Dd¥-Md

AIVATE ONIGWNTI

LT0Z ‘¥I-1 ENAP

FAVMIDOHS

LTOZ ‘TE/S-8T/S 0S°®
LT0Z ‘¥I-T ENOCL
dI¥L ¥IANAJ

JATAFHS
AdTHIHS

LT0Z ‘¥I-T aNOC

SEXYL 40 INIWAYAIIAC
LEOAdNS AVKW

dOHS IATHD ¥0d NID WID

TVOIAEN FLVWNI

ONILIVE LNIAOY

SAIT0S 4SNS TLL‘H4’'S-aod
HAYYOdN ¥AMOE XNVL JTIW S
d3d Z-ANIFOTHD-T00d

LTI0Z '¥I-T ENAL
LT0Z ‘TE-8T AWK

MTIN ILVWNI
ATIW ZIVWNNI

dOL Z960-L78
SNOILYOINOWWOD -ZT#9-2S2
01O0A 00SL-LYB

NOILAI¥DSEA FDTIOANT

LT/€Z/9 YWELSIOTA ADIHD

ALNNOD AFAOLS

ODVOIHD 40 ALIS¥IAINA
N J0 SIDIA¥ES dLIS JELINN

VYAOVAEN 40 ETLIL ¥ODIL

OTT WNITOULId SYWOHL

AN LVWAIHL

SAO0EMOD INOLSHWOL HHI

SILONAO¥d 1004 ¥OIAIANS

SESTHEAYILNG VA4 NNS

¥YSSENVA 'SNAHJEILS

‘SNOILVOINOWKWOD dVLSZAVLS
LOINLSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S
M¥ITO 0D IS

ONI SEDIAY¥ES ALITILO 948
S ¥ ENIM SYEIZVIHD NAFTHLNOS
JILNED DNAA ¥ dO0d SHLIKMS
VEd DTT SHIUISAANI NOITS
ONI TTOYINOD 1S3d W¥¥dIS
TYINZWNOYIANT WI¥IIS
SWELSAE TOVLNOD VdNIIS

ANVAWOD TYOIWIHD VaNdIS

NITTY NYI¥E ‘JYOHS

ONI SAOLOHINISIA MEVWIIHS

AOANEA

LT/22/90
STET8d

Lozes
90¢68

s0zes

»0268

€0268

zoce8

T0Z68

c0zes

66168

86168
L6TEB
96168
S6T68
v6168
E6T68
26168
16168
oeTe8
68168

88168

L8TER

98168

JTEWON
ADEHD

ajeq uny
ON 3jz0day



9€"vL9'2SE
00" 00T

9E°LOY 2

00°0s
167502
00°09s8°2
8L T21'T

o0-Lze'e

00°856'T

00°'SSE’Y

SZ°00¢€

9t 9ST
8%°092

TYLOL
ADEHD

8 abeg

TYLOL SMDFHD

00-00T

9E"LIT
00'o0¥Z’‘2Z
00°0S
167502
00°095°2
8T T2T T
00-L91’C
00°091
00° %11
00°0%8°T
00° %
00°TSE
00°Z¥6'E
00 %%
00°8T
S9°9
$9°9
S6°6T
6z'¢c

00 0¥

€9°99
B0 09T

9€79ST
9%'092

LNNOWY

8608

SEOTS
SEO0TS

yE0TS8
€EOTS
ZEOTS
oLe0®

6TOTE
61018

SB60E
SB608
S8608

vB8608
¥8608
¥8608
v8608

£8608
€8608
£8608
£8608
£€8608
€8608
£8608

6v018
Zve08

#SNVEL

LI/€e/9

LT/€2/9
L1/€z/9

LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9

L1/€2/9
LT/€2/9

Lr/ee/9
LT/€2/9
L1/€2/9

LT/EZ/9
LT/€2/9
Lt/€2/9
LT/€2/9

LT/€2/9
LI/€2/9
LI/€2/9
LT/€2/9
LT/E2/9
LT/€2/9
LI/€2/9

LT/€2T/9
LT/€2/9

41va

LT/€2/9

ANNIFA LISOdEA MAVd

STYIYILYW ONIEWNTd-T004
SYALAW dALVM

WI0AITOD "ILL

"YOIDWALXE~- SL IS

aEdWwnd DIldds TTIH AT09
LTOZ AVW STVEW dOOMIDOT

SHDIANES LSIAEE0T
LIOONN NOSHWYD - HONNT

y10Z ‘»T-T INAL

¥T0Z ‘¥1-T EINAC

SIYIHS TETIVH
INSAH ¥04 EDI

HONNT J4VLS FAVIYL
SI¥¥Vd I

SNCISSHONOD 1004
dOHS IaID ¥0d S300d

NOILAT¥DS3A HDIOANI

YELSIDAT ADIHED
ALNNOD AHACLS

AT ‘SEATIM

0D ATddNS VAVAEIN NIILSTM

EYT TYINTFANOYIANT NIILSEM

ONI 0DadM

VEd AS MNVL DILJAS SYIALYM

AYES MOINIS ALNNOD HOHSYM

SELVIDOSSY 3 dEATYM

ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIOYIA

0D ¥d IMIONJL ¥ VINIDVEIA

JIOA

NOSVL ‘THAVHNVA

AOANTA

L1/2%/90
STETEd

81Z68

LT1Z68
91Z68
STZéB
y12Z68

€T1ZE8

[A%41.]

TizZ68

0TZ68

60268

80268

UIEWAN

ADIHD
i @3eq uny
:ON 3xoday



NOILVZINOELNY ONV MIIASY J0 INIWIDATTMONIDOW

aiva

6Z°298°02

6z°298'02
827601 LoTT LI/€2/9
81°S86 %L Z01T LT/€2/9
9z 952 ZoTT L1/€2/9
9L S8 ZOTT LT/€2/9
9L S6 ZOoTT L1/€2/9
01" %62 Zot1T L1/€2/9
L6 6VT Z0TI L1/€2/9
66" LE Z0TT L1/€2/9
65" SE 60TT LT/€2/9
65-9 LOTT LT/€2/9
65°9 LOTT L1/€2/9
TE'TIT 660T LI/€2/9
68" 7€ $OTT LT/€Z/9
oL 68 ¥0TT LT1/€Z/9
vL* 22T POTT LT/€2/9
88" 10C vOTT LT/€ET/9
L6"6E 0TI LT/€Z/9
6Z°21 SOTT L1/€2/9
zZe* Lz T0TT L1/€2/9
€8°9TT 660T L1/€2/9
00°0TO0‘T TOTT L1/€2/9
-68" € €0TT LTI/€Z/9
28 TE €0TT L1/€z/9
BE"ES £0TT LI/E2/9
8% ¥ £0TT L1/€2/9
0Z"8LT £E0TT L1/€2/9
LL* %S €0TT L1/€z/9
ZE' 18 TOTT L1/€2/9
L6's YOTL LT/EC/9
ST %8 ¥OTT LT/€2/9
L6 9% ¥OTT L1/e2/9
61" TS vOTT LT/€2T/9
96" LT YOTT L1/€2/9
96 LT pOTT L1/€2/9
95" 0%E $0TT L1/€2/9
v8'LL POTT LT/ET/9
LS* LS vOTT LT/€2/9
L6 62 POTT L1/€z/9
-88°6S¢ 60TT LT/€2/9
158" VL 60TT LT/€T/9
9z° 952 ZO0TT LT/ET/9
86" €L SO0TT LT/€Z/9
L0 ZS SOTT L1/€2/9
PE6LET 00TT L1/€2/3
00°2% SOTT LT/€Z/9
00°6% €0TT LT/€2Z/9
96°6€ €0TT LT/€2/9
sL 1T €0TT LT/ET/3
¥6° 65 9011 LT/ET/9
91" 2S 860T LT/E2/9

TYLOL LNODOWY #SNWAL qLYA

aavo

1 abeg

dIA0D FEAL

NOHd I ®LLY /Dd AHDWLS
IAZN D INW¥D ¥AMOL OTT

¥d INIWAWYd JSYAT AVW
18d J500A
18A AFIAWCO

NILSOH WOD®ZdIJINNTOADS
JIrodd Iad 1SS Xaawa o9
I430 WATAV HOLIMS JOWKWS

JAOVHAVd S¥YAd QEVTIVH
SII¥ND
SI1AND

NVWVS % WUNVL LSNOD MAN

S3I11ddNS-"T100d
'SdY¥LS 1
SIITddNS T00d
NIEFEOSNAS 'SYTIIEENN
SEI1TddNS-T100d
FOVLSOd

NOISSNDSIA NOILISNWAIL
TI€8 dd 404 ¥IAVd ANVI™
WL WW NOFHONNT STEYMY

LIAIUD XVI SATYS
DNILINEYW NID
S¥ALS04 ATINL 0 HLY
ONILSVI NID LNIAT

ANF ENTYHLYD ALAM TANL

ONILSYL NID

NTI0SEY FUILIY ¥ SEWEL

OAd-100d

IVd ¥HLVE JIEM MIvd MT

LESAD0T -T00d

XOdd ‘HSYM'SINN -SL IS
LIN ¥IVdEY IFTIOL-DIDA

ddvl 10oNd
STYINALYW JOSIW-T00d
STYINALYW -N¥A4 SOLT

SONILIIZ D3€

ANVY ONTHOLVHL -SXvd

SDIML QIVd/JOVEAVd
ADVHAVA

VYa INZEWAVd ISYIT INOD
IV43¥ NOIS ¥VEE AZAOWS

WIVAEY d1003F

QAYD OONIM 004 HELVWNI

SOVL ALITIEYINNODDY
dOHS Ld4ID ¥04 SdAWVYLS
TIYMIAII JILISHIM DA

¥ SWIS¥HD ¥EHLVE NVATO

dNOHd HLITTALYS

NOILAI¥OSHa

HILSIOEE d¥¥D HESVYHOUN

AINNOD AZUOLS

1€6€26092L82

TOTL6T

S6LOYELT

GO0LETVLYPT

TYLLYYEPT

BEGSIEVHTI
GZTELELEYTT

ESYY90

LTZ090

ISod sdsn LT/¥1/90
LS04 sdsn L1/s0/90
HONNT T1E€E O0OVL
LYYWTYM-ENVSNS
LATLOO WIMS-ENVSAS
J¥O0LS ¥YITOd-HNVYSNS
LETLNO WIMS -€HNVSNS
SHTAVLS -€ENYSNS
LT6080 §4SN TTISSON
JOo0d XdW STINDIW Md
dAdVd qIIVIOIEAG
NOILVEISIOEY OOVN WW
INI¥d YISIA X

GNIM TYIOL aX

OD "ONIINI¥ALAADIL
S A8TV

TELOH TTIH 41092
00D HOHWL ONI¥ €3 aX
a¥vY0o8 ¥H STIVHOIW AL

geg

QH-HJJIL
SAMOT -HAJED
SEAMOT -HIJAD

QH -H3JEL

dH -H4Jdr

Qe -H4I4r

QH -Had40

QH -HaJar

QH -H3JZ0

aH - HId=EP

IDIML AIVA/NVWAVHOD
NYRAVHOL

Y/N EDIOANI

LOdEAd JWOH IANSTAINA
WNNOVWA TV INSTAINA
ANOL ‘NESOQ

SddI¥L W NOXIQ

Sdsft MO

TINONS MO

A¥0 SSETHYIEAL MO
SHITddNS FONIFFTINOD
LSOdaYOA-NIAZEN"D
INEWAVd

+TP30L PIBDs

QAVD TVIDEIWKWOD ENO STIaM

# EDIOANI I4Ed-ANNJd

11T
FOANIA HIEANN
o4
LT/ZZ/90 : @3eQ uny
1S08%SHd :ON 3xodey




4

TY1OL
[et:4 o}

abeg

UINOISSIWNOD

LNNOWY #SNVTEL 3L¥a NOILEI¥OSEd # IDICANI 1d3A-aANNd FOANFA ATENNN
24

WILSIDEY QNYD ASYHOUNd L1/22/90 : °3eq uny
AINNOD AZHOLS LS08YSHEA :ON 330day




YINOISSIWWOD

dLva NOILVZINOHLNY ONV MIIAZY J0 INTFWIODAETMONIOV

00°%52°6 TYLOL S¥DEHD dEdJAL
LT/EZ/9 00°%ST’6 ONIJO0N ZIa¥EL 61268
D18 0S/¥a NO JOO¥-F¥ ELTSTE 00°%sz’'2 S9%0T LI0Z
2aTE 0S/¥d NO J00¥-T¥ €LTSZE 00°000°L S9%0T LT02
NOILAI¥DSEQ #EDIOANI H1¥d TYLOL LNOOWY TWYN JOANZA #HAHODIY HVHA UTEWAN
ADEHD  MDHHD TYOSIA MDEHD
YELSIDIY SADIHD AIJAL LT/€T/90 * °3eq uny

T abegq ALNNOD AHYOLS 06ETHd :ON 3Io0day




T

LNAWNSHYNENIZY NOILINL

NOILAI¥OSIEd

YANOISSIWWOD

qI¥a NOILVZIYOHLNV ONV MIIATY 40 LNIWIOATTMONADOV

00°0€0'T TYIOL SADFHD dddAL

L1/92/9 00°0€Q’T
ZEBLLITZOE 00°0E0T

#3DIOANI a1va TYLOL LNNOWY
ADFHD  ADEHD
YILSIDFA SMOIHD QEdAL
AINNOD AZUOLS

¥OISSEL 'SNEHAALS 0ZZ68
TOSOT L102

HWYN ¥OONIA #QI0DTE AVHA ATEWAN
TYOSIA XDTHD

L1/92/90 @ 33eq uny

06€ETHd :ON 3x0day



YINOISSTANOD

qLva NOILVZI¥OHINV (EY BABAIY JO INIWTSILBIMENIIWD (IdAL

LT/0E/9 00 SLE'TT ONILNIVE BIIITOAVH €2T68

INIVE ¥YOINALXA TYNIA L9 T6L'E 99S0T LT0Z

INIVd ¥OINIIXHE TYNII EETEBS’L 99501 LT0Z
LT/0€/3 00°SzzZ {dA) ADIJIOLSOd SN zZTZ68

T4 TYNNNY T# LIWNNES 00°'522Z £9501 L102
NOILdIHOSEA #IDIOANI ~ HIWA  TVIOL INOOWY IWVN YOONEA ¥MIODAN AYEX ATEWON
MOFHD MOFHO TYOSId XDHEHD
YHLSTOTA SHOFHD OIdAL LT/LZ/90 ¢ @3eQ UMy

T  9beq ALNNOD ATUOLS 06€THd :ON 3x0day




YENOISSIWWOD

JIva NOTIVZIEOHLAY NV MIIAZY A0 LNIWIOAHTMONMOY

9€°€99°L2T TYLOL SYDEHD AddAL
LT/0E/9 9€7€99'92T 0171 440 i2441]
ATE NMOIANVIA LV AIVAEH 66Z8TZMLL™ ~ "H#NIA 9€°€99°'921 82Z90T L10Z
LT/E0/L 00°000'T ONI ¥SN ANYTIHEATIS 15447
TIVHSYYW X0¥ HODNH FE3d YNNIV X100 HLY 00°000°T S 8102
NOIILAI¥OSEA #ZOTOANT aLva TYLOL LNOOWY HWYN JOONZEA #CQHODIW YVEX ATEWAN
MADEHD  MDOFHO TYOSIA MDIHD
YILSIOIY SHOIHD QIIAL LT/E0/LO * 23®Q uny

1 abegd AINNOD ATIOLS 06€THd :ON 3x0day




i

9€°¥S0°9

057586

00°0sZ’9

00°080°ST

00°LT
96 ' ¥67%
00" LLY"S
S6°16
827601
88°€0T"L

00°STZ’2

BS° 97
00°T%E

vs-Zsc

se’s
00002

00 0gv’'s

TYLOL
XDFHD

abed

96°6€E
0T-18
v6° ¥
S6°1S
6T° 039
-66°CT
-SL-2
~¥9*BET
98°L
0070009
05" 9%

00 €ST
0s°z¢€8

00°0SZ'9

00°0%S L
00°0%¥S°L

00°LT

96 Y6t
00°LL9'S
S6°16

BZ 60T
88 €0T 'L

00°STL
00°00S’T

8S' 9V
00" T¥%E

ST 1Y
vy 06
¥ZriL
25 0T
25" 9T
LL' g

08 €1

st's
00°00Z
00°0SE

00" c08'Y
00°'08Z'€E

INAOWY

vLots
vLOTS8
vL0T8
pLOTS
vLOT8
7L018
vL018
vLOTR

j2XAN:]
[A%AN]
SEeTTe

SYIL8
SY1T8

980TE

9BTIT8
98118

ETTT8
LBTITSB
PR xAn:]
88118
¥9¢18
68TT8

€L0T8
€LOTE

vviie
62218

TLots
ZLoTs8
2LOTS8
ooTTR
00118
00TIB
00TTIS8

TLOT8
149914
BITIS8

8T1TIS
8TTIS

#SNVYL

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€E/S

LT/0E/9
LT/Lo/L
LT/0€/9

LT/0%/9
LT/0€/9

LT/L0/L

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LI/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€/2
LT/Lo/L

LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LI/0€E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

JIYd

£av ONITIIE

QIONZTIOS -£0%9SMd
AVAAS D04-NYA SNYAELHA
WOOT "HOLMS -9062€i3
YANIVINIVW OLAV-ZAUIA
THEHM dWI¥D

dLIIA

HALITE

YHLYM NIQIYD dOOMXD0T
HSVET ATIVIA dOOMAD0T
WAMNES /EEALYM TOOMXD0T

LTO0Z ‘8Z-ST 3NAL

Id0ddNS WYIOO¥d ATYILANYND

LINOQ TO¥EIVd MEN LIJINO
LINN TO¥IWd MIN LIJLNO

A¥IAIOYENST

SYIIWYD A1Nd3d v
LHOISYEAO AZA WWOD
OIAv¥ JY0A A¥HLIVE
Sa¥d I AZd WWOD
STYOISAHd ALNddq

HJIULS AVM WVHLIVM
FdI¥LS FAI¥A N¥Ed

ZSS6E0T0Z
TYONNY 8T-LTO0Z IWdODV

HD
dOHS
dOHS

A¥ANOVT #L 1S
AYANAVT SL IS
AYANOYT 2L LS
A¥ANOYT TL IS

SAEA
SNOTIIVILODIN J4VI
OIT HOVIYEVW INFWIONVHENF

YIYA NOILISNVELILOETE ST
INTFNETIOV LIOddNS ATHLNOW

NCILJI¥YDSHA EDTOANI

LT/LO/L ¥ELSIDIY XOFHD

ALNNOD AHAOLS

SIAVd OLAY ALID TVLIAYD

NANIACHEWI TWIINID NOANYD

SIMIT LIOOS 'TIEAANE

(LAWOD) SINIOF¥ 40 (AY0H

OTT INIOdADWId

ONV ONIINI¥d NII¥EOS dd4
“d’1 ‘SEY¥0LS An€ 1534

FS ONILINSNOD NJOH HTILLVE
FSUAAINN AJILIVE

D17 IT ALITIEOW IL3LY

SSENTTEM ANV HLIVEAH D¥V

ONIAVd ® ONIAWED XdAdV
dT FNYd0¥d SVYOI¥IAWY

OdWOD 20 ALIIDOS NYDI¥IWY

ONI 00S8IW
ONI 2AD0T INI4TVY

Q17 ‘EIZNEINOVW ‘NOSITIV

ONI SWILSAS VIVA CIDONVAAY
YOANIA

L1/90/L0
STETHEd

cvzes

ivzes

0%zZes

6EZ68

BETEB
LEZES
9tzé.
SEZ68
vezee
€EEZEB

[4241]

TEZ68
0£ze8

62268

8ZZ68
LZZ68

X443

SZzZ68

VIGWAN
ADHHD
23eq uny
ON 23xodsy



00" 002

S¥ 6SE

0S°9€E

00" EVP

00°30¢

00°1S6

00° 02T

oL vce
66°6¥L %2
00°000'T
90" 11T

LT EET

88°20%

69°6T
98°¢e8
TYLOL
MDFEHD

z abeg

88'%0S
00° 10T
9v* 12
2061l
veE"v6
8T° LT
9" 12
-€0° S
€T 062
-86°0S
€V°886°1
S6°8
00°00¢
sg'ze
S6°ST
06" TS
S6°S¢
S6°0¢€
56°9¢
S6°0€
S6°EL
0S°9¢€¢E

00°Le
00°91%

00°201L
00°20T1
00°20T
00°009
00°LTT
cZ 112
st'ce
00° 02T
oL wzZe
66 6%L P2
00°000'T
90°TITIT
LT EET
¥0°091
T8°222
€0°02

69°61

LNOOWY

v6018
6018
pe018
ve018
V6018
ve018
p6018
veote
veote
ve018
ve018
be01e

BYILS8
06TIS
[4- kA1)
oeote
€ETTIL
T0TT8
I0TTI®
T0TTIe
T0TT8
68018

LYTTS8
LYTIR

viecis
LLOTSB
LLOTS
69T18
L6018
S9018
59018
97118
15:-t4¢:]
18018
L3zI8
26018
T0ZT8
90218
9L0T8
oLOoTR

SL0T8

#SNVAL

LT/0E/9
L1/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/S
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/9

L1/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
L1/0€/3
LT/0€E/9

LT/0€E/3
LT/0€E/9

LI/Lo/L
LT/LO/L
LT/L0/L
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/S
LT/0€/3
LT/0€E/S
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LI/0€E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9

JLVa

LT/Lo/L

# 0/4

§TS2Z86T -6068SUA
16959888 -1EBLIOS

g10d -€20990S

WSY ¥OSNIS -TTBTISA
IEMSYD ‘LES INVW -TTBTISdd
JALIIA 100D -EdId

H€INd -066T9Md

¥3S THM -09%LZ0S

Z¥aV "VOLVIAVA -ZTE9SO0S
LIJE¥D -dOHS

SYILTIA MDO0LS

JALIIL TANA -IWD

dNO¥D ¥0L MOHS NNO
JOOMMDO0T ¥ITOOD UILVM
YILYM ONIVNI¥A

TYINIY ¥ITO0D HO
YILYM SL 1S

YIALYM VL IS

YILYM TL IS

YIALYM ZL 1S

SNOISSIONOD

L10Z ‘82-ST ENAL

AL HDI440 21d€

WE LTI0Z LdES-ATAL FATETD
O0& LIOZ LIES-XTINAL FTEYD
g9¥d TINd IAIND FANLNIATY
J0ENVY FDTLON DITENd
ONIQVEE ANODES SLZ-LT QIO
dINdE NOILDITHE 30 1SHA
aT0S TLE ¥Ed T$ NOILYNOA
TEB-¥69SZT QUN/QY¥ WId-OWI
JI0ddNS WW¥D0¥d LT0Z ATI0L
dD0I340 oL OL

OVETE SANNO¥OHAIVI YOI O53A
SMYILS 1d9d

SavdI LI

avdI 10000-290€922LL
LNYId

JILTIS AIV

NOILEI¥OSHA dFDIOANI

JILSIOFE ADIHD
AINNCD AJVOILS

ONI A1ddNS 0INY ILLOITIE

€ ANOWAY 'OZIVAWIA

ONI ¥SN SHOIVA

QAVO TYIDHEWOD S¥H 0DISOD

D717 TIIK 70D ADOLSWOD

ONI AL ALINQWWOD JDOLSWOD

(OA) FTOINOYHD NDOLSWOD
LYANQOL AMELIAWED MDOLSWOD
T0S INWONA WND20d HLITAWOD

ONI ISEHD ALINAWWCD
NOILOOJLSNOD SNITIOD
d¥0D ONIMOMIL HLITHYHANID

dy0d A1ddNS JFIHD

dIHS¥ANLYYE ODTTHD
SENIONZ TIUWNS NOS¥WD
HOONZA

L1/90/L0
STETHd

LST68

95zZ68

SSZeB

vsZes

€sZes

(141 ]

15268
0szes
6vZ68
8vZ68
LvZ6e8
9vzZee

SvZe8

vvies
12443

YTTNON
MDHHD

?jeq uny

ON 3a0day



€

89°096°'0T
00°0¥%3
¥8°SS9°L
00°00T
00°sL

18°80S

66°218'2

09" €TT

00°S9T
T0'€65°T

YL ¥SS

007095
68°LLL

Z8°619'T

TYLOL
JDEHD

abeg

LI LBE
89°096 ‘0T
00°'0%9
¥8°'SS9°L
00°00T
00°SL

T0° LT
6V E91
ot "v8
Tz L8

66°218°2

8L TE
Z8’" 18

00°SST
TOE65'T

00" TPE
¥1'6
03°'%02

00°09S
68 LLL

Z8° €
09°S6
g9v*1e
06°Le
-S9 %11
6L'6Z
Sv¥°Zv
658
69°9%
80°9
OL EY
6578
0T LE
-€7'886°T
-vE" Ve
98 %1l
TE' 97
60°6€
S0°29
9S° TS
6T LS
0% €9

LNOOWY

SETTS8
SLTT8
81218
TLZ18
99218
[4aa 8]

80TI8
80TtI8
80118
80TTIR

£5218

LYZTB
ZETIB

SYZ18
£60T8

16018
16018
16018

(448 %]
T6TI8

v€018
pe018
V6018
76018
76018
V6018
v6e0T8
»6018
v60T8
v6018
76018
veote
76018
ve0T8
YE€0T8
76018
76018
PE0T8
76018
Pe018
76018
v6018

#SNVAL

LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/9

LT/Lo/e

LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9

LT/0E/S
L1/0€/9
LT/0€/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
L1/0€/5
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LI/0€/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/S
LT/0E/S

ALYa

LT/LO/L

JADVIE WOLETOT
SITIVHD ‘SLINLS
HOVLAO MIOMLIN - ¥IVATA

\{eX o}

SENA ATHSYIEWIW

NOILVDOIN¥I-NYAd SOLT
STYIEELYN -dELUM
HdId-¥ELYM

STYIYELYW

WALSAS HNOHd EATJ

SESSYID ALIIVS -FDIA¥IS
SITVILLVE

S/M -V6ZVSONINNYI
LOEro¥d YHMAS DA

NOLLUOIYAI MAvd M1
NOILVOI¥YI- N¥Ed SOLT
NOILVOINYI Muvd M1

SISATYNY ‘ETdWVS ‘NOIL
JTVH EWITY ‘SMOVd 1y¥dd

JELTIA FENT -€SZSZMd
Sa¥d ® SYAJITVO -€SZSZMd
HINE -066T9Md

YOLOENNOD -TIBIS¥S
LIEED ALNVIIVM DdS9TIA
YILTIA FNT -AD0LS
SYEIITVYO-ESZSTNd

YELTIA LNVIOO0D -6068S¥d
SYELTIIA ADOLS

LIX ATVA B Y0 -ONINNVIL
YOSNES TaNI-SZT0990S
HILTIA TO0D -60685dd
TYES JANVL -S068S0S
L4IT MO0LS

ATOAINVYW FAVINI

NVd SNYAL -NVA LEA
ainTd -dD0LS

YOSNIS -52099 OS
SHEHOLIMS -90E9S0S
YELTI4 dd071 -2dId

LIS ATOANIVW -TTBISAL
AILTII IFENT

NOLLEI¥OSHA FOIOANI

YEISIOFE ADIHD
ALNOOD AHMOLS

‘Y Q¥YMaE ONIAAYIO

1T ¥EO0¥ 'QEVITIM

ONIDNW HO¥YHES T¥DO0T LD
III HONH ‘NIHOVIIVO

SIH ONIAIT TIIHO¥NHD Id04

AN DOSSVY NOILNIATId HAIJ

ONI SASTYIMEINT NOSNOYIL

07T ‘SNOILY¥DINNWWOD 224

ANYANOD TUNILSYAL
ONI SSVYID ISVd

ONIYFINIONE LSEM ¥¥Yd

SLONA0¥Yd NOILVOIMAT ONIMI
NOILOHEASNI "TYINZFWNOIIANE

SLINAONIOYENE

FOANIA

LT/90/L0
StTETEd

LZe8

0LZes

69268

B89Z68

L9C68

99268

59268

voZes

€9Z68

Z9Z68

19Ce68

035¢e8

6szZee

85268

YHEWON
MOFTHO

23eQ uny
ON 3x0day



JIATIOULIWOD 0D NOAT 16T68

00°G82°2 00*582°2 oLTT8 LT/LO/L WANIVLIA RI0C0
0717 SINIAZ 3INTE AINDIT 06268
€997 €%°9T 9€218 LT/Lo/L FITT IINILIA
FJIT TYNQOILYN NTOIONIT 68268
90°602°1 0Z*861'1 €0TT8 LT/0€/9 SEITdANS SW3
98701 £0TT8 LT/0€/9 SEITAdNS SWH
ONI LSISSY-FJIT €8268
00°00S’Z 0o*00s’'z LBOTS LT/Lo/L 1¥0ddNS WWHOO0¥d ATHILAVND
T ON 0D INIONI AINIEIT LBZ68
00°L9%'6 007 L9%'6 91218 LT/Lo/L STYNNYH ONINIVAL
DT TOIIXIT 98268
£€S°ZBT'OVT 29°80Z°'0%T yTI18 LT/0E/9 6SESEINOLIAVALENIA MALAWA
-85° S8 ¥2T18 L1/0€/9 YIENYHD-906C¢834
6V 65 ¥Z118 LT/0E/9 OIULIUYD 6068SUL
271 ddr sazes
00°00S 0" 005 280718 LT/Lo/L ¥IDIAIO0 HLIVEH LTI0Z A1I0L
JdaW NYNNETIOW O SIWYL v8Z68
00'€€€’€ 00" EEE’E TTZ18 LT/0€/9 HDYNZLNIVW AV
017 EO¥NOS TLI €8268
90°29 90°29 69018 LT/0€/9 D0€ ¥3d ANNATA
47 dE71 ANY ANOHINY ‘SLOOH 8L68
90" LSE 26" S1E TZ118 LT/0€/9 SONILLIE -¥aT IVL
PT 1Y TZ118 LT/0€/9 SONILLII-IOIANIS
013 SONILIIZ ¥ FSOH 18268
ZB 66L ET ZB 6ELET BEZTIB LI/Lo/L €S000-T¥06009T
HLTYIH NMOLIWOH 08Z68
66°LZL 26°8Y sTZ18 L1/0€/9 JOIDILO¥d AI0D FAVL
00667 STIZIB LT/0E/9 LINZWEOWIJTS OV
ZT° 62T 61118 LT/0E/9 ¥AHSYM Fdd SLIS
S6°0S 61118 LT/0€/9 ONILLIJ INIT JIV -Md
IDIAYES IIAEED 104IA TWOH 6LZ68
00 vLT Ve 00°69€ 6VIT8 LT/0€/9
00°9¥% 6718 LT/0E/9
00°0SL €2 ¥80T8 LT/Lo/L IM0ddNS WWIH0¥d ATIIINVND
00°6 67118 L1/0¢€/9 LTOZ “82-ST INAD
OHDS Q¥¥M HI¥NOd JDIYOLSIH 8L268
YL 999 81°992 LITTB LT/0E/9 SY00d 9071 ‘SLIX diWW
95" 86€E LITT8 L1/0€/9 41 ‘SESSYTO ALEIYS ‘SHIIM
alT INIVW TIDVd X744NS aH LL268
TT1°LZe TT°L2T STIT8 LT/0E/9 S700L
1T KR1ddNS LSNOD A7TddNS aH 9L268
PYTLSE’T Py LSE'T Z1118 LT/0E/9 savod
ar1 ‘I¥H S5LZ68
00° 08T 00°SV S5TI8 L1/0€/9 X S¥
00°SET SS218 LT/0E/9 £X SY
WOL ‘A¥AESNYHED yLzZ6R
L9°12 L9°12 TITT8 LT/0E/9 ¥YHSM Fdd SL IS
HIONIVID £LZ68
0T 9€L’T ST*8LS 0T1T8 LT/0E/9 LET 7ISA / 98T INA -MT
%929 0TITI8 LT/0€/9 8TZ TNO -TdL
¥S TEL oTTIe LT/0€/9 $LE INA-MT
WNITONLAd LES/EIVD NEATOD TLTEB
68°BS9°TT 00°89L'9 SETIB LT/0€/9 dTAT ¥YOEETIST
00°009°€ SETTI8 LT1/0€/9 NIWAVY ¥ads
22" €06 SETT8 L1/0€/9 NOSATYNOd 00LTAY
TYIOL INNOWY H#SNWEL A A (el # 0/d NOILJINOSIA IDIOANI JYOANIA FAEWNON
ADFHD MDFHD
LT/LO/L YILSIODIY NDIHD LT/90/L0 : 23eq uny

k4 abeq AILNJQOD AZ¥OLS STETEd ‘ON 3xoday




[A 98342

SLT89¢€’

00'0¢c0’

00 0SL

00°0sL

sL LLe’

0s-Zvs’

00° 005"

00°00s’

6L°9S

ST'v66"

sLToLs

00" 0se

00°009"

66°8

ISR A0S

S%°98L

£9°999"

LY 0SE’

0S°€9¢L

sz 6t6’

TY.LOL
MOFHD

5 abeq

B6°C

65°¢tl
671
€€ 96
(AN 3 43

1 se'vee
0¥ ¥v0‘T

L 00°0S0°¢L
007 0S¢
00°0SL

1 SL'LLe'l

6 05°959'9
0o*988’2

S 00°000°%
00°00S'T

LE 00°00S'LE
6L°9¢
€ ST '¥66°€

goroLe
SL°009

co"o0sc
z 00°009‘2
66°8

19°¢
09°0TY
-90°8
-¥6° €
Le L9
E0" 2L
ST°6SS
T £9°999'1
4 LY 0Se’e

0086
057599

9 SZ 6€6'9

LNNOWY

cECIs
ceeie
86018
86018
BETIB

zseie
gscis

6L0TS8
ELZT8
8zZZ18
218

02Z1e
LEZTB

vzzie
vzetis

90118
TISTTI8
8c118

92218
92Z21R

89018
peETIB
09218

92118
9TIT8

ZLZT8
ZLZ18
¥veie
89218
SETTIB
£8018
E1Z18

0sT18
0STT8

zzzie

#SNYIL

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€E/9

LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9

LT/Lo/L
LT/0€/9
LI/L0/L
LT/Lo/L

LT/Lo/L
L1/Lo/L

Li/Lo/L
LT/Lo/L

LT/Lo/L
LT/0€/9
L1/0€E/3

LT/LO/L
L1/L0/L

LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
L1/0€/9

LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/L0/L
LT/L0/L
LT/0€E/9
LI/Lo/L
LT/0€/9

L1/0€/9
LT/0€/9

LT/L0/L

qJLva

# 0/d

SJ3AT04 FTId
STEEYT GNY ¥EANOL

SNOIS JLIHNLS

NOISSIWWOD ONINNWYId
YITTOULIWOD

1¥0ddNS WY¥D0¥d 8T/LTOZAd
NOILVNTVAZ ALNd

8T/L OL LT/8-IINSNOD SNI
dWYD HLNOA 0ST° €29 SUN

HZ€7 SAN
dT0¥Vd HLINOA

LNINSSESSY (Z)0%0"vES SAUN
ININSSESSY (Z)0¥0 PES SUN

IWAd TVDOTIHINI dILD ISI
WSI¥NOL oA
HOLWW AILNOQD LTOZ TI¥AVY

SL'9 ® SHEAOTAWE 0%
SL'9 @ SHEAOTIWE 68

SEEJ 1¥04dNS NIWAY

LTO0Z '0€ 3INAL - LT ENAD

I1T0€ -9ZEBP0OS
IIX 1T3€ -9ZEBVOS

YAANTE ONIONH NIN
ONIANIE dFTAVLS LVWIIVHD
S3ITddNS ¥a L1/12/9
1J0ddNS WWN¥OO¥d LT0Z AIAD

YEEIJ 00TX00T

LTOZ ‘82Z-ST 3ANAL
dned

NOILAI¥DSEA EDIOANI

LT/L0/L ¥ALSIDIW NOFHD

ALNNOD XAZYOLS

ONI LOddd F2Idd0

27T ONILTINSNCD NOLEON

ONI VYIN¥OJITYD 40 TILXAN
dAS¥ XALNAOOD TN VAVAEN
HLTH T¥YNOILVANODO WAVAEN

40 NOILVIDOSSY VAVAEN

AT 'SIDINOSTY NYANH AIN

SEOYNOSIY NVKHNH AIN

SIJVNOSIY AZLYM AId ASN
A¥LSEY04d 40 AIQ AEN
NOILYXVI ldEd ASN

SHOENOSEE NYWNH LdEA AEN

SNANI *® SSANISNE Ld3d AIN
d¥00 FAO0D TWdIDINOW
L LYEE0¥ ‘SI¥UOW

WIYWYL ‘NYOIN

0D ¥OLOW THOH TAVHIIW

NI SNOILOTOS EDI440 OdULIW
YLD ALINOWWOD NIVML XEWW

¥SIT ® 1LI1ODS 'NOSIAYW

NOISNYAN AYAITW

JOoaNIa

LT/90/L0
STETEd

Zrees

T1E68

0TE6®
60E68
BOEGSB
LOEGSE

90t68

SO0E68

¥0€68
E0E6B
Z0t68

10E68

ooceeg
66268
86268

L6268

26268

S6268
v6ce8

€6268

26768

YITWON

ADEHD
: ajeq uny
iON 3xodey



9

00°0s2

00°800°0T

00°000'€
00" 799
29°0S
16°S91

00°0SE’9

00°006°1
EL VES'SY

86 ETT‘T

00°0%Z
sg 8L

00°L0Z

00°8s2

68°6LE
00°s2¢
66°S%2
¥8TLZT
TYLOL
MDFHD

abegq

00-0se

00°000°0T
008

00°000€
00" %99
29°'0S
16°S9T

00°sL
00°002'T
00°s¢
00°sT
00°szZ
00°0S
00°0s
00°se
00°000°2
0070002
00" SLE
00°00S

00°006°T
€L YES'SY
00° 02T
00°sL
00°SL
00°sL
86°0L9'T
00" 86
00°0%2Z
9z 8L
00°06
00°S0T
Q0°2ZT

00°%v2Z
00°'%T

68 6LE
00°szz
66°SZT

0002t

INNOWY

LSZT8

S8OT8
9STT8

ELITR
LOTTS
£E¥ZT8
01IZT8

SSTT8
SSTT8
CLTT8
02118
0ZT18
02TI8
ozZrie
PRARs:]
LzZZ18
Lzzie
Lzzte
Lzz1s

99018
9SZ18
BLTISB
BLOTS
8L0T8
LIZT8
PSTI8
PSTI8
€STI8
SCTITIR
vLzig
PeTIB
vLTTB

ZS118
ZSTI8

62118
€6TT8
91118
vOTT8

#SNWAL

LT/0E/9

LT/LO/L
LT/0E/9

LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/LO/L
LT/Lo/L
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L

LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
L1/L0/L
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/3
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/S
LT/0€/9

LT/0€E/S
LT/0€/9

LT/0€E/3
LT/0E/D
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9

FLYa

LT/L0/L

NMYVE(HLIM dd¥ ANNAFY

I¥OdANS WYEO0dd ATYILIYND
LTO0Z '8T-ST ENAL

dTIHSYOSNOES ATIV TIVd
WELSAS ONILNOdIN SWI/TJIA
SYFHOVETE JOd FIGWNT
FOIAYES YHILIOTA

AVA MOWIW/AVA HWY/JALSYI
ALINORKOD

ISYIEd ATINL 30 HLY
Lsv1as

1Sv1gsE

ADHIVELS ‘HOWIYLNO I¥L
ONILINYVA TYID0S

W TYIDOS ANV ONIVOLINOW
ONIIIXIVR

0ESLBET YILIAW

AS 40 FSVHNNG SIWNVH A¥YD
LT0Z ‘92 L&FS-LZ ENAL
I¥Ed008 ¥IINID QOOMID0T
LIFILS D HLNOS TLE
120-ATNL ¥OLINOW WYTY
LOdEd TIIH a7109

WILNED dLSA LSHL 'TYANNY
HIND AOLISTIA/WSIANCL DA

NOILONTEA NYId T¥OIAEW

TUYINTYE FINIHOVW FDVISOd

LTOZ ‘'8Z-ST ENND
ONIENL -N¥3d SOLT
YIVaIY AVAVYE
$2D078 IXAL ¥0d

SHYHEA NOIS

NOILAI¥OSEA FDIOANI

YALSIDIN NDHHD
ALNNOD AH¥OLS

ONI SYOLNEINLSIA AUVWAFHS

NHOL “¥EXOWHOS

ONI ¥IINIOIJY SAYVIW LNIVS
ONI SMOHSAVOH

ONI ‘SWIISAS ONILIOJII
VIANAT ONITYE

(¥D) ONI OO NVOIOW AV

ONI SHUIDILVELS avd
dIM0d ISYHDANA

S INTWIAILIY KTdWE DITANd

ONI S3EDIAEC NOILDHILO¥d
SI¥HD ‘NITNOd

NMVA "NWWTHOd

ONI SaMOd AINLId

a OTIONY ‘INIALId
JILNED FDIAYES TIILS WAL

ONI SOINO¥LOZTE €d

IS ¥ SOIH4VE¥D ZJIS ZHL NO
HOANEA

L1/90/L0
STETEd

otteeg

62¢68

BZEE8
LZEe.
9z¢ce8
sZEee

vZeee

£2¢€68
[44X1:]

TZ€e8

0Zees
6TEEB

8Tced

LTEEB

91EE8
STce8

vIEES

ETEE8

VITHON
JADEHD
a3eqg uny
ON 3x0day



L

2T 1%1’6

00" €52

00°0sZ
0s"Le
0%~ 90T
TVIOL
JXDEHO

abed

00°0S

0E°6ST
S9°%09
1€°S6
1v'6S
06'Z¢t
CE'2CE
9T ELT
$8°60T
69°ES
09°ST0'T
v 6zt
9206
¥y 18
9%'09
09" €2Zs
0T 08T'T
% 9¢
€0°¢262
95612
6E'EE
BZ'8BZT
6€'9¢€
B89 EY
Sv'EE
EE°0E
9T €€
ELA-1
¥8°SZT
Z1'2eL
TL 8T
SL'EC8
16 °62T
68'Z8
IS EL
TIS°LTIZ
19°66
68°LY
6L'09
LS°18
€0°00T
SZ°681
6z 'LL
60°90T
LL 678

00" S0T
00" 87T

00052
0s'Le

0Z° €S
02 €S

LNNOWY

96TT8

TETT8
TETTS®
TETIT8
TETTS
TETT8
TETTE
TETTS
TETT8
TETTS
TETITS
TETTS
TelTE
TETTIR
TETTS
TETTS
TETTS
TETTS
TETITE
TETTLR
TETTE
TETTS
TETTS
TETTS
TET18
TETTS
IETTS
TETTIS
TETTIB
TETTS
TETTIS
TELLS
TETTS8
TETTIR
TETTIB
TETTIS
TETTI8
TETT8
TETTIS
TETTS
TETT8
TETT8
TETTIS
TETT8
TET18

OETTI8
0tTTI8

vLTT8
LSTTS8

S6118
S6TTS

#SNWEL

LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/08/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/3
LT/0E/2
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/8
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/D
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/LO/L
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/3
LT/0€E/9

FLYa

LT/Lo/L

QOOMMD0T TO¥LNOD 1LS3E4

HSHAYTS IHOI¥MINYD 0192
{NIVINNOJ)d=d Q¥ T10L 00T
SLHOIT ¥LS KO 40O NMOL

¥ JO € /IS NOINN 09T
MMYE a¥ HONVE I¥Ed 000T
M¥Vd HOA Q¥ FEIdWI T¥%IC
¥ LINQ AM NOANYD 0Z¥

€ LINN XYM NOANWD 0Z%

1S 3 N S8T

¥a NIEd SOLT

Q¥ HONVY I¥3d 008

SLHOIT 1S J § €S
SIHOIT 1S O S 2Zvt
SIHDIT 1S O N 9LT
FSNOHIYNOD 1S € § 92
NOANWD JTIW XIS 0222
10d¥d HO 1INN IS NIVW
(ONINIVYL) IS O N T®T
SHE¥Id 1S O N

NUYATIVE LS NOSH¥WD

OA LINO IS D S

IHOIT 1¥d/¥00aLnO IS O S
IS D ZLE/OA 1INON IS D S
JONIVD 1S § S V0T

LS NOLINS

¥¥¥d DA IS E N S02

wAn Q¥ ENIAVY TVINVAS 00§
OWISYD IS O § 12

INTd ¥IM LS HLNOS MOOT
AYYd  SNIWETO WYS 06%
TIIVL  TPE AMH SN TT6

0S 1S D S soz

08 1S D S €02

¥a 1S 2 S 102

Z/1 d40HS Q¥ TIOL 00T
oa1d a¥ TI0L 01T

oa1d a¥ 110L O€T
d01S1sa@¥ IS O N I8¢
LINO IS D N SVI

SIY¥ @ LHOIIMIYYD 21392
¥ LS AYM NOANWYD TE€¥
ISHANNG LHOTAMLIYO 0T92
IHOIT 1S SYANOISSIWWOD IS
SIHOIT 1S ALID VINIODJIA

ITOD TWOES ‘OULIN
SAIT0S dsSNS ‘ILL‘Hd “SAOH

LT0Z ‘8Z-ST IANQL

ATIIN SLVWNI
ATINW JLVANY

NOILAI¥OSHEA HEDIOANI

JIISIOIE HDIHD
ALNOQD AJ¥OLS

ONI TOMINOD 1Sdd WV¥¥dIS SEE68

0D YIMO4 JIJIDVd WNEIS veees

TYINZWUNOIIANT WI¥IIS £EE68
W NIITHIVA ‘dETOHS zeees

NITTY NVI¥E ‘JYOHS TEE6B

JOANZA YIEWON
MAD3IHD

LT/90/L0 * ®3eQ UNY
STETEd :ON 3x0day




8

00°ss2'%

00°00s8'2
66°9¥C
T0° 202
00°639S'€E

68°2SL'%

057 L6Z

00°0SL EE

00°¥0S €T

00" LPE

SLTTO0E

08°0S9'T
veoLs
00°80T
00°0S
TY¥LOL
MDIHD

abeg

6€°SEL

00°9%7¢‘¢€
00°92%
00877
00°st

00°00s°‘2
66 ¥¥C
10°'202
00'69S°¢t

96" %L
28'99
65°8BZ1
LB TZE
ZSLIT
[44a8 44
96°vE
6L°8ST
69" €EV6
6ETELE'T
T6°9LT
91°0LT
29°vL
SLUest
657821
L3° 09T
6L°BST
65" 82T

0s-zzt
00°GLT

00" 0SLEE

00°00S‘€ET

00" ¥
00°00E
00" LY

ST ELT
00°82T
00" 8L

=0S5°LL

08°089°T
v Le

00°80T

LNOOWY

039118

19118
19118
19118
T9118

€2218
¥9018
LZITR
€£90T8

0%TTS8
ovtlte
ovTLS8
ovtIe
0%11I8
ovIIB
0vTIB
0%TI8
0rTIR
ovtis
0¥TI8
0vYTIS8
0TI
0%TI8
09118
07118
0PTIR
o0vT1s

€CTI8
SLTTS

BE8OTS

08018
6STI8

L9018
SeZ18

LETTS
LETTS
LeTT®
LETTIB
BSTTS8
6ETTE

59218

#FSNTIL

LT/0E/S

LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/LO/L
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/3
LT/0E/3
LT/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/S

LT/0€/9
Lt/Lo/L

LT/Lo/L

LT/L0/L
LT/0€/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0E/S

aLva

LT/L0/L

dOHS IJ4ID ¥04 SA00€E

L10Z ‘82-ST 3ANOC
13DaANE 8T-LTO0Z ¥FJ ISWAT
4NOD NOILDETE SOS SNOVH

€/2 JATUIHS

LS O TLE

T00d
OLDA BBZLIO

I¥0ddNS WYND0Ed ATNILIVND

1¥0ddNs S¥IIIE BT/LTOZAL
LT0Z '8Z-ST aNnr

HINVHAELS ‘YVENDW
AYdAEAOC

TIMOIJIIVYE ¥ dL
TIMOLAZAVT

YESNEJSIA TIMOLAIIYd ¥ 4L
TEMOLAEAVd HOIOANI LIAEAD
dOHS LATH ¥04 NID WHD

JILVYEH -dd

NOILETHOSHA HOIOANI

YILSIDAT ADTHD
ALNOOD AH¥OLS

ONI ‘SNOILWDITENE LTIIENNS

SESTHAYELNT XV¥Hd NNS
SS04d dFEL ALNNOD AFTIOLS
YSSHENVA ‘SNIHJHLS

‘ SNOILVDINNWWOD ¥Y.LSZHVLS

MAVW ‘' QUOIIVLS

WILSAS ¥HLYM 00 LS

dATHIHS 0D IS

(JA) ¥EINED ¥OINAS 0D 1S

LOIULSIA TOOHDS 0D LS

MAEATO 0D IS

IITI £ DINIWOQ ‘3ANOTIVES
S 3 INIM SYIZVID NAIHINOS
ONI SIONJO¥d ¥HMOd HIIWS
¥Ed D11 SIEIVYLSNANI ADITS

HOANIA

L1/90/L0
STETEd

0ste8

6%E68
8vEes
LYE6B
oveEes

Svtes

vvees

EVEES

Zvees

vees

oveEes

6EE68
8gees
LEEGB
9€EE8

HTEWAN
MDEHD

@3eq uny
:ON 3jx0day



6

00°09¢€
96°5¢¢
00" 88

00°086°%

00°00€’'S

LY LYC

66°621'2C

69°950T'T
08" 0EY
00'856 '8¢
00°00T

99°S¥E’S

00°%Zv‘C

o8B ecy

00°00T'T
0L 0TT
6E€°SEE
IYLOL
¥O3FHO

abedg

007 06T
09°8s

00°09¢€
96°S¢¢
0088

0079552
00°0TC
00°0S6°T
00°9s2
008

00°6%D ‘S
0073959
00°Ser
o018
00°6

00°ST
Ly 2t
00" 0L
00°0S
00°0s
00°0s

00°'0EE
T1°CEE
88 LSV T
695°90T'T
08°0EY
00°'8S6 ‘8€
00" 00T
28'66L'T
L1 2L
80 E6L'T
8€"¥8Z'T
T 961

oo"oLo‘z
00" ¥SE

00" 0SE
08 6L

00°00T'T

0L 0TT

LNOCWY

EVITE
EVIT8

86TT8
ovZie
SOTTS

99118
99118
93118
99118
99118

SSTI8
S9TT8
S9TI8
S91T8
S39TI8

vI9TI8
79118
POTTIR
LLTTB
LLTITIB
LLTTB

6v218
6vZ1ie
69218
6€218
66118
69218
Zveis
[4 a9
[ Ax:]
[A294:]
[4-a0%:]
[4ans:]

€9T18
€9T18

9LTTIR
[4:281]

60TT8

15 284 :]

#SNWAL

LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9

LT/0€/9
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9

LT/0€/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0€E/9

LT/0€/3
LT/0€E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/3

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L
LT/LO/L

LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9
LT/LO/L
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/S
LT/0E/3
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9

LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9

LT/LO/L
LT/0€/9

L1/0€/9

LT/0E/9

FLYa

LI/L0/L

# 0/4d

VO DJ0‘IT0D ‘ATVY
AVEL LNVNO

A90T00IX0L
JFETLAY TOO0 LY0BPO OF

WACAINN TYNOSWHES

LTOZ ‘Sz INAL-62 TIVAY

LT0Z ‘BZ-ST dNOL

LTOZ ‘82-ST ENAL

NOD FT3dvd dIHS
SYITddNS ONILSYL NID WD
LT/22/9 OZYYWIA "V
ANITE ¥0d TOND UZWY
ANITE JOd TOND HEWY
ANITE ¥Od TIND YIWY
HSVE DA

z/t ANYS -¥ELYM
zZ/T ASYE -DA
TYINIA FIWILIL

L¥E) ¥ A1Nd3d ‘SIYH
SANIHOVW ZLID SO0ZW¥d
aNnazy

06T 1TSa / S69 DY -Md
09T 1TSA -HDA

SYT 1SA / 0SL 9FA-Md
SET 1ISA / 00S 93y -Md
dHL Q00T AHD Md

LT0Z ‘8Z-ST ENNCL

av YINNVE ENITNO

OWYINOD INIVW WILSAS Tand

SHITddNS T00d

NOILETI¥OSEA HDIOANI

¥ILSTIOAE MOITHO
ALNNOD AFEOLS

EY'T TYLNIANONIANT NJILSHM
YINO¥OD 0D EHOHSYM
ONI ’N¥Id EDIA¥HS NOISIA

ddA SAONYTIHOIH VINIODYIA

ONI S¥N0L ALID VINIDAIA

00 W FIAAONUEL T VINIDAIA

OLDA

ONI “MDO¥ L 3 A
0D SNI HJVYOHLIVIHAILINO
D171 YAVYAEIN 40 ALIWMOJINN
ONI 'SEIDOTONHOIL ¥ETAL

¥OISSEL ‘NISWOHL

OTT WNETO¥LEd SYWOHL

SAOEHMOD ENOLSEWOL FHIL

AONEOV SOINY ZFHL

ONI SWELSAS HOEL NAS
SIONA0¥d 1004 YOIWE4NS
JOANIA

LT/90/L0
STETEd

L9E68
99¢£68
S9¢t68

¥ote6s

€9€68

z9€£68

T9¢€68

09¢cee
6SE68B
85€68
LSEE8

9¢ceee

SSe68

7SE68

£5€68
ZSE68
1s¢€68
FITWON
MDEHD

3jeq uny
ON 3x0day



ot

I8 YET'0E9
00°s25°1
00°00T
C0°000'S
C9"ETT'T

TYI0L
MOEHD

abedq

IYIOL SMDIHD
00°628°'T
00°00T
00°000°S
00°598

LNNCOWY

osets LT/0E/9 SI¥ID ¥A / A¥HSNOD
89TT8  LI/LO/L SNEHAAIS ‘A 404 ANOE
1e218 LT/L0/tL 8T/LT0Z
€FTTI8 LT/0€/9 OTVHI¥L 11l ‘OTVH
#SNVAL ALYa # 0/a NOTILETHOS3A FDIOANI

LT/L0/L NIALSIDAN NDIHO
ALNNOD AH¥OLS

NEJYWA YONNZ oLees

ANYAWOD ALZANS NATLSIM 69€68
LSIA dOTIAZA AIN NNILSHEM 89¢€68
JOANZA UIEWON

HDEHD

L1/90/L0 ¢ @3Bg unyg
STETEd :ON 3x0day

-




T

IVLOL
(et.4 o]

abeg

9L S6
LT V6
€E€'68
66°6T1
S6°621
€E" 86
SE" LY
0c- Bz
00 oL
81 1Z
LO"S9
00°s8
LA 14
ET 8TT
6Z° 91V
LY 29
00°'s2T
LY 61
LS°9¢€9
ze'z
S0'Y
v 201
98 vE
BL D
00°00T
66°SZ
00528
657 LYT
00" 02
00°09
-88°6S
6€° 02T
22'9ve
B86'Z%
26" 12
¥v°9
66" %1
L9"96L
SL YL
09" €T
9L*6TT
SL*2SE
16 %E
0oL
00-0s2
96°TE
00°92
L6 62T
00 0s
00" 0L
00°0S
9L €0T
66°6E
96°0€EZ
z8° LT

LNOWY

LTTIT
LTI
LTTT
LITT
LITT
9211
9211
9211
¥2I1T
LZ11
Ih444
LZTT
LZTT
LZIT
LZ1iT
LZTT
LZTT
ETITT
ETTT
LZTIT
LZTIT
8211
8ZTT
LZIT
LTTIT
LTIT
9Z11
TTIST
TIsT
T1stT
€ITT
€ITIT
ETITT
ETTT
ETTIT
ETITT
ETITT
vetlt
vZit
9TITT
9TTT
9TITL
TTST
6ZTT
T21T
TTTIT
TIZTT
TZ11T
I2Z1T
TZit
TZ1T
911t
TITT
6TTIT
LZTIT

#SNVAL

LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/S
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
Lt/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/S
LI/0E/S
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
L1/0e/9
L1/0€/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0€E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
L1/0E/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0€/9
L1/0¢€/9
LT/0€/9
L1/0€/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0E/9
L1/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0€/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9
LT/0E/9

aLva

1Sd aoOM3D0T

18da 08dA

T8d vLLS

INTFRIDYIdEYE FSNOW

00 EOVHOLS

OSIATIM Q¥C3AE ‘SNIVA
22dNY DW ‘EA0Q O ‘O¥
HFIAOCDTOL € HLIM SINW
BTAL X0€ Od Sdsn

TVEN F¥Td AVIHNYINE
T8Nd TATd AYVIHNYINE
TdNd FTAFII AYIHNVINE
IVEWN ZVId QUIHNVINE
ONIDAOT FAIJI AVIHNVINE
TaNJ FYIA NIMAOOD
INIVW NODIS ¥vIE AIIOWS
TN AT AOOMATIOH
aINTd dFILSd

LES T00L

FOVLSOd

FOVLSOd

VINSJIDNI H¥Id NIMJOOD
TaNd FEIA NIMACOD
STVEW H3IdA NIMAOOD
WYOJINN ALI¥NDES
ZSIANVHDOYEMW dOHS LJAID
ISNEdXE NID A¥ILIEIWED
ANYS INZDOd HAVAVd WAEW
LIAaED

IITddNS INIVIW 0M¥Yd DA
SQUVYOH FONIE -T00d
LNIVd -HD

§4174dNS INIVK 9 % €
STYI™ELYW 1004

S€NS ATHLNOW

SAITddAS NOILVYAJISNOD
SHI11ddNS EDIJJ0 ISIW
IOVy ¥DOV¥H dIHS ZOWLSO0d
WHOJINO LSOd NOSNWY
THLOH ONINVEL MVINMOTID

INIVEL ¥NQ 34 ONIXAWA
d FONZTUFINOD ODUN LTOZ
SNEd ONILINM

HSAN0OD AIMOd

SdI17d44NS FDIIJI0

ENAa NSSV LOW ADNIOYAWH
H¥LS O § ZLE -LANYELNI
LYW XSEd ONIANVLS
WEOJINN ISOd ¥ANUWL
HYOLINOW OL dOXdv'l

I¥L NOILDETE SVYOHA SV1I
IVdd¥ NOIS YVAH XENOWS

NOILAT¥DOSEA

HILSIOSN QYD ISYHDENA

ALNNOD AZVOLS

69BCSY0ST

ET6¥988ET

€99TTO8ET

L6EB66D

9L300000

¥NOL IWL NILLIHM
HOVTYd NILLIHM
LNIOd NMO¥D NILLIHM
EOTOLES " "# SNWAL
AVMENS HOSITIIL
TOVE UEATIS HISITTIL
TIO TTIIHS HOSITIIL
SAZTAI¥ HOSITIIL
FNODHETLSI¥E HOSITIIL
Y6 0#YL VIAANS

10430 FIWOH AIAANS
A¥INNOD SHAOT HLIWS
ATIIZYO-VLLIWAS

aH -YLLEMIS

LT6290 SdSN 1TISSN™
LTTZ90 S§dsSn 173ssnyd
S¥17ddNS LN
AONTAZTAINOD LLIN
NIATOO-9L VAOLNOW
V6 0#VYL VAOLNOW
ANNHO YAOLNOW
ALTWIOJINN AANTAN
NINAWISTIA ¥AVISIA aX
NOIIILEdWOD 4S5 A
NOIHSYd 470 S.d3y ax
AH-HJIJIEL

dH -HJJ30

dE -~HEZdar

aH -HA3E0

dR -Haaape
SHMOT-ANOSYL

H400q¥ -ANOSYL
T99LSTSO# ANI
9Z99802" " "# ANI
5480 - VANIAVD
dOHSNDISY - VONAAVYD
LSHE WY - YANIAVD
MI¥E OaWAOATE aa
ATIIANYD
ODUN-NIAZN"D
NOZVWV-NIAZN" D

ANN -NTAAN"D
LO43QEDIIA0 -NIAIN'D
VdEN -NIAIN'D

LIY -NIASN'D
NOZVYWY -NIAZEN"D
dOHSNDISY - SNiunNg
00 14vav ANE ISHE
AGNEM ‘SODVE

LO4Ed FWOH SNINAV

INEWAVd QdVD TVIDYEWWOD ENO STTaM (484

# EDIOANI I43A-ANNA

AOANEA YIEWON

od
LT/90/L0 : @3eq uny
LS08¥SHd :ON 1xodey




4

61°Z08°L

6T zZoe'L

TYLOL

abeg

a0°szz
00"

00"

00~

0o0-

00" LET’T

LNNOWY

YANOISSIWWOD

JLva NOILVZIYOHIAV ANV MATAIY 40 INIWIOCTETMONADV

12301 PIEDas

BITT LT/L0/L WAOTHARA % ONINIVEL JH ZIATIOL ¥NN FATAEOW
LZIT LT/Lo/L

LITT LT/LO/L
TIST LT/L0/L
TITT LT/LO/L
LITT LT/0€/9 dEETI TIVL 0SXO0S YYY08S9000TER
#SNWUY aLva NOILAIN¥DS3Ia # EDIOANT LIdZA-ANNS JOaN3A JIEWNN
2d
UALSIOEA AVD ESYHIANA L1/80/L0 23eg uny

AINNOD ATIOLS LS0BYSEd :ON 3Ix0day




T

abeg

0070009

00°000°9

1e30L
%93Ud

AZNYOLLY LOI¥LSIA

qIva NOLLVZINOHLNY (ONV MEIAZY 30 INIWADAITMONIOV

TBIOL S}23YUD

00°000'9 1T LT/90/L LT/9/L LO-DS-LT XTI0L
OTT dNO¥D JFILA0d s
Junouy #asyonos a3eq uotadraosag 3oTOAUT zopusp Zaquny
303uD
LT/90/L SYD3UD OTUOIIDITI IOF I938THAY LT/90/L0 : @3eq uny

ALNNOD AHAOLS

HO08ETHd :ON 3x0day




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7-18-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent (X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephone: 817-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Department Hdad Department Name:
Q=
Coun ¢ : Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 5/~



Storey County Community Bebvelopment

Wy

Business §§

o) Licensing

Ea

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 * buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 10, 2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr; Sarah Dillon

Please add the following item(s) to the July 18, 2017 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

OF >

ARECEQEEY

™

RONOZE!

o

“rz=<gc=

Z.

ALUMAG AUTOMOTIVE - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV(Installation)

DESALITECH, INC — Contractor / | Gateway Center ~ Newton, MA(Water Treatment System)

LYNX CONTROL SYSTEMS — Contractor / PO Box 138 ~ Israel (Control Systems)

ENCORE AUTOMATION, LLC —Contractor /50Corporate Dr. Auburn Hills, MI (Installation)

ROE PAINTING, INC - Contractor /~ PO Box 7351 Boise, ID (Painting Contractor)

DAN MILLS CONSTRUCTION NEVADA, INC —Contractor / Po Box 19760~Reno, NV (Framing Sub-Contractor)
HESCO SERVICES, INC. — Contractor / 862 West Fine Drive ~ Salt lake City, UT (Contractor)

CHAMPION EMPLOYMENT GROUP - General / 10358 Gratiot Ave, Columbus MI (Staffing )

VERUS ASSOCIATES NEVADA, LLC —Professional/ 9210 Prototype Dr. #101 Reno, NV(Engineering)

M & L ELECTRICAL, INC — Contractor / 6060 Scottsville Rd, Bowling Green KY (Electrical Contractor)
SLE ELLECTRONIC GMBH - Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV( (Design)

HIRATA ENGINEERING INCORPORATED - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Design)
GIROUX GLASS, INC —Contractor / 850 W. Washington Blvd. #200, Los Angeles, CA (Safety Evaluation)
BELAY ENGINEERING CO. — Professional / 2328 Walsh Ave # L, Santa Clara, CA(Contractor)

XION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV (Installation)

AMADA MACHINE TOOLS AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 2324 Palmer Dr., Schaumbung, IL (Installation)
NORBLAST, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd #2 , Sparks NV (Installation)

CTH INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, LLC — Professional/ 7550 Bluewater Hwy, Saranac, MI (Engineering)
PRECISION CONTROL SYSTEMS GROUP, LL.C - Professional / 29355 W 9 Mile Rd, Farmington, MI
(Computer Programming)

J & R TADROS, INC. — Professional / 130950Trail Dust Ave, San Diego, CA (Consultant)

SEYI-AMERICA, INC. - Profcssional/ 17534 Von Karman Ave, Irvine, CA (Metal Stamping)

CDWDIRECT, LLC — Professional /200 N. Milwaukee Ave, Vernon Hills IL (Direct Marketer)

. BETS SERVICIOS PROFESSIONALES - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Engineering)

BECK FACILITY SERVICES, LLC —Contractor/ 147 Jackson St., Newnan, GA (Janitorial)
ACCLAIMED INSPECTION SERVICES, INC -Professional- 598 Damonte Ranch Prkwy # B112, Reno, NV

(Inspector)
TOOLING SYSTEMS GROUP - Contractor /4315 3 Mile Rd, Grand Rapids, MI (Manufacturing)

AA.R.E LEWIS REFRIGERATION, INC. — Contractor / PO BOX 92 ~ Creston, 1A ( Refrigeration Contractor )

BB.
CC.
DD.
EE.
FF.

PINNACLE HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING ~ Contractor / 5301 Longley Lane Bldg. #201,Reno, NV(HVAC)
EMPLQYBRIDGE - General / 5580 Mill St., Reno, NV (Staffing)

SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION OF MN CO. — Contractor / 575 Minnehaha Ave W, St. Paul, MI (Design)
STEYER ASSOCIATES, INC General/ 115 Hall Brothers Loop #104, Bainbridge Island, WA (Staffing)

3R AUTOMATION, INCOPORATED- Contractor/5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV(Automation)



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

[ Sl Yicenging

GG. COMPLETE ROBOTICS, INC - Professional — 3509 Elizabeth lake Rd~ Waterford , MI (Computer Programing)

HH. CBR ENTERPRISES, LLC - Professional /5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno, NV (Project Management )

II. TECNOEFFE, LLC - Contractor / 4650 Wedekind Rd. # 2, Sparks, NV (Installation)

JJ. CENTERAL STRIPING SERVICE, INC — Contractor / 3489 Luyung Dr.,Rancho Cordova, CA(Roadway Stripping)

KK. BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION - Pro /425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN ( sales)

LL. HOMEGROWN GASTROPUB - General / 719 D. Virginia St., Reno, NV (Mobile Food Truck)

MM. AUTOMATION ELECTRIC, INC. — Professional /3983 S MCCarran Blvd., #491 , Reno, NV (Troubleshooting)

NN. ALPHA ASSEMBLY SOLUTIONS — Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY (Manufacturer)

00, NORTH AMERICAN MILLWORK, INC. - Contractor / 105 Catron Dr., Reno, NV (Contractor)

PP. ARMAC CONSTRUCTION, LL.C —Contractor / 343 Fairview Dr. #103 , Carson City, NV ( Excavation)

QQ CONCEPT SYSTEMS, INC. — Professional /1957 Fescue St. SE, Albany, OR (Field Service Tech.)
RENO TAHOE ADVENTURES, LLC - Transpiration/ 18224 Fontana Ct.,~ Reno, NV (Tour Operations)

SS US GRANITE- NEVADA, INC - Contractor / 5350 Capital Ct., #100, Reno, NV (Fabrication)

TT. COAST MACHINERY MOVERS OF NV, INC. -Transpiration/2431 Chico Ave, So El Monte,CA (Machinery
Moving)

UU. R & E AUTOMATED SYSTEMS- Professional /17500 23 Mile Rd . Macomb MI( Engineering)

VV. ABC EMPLOYMENT HOLDINGS, LLC General/ 6610 N Shadeland Ave., Indianapolis, IN (Staffing)

WW. MILLWRIGHTS 4 HIRE, LLC - General/ 237 Lexington St. Lancaster, KY ( Staffing)

XX. QUALITY COMMUNICATIONS, INC Contractor/ 212 Murray Street ~ Garden City, ID (Cabling Contractor)

YY. RKIINSTRUMENTS, INC Professional/ 33248 Central Ave, Union City, CA ( Training)

Z7. HUMAN RESOURCES UNLTD, INC. General — 3451 Dunckel Rd #200 Lansing, MI ( Staffing)

AAA.LEVEL ONE ROBOTICS & CONTROLS, INC - Pro- 401 Ryland St. #200A, Reno, NV (Software)

BBB. J.E. SIMAS FLOORS,INC. — Contractor/ 9400 S Virginia St. Reno, NV (Floor Covering — Sales, Install)

CCC.ENTEGEE, INC, - Professional/10151 Deerwood Park Blvd # 200 , Jacksonville, Fl ( Robot Programing )

DDD. TOX —PRESSOTECHNIK L.L.C — Contractor — 4250 Weaver Prkwy, Warrenville, II. (Manufacturing )

EEE. YOUNG FAIRBANKS NTERPRISES, LLC- dba - Kim’s Kool Treats- General — 2725 E 9" St., Silver Springs,
NV ( Mobile Food Truck)

FFF. COMPRESSOR-PUMP & SERVICE, INC. — Professional- 3333 W, 2400 South., Salt Lake City, UT ( Sales)

cc: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners” Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 18, 2017 Estimate of Time Required: 5-15 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Update from Mike Kazmierski, President and CEO of Economic Development
Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN).

2. Recommended motion: No action needed.

3. Prepared by: Manager

Department: Commission Contact Number: 775.847.0968

4, Staff Summary: None.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commission

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9, Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

a

Herm 8



Meeting date: July 18, 2017
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Estimate of Time Required: 5-20 min.

Title: Storey County Federal Government Affairs partner and U.S. Congressman (NV-
Ret) Honorable Jon Porter providing updates on federal matters of interest including in
general and specific to Storey County including H.R. 756 (Postal Reform), H.R. 2193
(Remote Transaction Parity) and Public Lands conveyance in the Virginia City, Gold Hill

and Mark Twain areas.

Recommended motion: None.

Prepared by: Manager

Department: Commission

Staff Summary: None.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

Department Head

County Manager

Board Action:

Contact Number: 77.847.0968

Department Name: Commission

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued

Hem O



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/18/17 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

l. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Authorize the Storey County Manager to approve a contract
with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $11,000 for the USGS to acquire high-resolution
digital elevation data developed from airborne Lidar in the Mark Twain Estates, Six Mile Canyon, Virginia
City, and Gold Hill areas in Storey County, Nevada. The Lidar data will be used to evaluate area
topography for the purpose of planning and developing stormwater flood mitigation in the subject areas.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner] authorize
the Storey County Manager to approve a contract with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to
$11,000 for the USGS to acquire high-resolution digital elevation data developed from airborne Lidar in the
Mark Twain Estates, Six Mile Canyon, Virginia City, and Gold Hill areas in Storey County, Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: Mark Twain, Six Mile Canyon, Virginia City, and Gold Hill have been impacted by
flooding in the past, with the most recent event occurring in early 2017. Storey County has FEMA
funding opportunities to develop an area drainage master plan to address drainage and flooding issues in
these areas. Adjacent areas in Lyon County, which are immediately downstream of Mark Twain, Storey
County, experience similar flooding issues, particularly from Six Mile Canyon Creek. Both counties
through regional inter-local cooperation will produce a single and consistent area drainage master plan.
Storey County is cooperating regionally with the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) which
is leading the FEMA funding application effort. The Lidar data from this USGS contract will be used by
planning engineers and the CWSD as part of FEMA funding applications.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Task order description; (B) draft contract between Storey County
and the USGS.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:

@’ Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied (] Continued

Agenda Item No. RO

Page 1 of 1



This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of | page, referred to in and
part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for
Professional Serviees dated September [, 2009,

Task Order

Task Order Number: 16
Date: March 24, 2017

Title: Mark Twain Drainage

Project Description: Recent flooding events have impacted the Mark ‘T'wain Arca. Storey County has
FEMA funding opportunities to develop an Area Drainage Masler Plan to address the Area’s drainage and
flooding issues. Downstream of the Mark T'wain Arca, Lyon Counly is experiencing similar flood issues
within Dayton Valley, particularly from Six Mile Canyon Creek. The two Counties will be partnering
together to produce a single Area Drainage Master Plan. The Carson Watcr Subconservancy District is
leading the FEMA funding application cfTort.

The Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agrecment of the parties.

PART 1 - SERVICES

A. Provide professional services to Storey County for preliminary engineering, USGS LiDAR mapping,
and FEMA grant funding application process to address drainage and flooding issues within the Mark
Twain Area. Work will also include coordination with the Carson Water Subconservancy District and
attending joint meetings with Storey and Lyon Counties.

PART 2 - COMPENSATION

Storey County shall reimburse Farr West Engineering on a Time and Expense Basis not to exceed
$5,000.00.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Task Order.

Owner: Storey County Engineer: Farr Wyﬂ@mcring
By: — By: fr < —
Xl o T/
Print . Print
Name: Pat Whitten Name: Damon McAlister, PE
Title: County Manager Title: Principal Civil Engineer
Date Date
Signed: 26 MR e\ 20\ ] Signed: Oj/gf(ﬂ/ﬁo | F
Page 1 of 1

Exhibit A - Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Form 9-1366 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR  Customer #:

(April 2015) GEOLOGICAL SURVEY Agreement #:
Project #:
JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT TIN #:
Fixed Cost
Agreement NO
FOR

Storey County Q1 Addition and Upgrade to the 2017 Reno/Carson City Lidar Acquisition

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the, day of . by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, UNITED
STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the County of Storey, Nevada, party of the
second part.

The parties hereto agree that subject to availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation The USGS and Storey County will collaborate to acquire high-
resolution digital elevation data developed from airborne lidar. See attached Statement of Work. herein called
the program. The USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50; and 43 USC 50b.

2. The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work

directly related to this program. 2(b) includes In-Kind Services in the amount of $0.00

(a) by the party of the first part during the period

Amount Date to Date
$0.00 Date of Last Signature December 31, 2018
(b} by the party of the second part during the period
Amount Date to Date
$10,200.00 Date of Last Signature December 31, 2018

Funding is to add additional AQI at higher resolution to the 2017 Reno/Carson City Lidar Acquisition.
(c)  Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national programs, in

the amount of: $0.00

Description of the USGS regional/national program:

National Geospatial Program. The National Geospatial Program provides leadership for USGS geospatial A,
coordination, production and service activities. The Program engages partners to develop standards and
produce consistent and accurate data through its National Map Liaisons.

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be
determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties.

(e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters
between the parties.

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively
governing each party.

4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review
by an authorized representative of the party of the first part.



The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or
their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party
of the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement.

6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be
open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner,
either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other party.

9-1366 (Continuation) Customer #: Agreement #:
7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon request,

copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

8. The maps, records, or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as possible. The
maps, records, or reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of the second part
reserves the right to publish the results of this program and, if already published by the party of the first part shall, upon
request, be furnished by the party of the first part, at costs, impressions suitable for purposes of reproduction similar to that
for which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records, or reports published by either party shall contain a statement of
the cooperative relations hetween the parties,

9. USGS will issue billings utilizing Department of the Interior Bill for Collection {form DI-1040). Billing documents are to be

rendered in advance for the full agreement amount. Invoices not paid within 60 days from date of bill will bear Interest,
Penalties, and Administrative cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at 31 U.S.C. § 3717)

established by the U,S. Treasury.

U.S. Geological Survey
United States
Department of the Interior

Storey County, Nevada

USGS Point of Contact Customer Poin ontact
Name: Carol Ostergren Name: Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller
Address: 6000 J Street, Placer Hall, Suite 5000 Address: P.O. Box 432
Sacramento CA 95819 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Telephone:  916,848.9002 Telephone:  775.847.1006
Email: costergren@usgs.gov Email: hgallagher@storeycounty.org
Signatures and Date
Digilslly signod by KARI CRAUN
Signature: KAR' “”?.:,iJ‘ e e Date: Signature: Date:
avcGoological Survay, cneKARI
CRAUN,
CRAUN :a:’.‘wzwno:wmmn.uwwu 5/16/2017
Qule: 2017 05 18 12:1351 -0500
Name: Kari. J Craun Name: Pat Whitten
Title: Director, USGS-NGTOC Title: County Manager




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/18/17 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 17-465 clarifying the
economic benefits of improved rail service to and from Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, and the northern Nevada region by means of rail-oriented land ferry system,
and recommending to the Nevada Department of Transportation that the benefits of a land ferry
system are studied in further detail and that it applies for and accept federal, state, and other
funding opportunities to develop and carry out a state plan for land ferry rail service.

2. Recommended motion:

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion to approve Resolution No. 17-
465 clarifying the economic benefits of improved rail service to and from Storey County and the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, and the northern Nevada region by means of land ferry system, and recommending
to the Nevada Department of Transportation that the benefits of a land ferry system are studied in further
detail and that it apply for and accepts federal, state, and other funding opportunities to develop and carry
out a state plan for land ferry rail service.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: The Steel Interstate Coalition met with county staff and discussed the potential
benefits of a local, regional, and interstate rail-oriented land ferry system that could
significantly lessen trucking and personal vehicle transportation costs while also improving
safety and convenience. The group requests to present the land ferry concept to and answer
questions from the board and public.

6. Supporting materials: None at this time.

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
_@’___ Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— —
—_——

Agenda Item No. l \



RESOLUTION 17-465

RESOLUTION CLARIFYING THE ECONOMIC BENNIFITS OF IMPROVED RAIL
SERVICE TO STOREY COUNTY AND THE TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER BY
MEANS OF A LAND FERRY SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the Phase | Land Ferry Economic and Engineering Assessment forecast a $3
billion, 40-year, net benefit to the state of Nevada, further assessment is needed to validate these
results and learn more about this transportation planning opportunity.

WHEREAS, Pursuant to:

NRS 705.421 Department of Transportation to develop state plan for service by rail. The
Department of Transportation:
1. Shall develop, in conjunction with the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada, a state
plan for rail service; and
2. May carry out the plan, including projects to:
(a) Preserve rail lines;
(b) Rehabilitate rail lines to improve service; and
(c) Restore or improve freight service on rail lines which are potentially subject
to abandonment.

WHEREAS, Pursuant to:

NRS 705.423 Power of Department of Transportation to accept money, enter into agreements
and act as agent for county or city.

1. The Department of Transportation may:

(a) Apply for and accept federal, state, local and private money to develop the
state plan for rail service and to carry it out; and

(b) Enter into compacts, contracts and agreements with other states or groups of
states, the Federal Government, railroad corporations, users of railroads or other persons if the
Director of the Department of Transportation determines that the compacts, contracts and
agreements are consistent with the state plan for rail service and are necessary for the
preservation or restoration of rail freight service which is vital to the State, but no state money
may be expended to carry out the plan and no compact, contract or agreement may require the
expenditure of state money unless previously authorized by the Legislature.

2. The Department of Transportation may serve as agent for any county or city upon the
request of the governing body of the county or city in applying for and accepting money from
public and private sources for railroad purposes and in carrying out any of the statutory powers
of the county or city with respect to railroads.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution No. 17-465, requesting the following
from the Nevada Department of Transportation:
1. That the Nevada Department of Transportation apply for and accept money from
public and private sources for railroad purposes and carry out any of the statutory powers

Page 1 of 2



of the county and more specifically fund the Phase II Steel Interstate Draft Scope of
Work.

2. That if findings of this study show positive economic benefits to Storey County, the
region, and the State of Nevada that the study becomes part of the Nevada State Rail
Plan.

3. That if findings of this study show positive economic benefits to Storey County, the
region, and the State of Nevada that the Nevada Department of Transportation request
authorization through the Legislature to carry out the plan and enter into compacts,
contract or agreement as necessary to implement the plan.

This resolution shall be effective on the 18" day of July, 2017.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of July, 2017.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

THOSE VOTING NAE:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman

ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/17 Estimate of time required: 5 mins

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DEVNET $230,413.70 5 year contract for CAMA software to replace current ADS being
phased out

2. Recommended motion  Approval

3. Prepared by: Jana Seddon
Department:  Assessor Telephone: 775-847-0961
4. Staff summary: This is a software package for Tax Collection, Assessor, & Building &
Permits due to Advanced Data Systems our current software company closing 12/31/19

5. Supporting materials: See attached contract

6. Fiscal impact: $230,413.70 for a 5 year contract

Funds Available: Fund: % Comptroller

7. Legal review required: L 5
\, District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L s |
—_—

Agenda Item No. | Z_



DEVNET

©O 0O

Contract

For

Property Tax and CAMA
License, Maintenance, and Support

Storey County, Nevada

1709 AFTON ROAD, SYCAMORE, IL 60178
P :(815)899-6850 TF:(866)4-DEVNET F: (815)899-0020
www,devnetinc.com



Table of Contents

Maintenance, Licensing, and Support Services Agreement...........ccccoreiininennsinciesssessse e e 3
ROCILAIB ...oeioieeciaionnceniasersiissivbossssnisasisisssnsvamassismssssrnsuoaassobs siansssnssasnneanasseainss fonssnassys4siosatsnss KssasessPAssssaRSEs SOy Sasse 3
Article 1: Definitions............ .. cciinonsssiansimsssisivanessssmsioiiinniosinssonsrssistsssonssionssinassiansisssiensinanstssasassnnssressss 3
Article 2: Description of Software and Services..............c.iiiiinn s 5
Article 3: County ReSpONSIDIlItIeSs ............cocivieieieccirci e e 9
Article 4: Term and TermMiNatioN.........ccocuiviericeiieminriieemeriiene e e nies e sesrassessse e ses s i e ans s s ansass s ssssnsasasaesansins 14
Articlo 5: Foes and PaymMent. . i uissssinvisiiaiss st s i s 6615550846056 60644 5488 oa TS o mm i 15
Article 6: Proprietary RGNS ..........ccciviiiiiuiiiiminiissinnes s s s sessessessesasaesseessasssssssastassssassassens 16
Article 7: Confidentiality ...t s a s a e sa e e s e et ean 17
Article 8: WArranty .........iiusisiiin s ieseussiosivsssonsssosaans dssaisasisansnvasisnessoisnsss mualasssvsssissvsnsssnsseisaassoiovoiinse 19
Article 9: INdemMNIfiCAtION ......coccc it s st s s e s s sr e s sae s s e s s se st b e e ae e Rt b asba e e rn s 20
ATEICIe 10: MISCRIIANEGOUS ......ccoeeeieeiereeeeeiteeestaansias e sasesaiesassa s s e sissssaassaa s shasnessastaasiaessnesatesasesaseassresssesnssansinns 21
Appendix A: SOftware DeSCFIPHION.............ccoiiirircieiiiircsieiieee s sians s s s s st s s s e s s snsnnsesasssnssasnias 24
Appendix B: Third Party License and Maintenance Fees...........ccoummmiieerieeninenicnieccie e sssssi i 29

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 2



Maintenance, Licensing, and Support Services Agreement

This "Agreement" dated August 1, 2017 ("Effective Date") is between DEVNET, INC., (DEVNET), an lllinois
Corporation, having its principal offices at 1709 Afton Road, Sycamore, lllinois 60178, and STOREY COUNTY,
Nevada (County), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, having its principal offices at 26 S. B Street,
Virginia City, NV 89440.

Recitals

WHEREAS, DEVNET is in the business of licensing software and providing software development services to
units of local government and others; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to update and modernize its property tax software;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, DEVNET and
the County (each a “Party” and collectively the "Parties”) hereby agree as follows:

Article 1: Definitions

1.1 Acceptance
The term “Acceptance” shall have the meaning given it in Section 2.7 of this Agreement.

1.2 Application Error
The term "Application Error” means an error in an Application Program that causes it to fail and
terminate abnormally.

1.3  Application Program
The term “Application Program” means any of the software programs developed by DEVNET and
licensed to the County hereunder for use in the operation by the County of its property tax database.

1.4  County Databases
The term “County Databases” means the property tax data prepared and managed by the County that
are stored in electronic format and that are accessible by the County’s computer system.

1.5 County Equipment
The term "County Equipment’” means the equipment owned (or leased), operated, and maintained by
the County at any given time. By way of illustration, but not limitation, the County Equipment includes
any mainframe, minicomputer, and LAN server platforms where the County Databases reside, and the
communications equipment required to provide a connection between the County Databases and any
remote or satellite locations of the County.

1.6 County Software
The term “County Software” means application software, database management software, and
operating system software that runs on the County Equipment, that is used to operate, access, and use
the County Databases or for other purposes, and that is owned (or licensed from third parties) by the
County, and maintained by the County (or the County's third-party vendors), not DEVNET.

1.7  DEVNET Property Tax Software System
The term “DEVNET Property Tax Software System" means all of the Application Programs, source
code, database definitions, and Documentation provided and licensed by DEVNET to the County
hereunder, including, but not limited to, any software provided by DEVNET hereunder for the
processing of property taxes, extensions, billings and collections.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 3



1.8

1.9

1.10

Documentation

The term “Documentation” means user manuals, systems administration manuals, training literature,
other written materials that DEVNET normally provides to its customers or that DEVNET otherwise
provides to the County with the services to be provided hereunder.

Software Maintenance

The terms “Software Maintenance” means the ongoing maintenance and support to be provided by
DEVNET hereunder for the usage, repairing, and enhancing of the DEVNET Property Tax Software
System, all as described in Section 2.5

Windows Software
The term “Windows Software” means, at any given time, the versions of Microsoft Windows, Microsoft

Server, and Microsoft SQL Server that are then in general release and generally available from, and
supported by, Microsoft Corporation.

Design Committee

The term “Design Committee” means the group of participants, approved by each participating Nevada
municipality or County, which has authority to make decisions regarding the Scope of Work and
design for the DEVNET software systems.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 4



21

2.2

23

24

Article 2: Description of Software and Services

General. DEVNET shall provide the County with the DEVNET Property Tax Software System as
described in this Agreement, for the fees indicated in this Agreement. The DEVNET Property Tax
Software System that shall be provided to the County hereunder is further described in the attached
Appendix A. DEVNET shall also supply the County with the third-party software identified in the
attached Appendix B (the “Third Party Software”), along with services regarding the configuration, on-
site setup, and installation of the Third Party Software. The Third Party Software, and the County’s use
thereof, is subject separate terms and conditions, which shall be provided or included with the Third
Party Software.

Scope of Work. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth elsewhere in this Agreement,
DEVNET and the Design Committee shall confer, cooperate, and reasonably work together during the
first twelve (12) to sixteen (16) weeks following August 1, 2017 to develop and mutually agree upon, in
a writing signed by both DEVNET and the Design Committee or their respective authorized
representatives or Design Committee, a document that sets forth the scope of work to be performed by
DEVNET in developing, customizing and implementing the DEVNET Property Tax Software System to
be provided to the County hereunder and that includes a project plan that provides the dates and
schedule for performance hereunder (such document, the “"Scope of Work”). Once so mutually agreed
upon and signed, the Scope of Work shall be deemed incorporated herein by reference. If the
DEVNET and the Design Committee fail to mutually agree in writing, as described above, on a Scope
of Work by the date that is maximum sixteen (16) weeks after the Effective Date, then either Party may
terminate this Agreement. If this contract is terminated under the terms in section 2.2, the first two
payments made under the schedule in Article 5 will be retained by DEVNET as compensation for work
completed ($60,627.16) and no other compensation will be made by the County. Among other things,
the Scope of Work shall specify and describe:

a. The functionality to be included or contained in the DEVNET Property Tax Software System to be
provided to the County hereunder, which functionality, as set forth in the Scope of Work, shall
constitute the “Acceptance Testing Criteria” which will be used by the County in performing
Acceptance testing, and in determining whether to issue its Acceptance, in accordance with
Section 2.7, of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System; and

b. A training program that will be used to instruct the County's applicable personnel in: (i) the use of
the DEVNET Property Tax Software System; (ii) product design of the DEVNET Property Tax
Software System, for consistency of any interfacing to, and operation of, the County Databases; (iii)
technology planning regarding the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, so that the County
obtains and provides a technology infrastructure adequate for the use and operation of the
DEVNET Property Tax Software System and any services to be provided by DEVNET hereunder;
and (iv) change control planning regarding the DEVNET Property Tax Software System and the
implementation project to be undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

Development; Compatibility. DEVNET shall provide its own development tools for the development
of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System as described herein. DEVNET will also be responsible
for setting up a testing and development environment within its own offices for such purposes.
DEVNET will from time to time, as new versions of Windows Software are made generally available by
Microsoft Corporation, use commercially reasonable efforts to make the DEVNET Property Tax
Software System compatible with such new versions of Windows Software.

Data Conversion. In accordance with the mutually agreed upon Scope of Work DEVNET will attempt
to convert the data from the County Databases for use with the DEVNET Property Tax Software
System (unless otherwise provided in the Scope of Work, DEVNET will convert the current year’s, and
all previous years', real and personal property data that are stored in the County Databases, as well as
any associated CAMA attributes). DEVNET will make all reasonable efforts to coordinate the data
conversion with the County and all various vendors who hold County data. However, if such

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 5



25

conversion cannot be completed by DEVNET through the exercise of commercially reasonable efforts
(e.g., if data are corrupted, stored in a proprietary format that cannot be read, etc.), then: (i) DEVNET
will notify the County thereof in writing; (ii) the County shall be required to, at its expense, perform
manual data entry of any information from the County Databases that the County desires to be loaded
into the DEVNET Property Tax Software System; and (iii) shall extend all due dates for DEVNET's
performance that are set forth herein (or in the Scope of Work) by a like amount of time.

Software Maintenance. DEVNET shall provide Software Maintenance that includes the following:

a. Regulatory Changes. As part of Software Maintenance, DEVNET will provide all updates and
changes to the Application Programs that form the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, as
described in this Agreement, that are mandated or required by the property tax-related statutes and
regulations of the State of Nevada, any changes thereto, or any related reporting requirements,
from time to time during the term of this Agreement. DEVNET will make all reasonable efforts to
stay informed of regulatory changes within the State of Nevada that affect this Agreement.
DEVNET will make any such updates and changes to the Application Programs available to the
County by the date that is the latest of the following: (i) the date that is ninety (90) days after when
the applicable governmental body officially publishes notice of the enactment, promulgation, or
issuance of the relevant statute, regulation, change, or requirement; (ii) the date specified in the
applicable statute, regulation, change, or requirement as to when such statute, regulation, change,
or requirement is to officially take effect; and (iii) the date that the County specifies to DEVNET in
writing, in good faith, and at least ninety (90) days in advance, as being ninety (90) days before
when the County property tax systems will actually be required to have been updated for such
statute, regulation, change, or requirement, taking into appropriate consideration the County’s
normal property tax cycle.

Software Maintenance also includes all system upgrades of the DEVNET Property Tax Software
System that are from time to time made generally available by DEVNET. Software Maintenance
does not include any upgrades or changes to the Third Party Software or to any other third-party
software or any software owned by the County. The County is not required to upgrade the Third
Party Software or any other third-party software, such as operating systems or database software,
unless failing to perform any such upgrade results, or would result, in an Application Error in the
DEVNET Property Tax Software System. As part of Software Maintenance, DEVNET will also
provide Documentation in an electronic format for the DEVNET Property Tax Software System; as
such documentation is made generally available by DEVNET to its licensees. Software
Maintenance also includes the correction of any material deficiencies of the DEVNET Property Tax
Software System that result in Application Errors. As part of Software Maintenance, DEVNET will,
from time to time, certify the DEVNET Property Tax Software System'’s compatibility with additional
operating systems other than those described in this Agreement, as DEVNET determines these
operating systems are acceptable platforms for the use of the DEVNET Property Tax Software
System.

b. Technical Support. As part of Software Maintenance, DEVNET will provide telephone technical
support to the County during DEVNET’s normal business hours (i.e., from 7:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.,
Pacific time, Mondays through Fridays, excluding nationally-observed holidays), for major
processes of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System. Software Maintenance will also include
telephone support during DEVNET's normal business hours for any “how to” questions that any
member of the County's staff may have. If any technical support is required during weekends or
after DEVNET'’s normal business hours, or onsite at a location of the County’s, the County shall
provide DEVNET with written notice thereof at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance, so that
DEVNET may have staff available. Nevertheless, DEVNET understands that advance notice may
not always be possible, and, for use in emergencies, DEVNET will provide the person or persons
designated by the County with cell phone numbers by which to contact DEVNET for Software
Maintenance outside of DEVNET's normal business hours. Maintenance requests outside of
normal business hours are incorporated as part of the Software Maintenance Agreement.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 6



26

2.7

c. Other Enhancements. Other than as expressly described above as being included within
Software Maintenance, DEVNET shall not be required to make enhancements to the DEVNET
Property Tax Software System, and any such enhancements requested by the County shall be as
mutually agreed upon by the Parties in writing from time to time, which may result in additional cost
or fees as mutually agreed to by the Parties in writing.

d. Problem Response. DEVNET shall respond (by return telephone call) as soon as reasonably
possible to the County's telephone calls requesting Software Maintenance. However, there may be
times when an appropriate DEVNET programmer is not immediately available. In these cases,
DEVNET will use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause an appropriately qualified
programmer to place a return telephone call to the County within not more than two (2) hours,
during DEVNET’s normal business hours, after the time of the initial call by the County for the
applicable support. In the event that the County reasonably believes that the individual assigned
by DEVNET with respect to any given problem or issue is not appropriately qualified or is not
making appropriate progress on problem resolution, the County shall have the option to contact
DEVNET's project manager, or the head of DEVNET'S support division, to have the problem
reassigned.

e. Retraining. As part of Software Maintenance, DEVNET shall provide, upon the County's
reasonable request from time to time, any refresher courses or other retraining of the County's
personnel with respect to the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or any procedures relating
thereto. Retraining shall begin one (1) year after initial training has occurred. First year training
shall not be classified as “retraining”.

Functionality. Subject to Section 2.5.a and the timeframes described therein, the DEVNET Property
Tax Software System licensed to the County hereunder will, (i) include all of the functionality required
by the statutes and regulations of the State of Nevada for the processing of property taxes by a
governmental entity and (ii) automate property tax processing functions as required by the statutes and
regulations of the State of Nevada that pertain to the processing of property taxes by a governmental
entity.

Acceptance Testing. With respect to any Application Programs developed and provided by DEVNET
to the County under this Agreement (“Software Components”), the County shall be entitled, during the
first sixty (60) calendar days after the date on which DEVNET delivers such Software Components to
the County (such period, the “Acceptance Period”), perform whatever acceptance testing on the
Software Components that the County may wish to perform to confirm that the Software Components
conform in all material respects to the Acceptance Testing Criteria set forth in the Scope of Work
mutually agreed upon by the Parties pursuant to Section 2.1 (i.e., to confirm that the Software
Components provide and conform in all material respects to the applicable functionality specified and
described in the Scope of Work). If, during the Acceptance Period, the Software Components conform
in all material respects to such Acceptance Testing Criteria, the County shall notify DEVNET in writing
of its "Acceptance” of such Software Components by no later than five (5) business days after the
expiration of the Acceptance Period. [f, during the Acceptance Period, the Software Components do
not conform in all material respects to such Acceptance Testing Criteria, the County shall notify
DEVNET of the deficiencies in writing by no later than five (5) business days after the expiration of the
Acceptance Period. If the County fails to notify DEVNET in writing of any failures of the Software
Components to conform in all material respects to such Acceptance Testing Criteria by the end of such
five (5) business day period after any given Acceptance Period, then the County shall be deemed to
have issued its “Acceptance” of such Software Components as of the expiration of the applicable
Acceptance Period. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of receiving any notice of any
failures of the Software Components to conform in all material respects to the mutually agreed upon
Acceptance Testing Criteria (or such longer period of time as mutually agreed upon and as may
reasonably be required to cure such failures), DEVNET, at its sole expense, shall (except as expressly
provided below in this Section) promptly modify, repair, adjust, or replace the Software Components to
cure such failures so that the Software Components conform in all material respects to such
Acceptance Testing Criteria, promptly providing the County with written notice and revised copies of

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 7



2.8

29

the applicable Software Components when such modifications, repairs, adjustments, or replacements
have been completed. The County may then perform such additional acceptance testing as it may
deem appropriate, during an additional Acceptance Period that shall commence upon receipt of such a
written notice, and revised copies of the applicable Software Components, by the County from
DEVNET, to confirm that the applicable failures of the Software Components to conform in all material
respects to the Acceptance Testing Criteria have been cured, and with the notification process
described above being repeated. This additional Acceptance Period shall have a duration equal to that
of the initial Acceptance Period, unless the County issues its “Acceptance” of the applicable Software
Components earlier in writing. |If the Software Components, at the end of the additional Acceptance
Period, still fail to conform in material respects to the mutually agreed upon Acceptance Testing
Criteria, then the County may: (i) reject such Software Components and, in the event of any such
rejection, the County’s license to such Software Components, shall be terminated and the County's use
of such Software Components shall immediately cease. In such a case, the agreement may be
terminated if the rejected Software Components constitute a material portion of the Application
Programs to be provided to the County hereunder; or (ii) if DEVNET agrees in writing, cause the
procedure set forth above in this paragraph to be repeated an additional time. If, with respect to any
given Acceptance Period, the Software Components conform to the Acceptance Testing Criteria in all
material respects, the County shall not unreasonably withhold issuance of its Acceptance with regard to
such Software Components.

Training. DEVNET will provide any training of the County’s personnel that is described in the Scope of
Work with respect to the use, operation, and administration of the DEVNET Property Tax Software
System. All training will be provided during DEVNET's normal business hours.

Additional Services. DEVNET will have no obligation to provide the County with any services that are
not expressly described in this Agreement or in the Scope of Work mutually agreed to by the Parties
pursuant to Section 2.2. The Parties may, however, from time to time enter into an “Extended
Statement of Work” that references this Agreement and describes specific additional services that
DEVNET will provide to the County, and the fees to be paid to DEVNET therefor (which fees, unless
otherwise provided in the applicable Extended Statement of Work, shall be charged at DEVNET’s then-
current standard hourly rates). DEVNET's current rate is $125.00 per hour. Any Extended Statement
of Work shall be subject to, and shall be deemed to incorporate, the terms of this Agreement, unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 8



31

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Article 3: County Responsibilities

General. The County shall take the steps necessary (including, but not limited to, by performing any
activities described below in this Article 3) to enable DEVNET to, in accordance with this Agreement
and the mutually agreed upon schedule set forth in the Scope of Work, develop, install, and test (using
the data in the County Databases), and provide Software Maintenance with respect to, the DEVNET
Property Tax Software System.

Access. Upon reasonable notification, the County shall allow DEVNET reasonable access to the
County, Databases, County Equipment, and County Software (seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24)
hours a day, when DEVNET determines that such access is required) as necessary and appropriate for
DEVNET to, in accordance with this Agreement and the mutually agreed upon schedule set forth in the
Scope of Work, develop, install, and test (using the data in the County Databases), and provide
Software Maintenance with respect to the DEVNET Property Tax Software System. Without limiting
the foregoing, the County shall provide DEVNET with remote access (via either a modem or an Internet
connection) to the County, Databases, County Equipment, and County Software on a seven days a
week, twenty-four (24) hours a day basis.

Guidelines. Promptly after the Effective Date, the County shall provide guidelines to DEVNET
regarding use of information contained in the County Databases and such other information as
DEVNET may require to perform its work as described in this Agreement.

Promotions; Demonstrations. The County agrees that DEVNET may use the County’s name in
promoting DEVNET to prospective DEVNET customers and that DEVNET may use copies of the
County Databases, obtained at DEVNET's expense at a time convenient to the County, for
demonstration of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System to prospective DEVNET customers. In
the case of any such demonstration, DEVNET will give attribution to the County with regard to County
data.

Design Committee. The design committee will be formed and in place by August 1, 2017. It is
understood that the committee participants may change by subject matter expert(s) and as needed per
the committee.

County Resources. By the time that the parties have reached written mutual agreement on a Scope
of Work, as described in Section 2.2, the County shall have obtained, installed, and have in full
operation, as County Equipment and County Software, the hardware and software described in 3.7, for
the installation and operation of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System. If the County makes (or
causes or permits to be made by any third party) any modifications to the County Equipment, County
Software, or County Databases that are incompatible with the DEVNET Property Tax Software System,
efforts by DEVNET to make necessary revisions to the DEVNET Property Tax Software System due to
such modifications will be billable to the County, on a time-and-materials basis, at DEVNET’s then-
current rates. As necessary for DEVNET to fulfill its obligations hereunder, the County shall provide
DEVNET with any reasonably required or requested information regarding any such modifications.

On or before the commencement of work to be performed by DEVNET pursuant to this Agreement, the
County shall obtain and have in full operation the following hardware for installation and operation of
the DEVNET Property Tax Software System and the DEVNET wEdge™ Online Property Inquiry
System. The County understands that wEdge™ is only supported on certain web browsers, and that
wEdge™ will not function for the County or its users unless they are using a supported web browser.
Supported web browsers are identified in the wEdge ™ Hardware Requirements below.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 9



Hardware Requirements for DEVNET Products

software, including the Active Directory/domain and SQL Server.

Note: Hardware may be purchased from any third-party vendor of the County’s choice. The
county or third-party vendor is responsible for setting up the file server and all required third-party

The following specifications assume a single SQL and File server environment. In an environment in
which the DEVNET applications do not reside on the SQL server, these specifications apply to the

SQL server.

If the Application and Image/Document and Sketch files are stored on a separate server or NAS, the

file I/O performance of this alternative must be equivalent to the following server specifications.

These specifications are for a physical server to support the DEVNET solution.
Server Specifications

Minimum: Less than 15,000 parcels and less than 15 users

2.00+ GHz dual-core Processor.

8-16 GB RAM.

Windows OS, SQL Server Application, and Virtual Memory file.'

100+ GB hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS drives for

drives for SQL Data, Application, and Image/Document and Sketch files."?

300+ GB available hard drive space in a RAID-1 (mirroring) or RAID-5 array using 10K 6G SAS

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution.

Monitor capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution.

Tape/disk or other backup solution.

High-speed Internet access.

VPN remote access.

1 Gb Ethernet adapter.

N+1 redundant cooling.’

N+1 redundant power.’

Uninterruptible power supply.*

Windows Server 2008-2012 R2 Standard Edition.

Microsoft SQL Server 2008-2012 Standard Edition.

MS SQL Native Client.

.NET Framework 4.5.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV

10



'The storage space required may vary depending on the number of parcels, images, sketches, and
documents. Additionally, the amount of historical information added will impact the storage
requirements.

“Clients may substitute the recommended RAID levels for alternative RAID levels or storage methods
such as a SAN as long as they provide the comparable redundancy and performance. The lowest
server specifications provided above will provide sustained disk 1/0 of 250MB/s based on Windows file
read write testing. The highest specifications will provide sustained disk /O of 450MB/s based on
Windows file read/write testing.

*The client can substitute an alternative as long as they provide the same level of redundancy.

“ The client does not need a UPS specific to this server as long as the solution utilized can provide
sufficient runtime and graceful shutdown of the server.

Server Virtualization
DEVNET does not recommend a virtual Microsoft SQL server.

If a virtual environment is utilized, the virtual server must provide the same sustained performance as
the recommended physical hardware.

The most critical performance component is disk 1/O. The virtual SQL server must provide sustained
performance equivalent to the recommended physical server while other guest virtual servers on the
same physical server are under load. Note that unlike other applications, SQL is not very tolerant of
latency.

The lowest server specifications provided above will provide sustained disk I/O of 250MB/s based on
Windows file read/write testing. The highest specifications will provide sustained disk /O of 450MB/s
based on Windows file read/write testing.

Workstation Specifications

2.0+ GHz single core processor.

4 GB RAM.

20 GB+ hard drive.

Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution.

19" standard width or 22” widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x
1024 resolution.

Windows XP Pro SP3/Vista Business/7 Pro-Ent/8.1 Pro/Ent.
100/1000 Mb Ethernet adapter.

Minimum Requirements

Mouse.
MS SQL Native Client.
.NET Framework 4.0.

2.0+ GHz dual core processor.
Preferred Requirements | 8 GB RAM.
40GB+ hard drive.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 1"



Video adapter capable of 1280 x 1024 resolution.

19" standard width or 22" widescreen monitor capable of 1280 x
1024 resolution.

Windows 7 Pro-Ent/8.1 Pro/Ent.
100/1000 Mb Ethernet adapter.
Mouse.

MS SQL Native Client.

.NET Framework 4.0.

Printers
DEVNET applications are compatible with most laser printers.

Receipt/Slip Printer

DEVNET applications can print receipts with either a laser printer or receipt printer. Receipt/slip
printers compatible with the DEVNET applications must have a Windows driver that supports the
printer's functions and paper type. If slip/check endorsement printing and/or cash drawers will be used,
the receipt/slip printer driver will need to support slip wait and cash drawer open via settings in the
driver. The DEVNET applications are compatible with Epson TM-U675 Receipt/Slip/Validation Printer.
We also have worked successfully with other Epson printers that use the EPSON Advanced Print
Driver.

Barcode Reader

The barcode reader must read Code 39 and have the ability to add a prefix and suffix character
(depending on County’s barcode configuration). Additionally, the barcode reader must be configured
to omit carriage return and line feed. DEVNET recommends the Honeywell Voyager Series barcode
reader:

Document Scanning
The DEVNET application can interface with scanners that provide a fully TWAIN-compliant driver.

DEVNET recommends Fujitsu scanners for use with its imaging applications. When imaging is used
within DEVNET applications, one or more licenses of Lead Tools imaging toolkit are required. The
Lead Tools software can be provided with the installation of DEVNET software applications.

Check Scanning
The DEVNET application can interface with scanners that provide a fully TWAIN-compliant driver. We
recommend the Epson Capture One and Epson TM-S2000 scanners.

Recommended MVP Web Server Specifications

Minimum 1 Intel® Xeon® E5-2620 v3 6 core, 2.4 GHz processors.
Minimum 16 GB RAM.

300 GB hard drive space (boot array) in a RAID-1 array utilizing SAS 6GB 10K drives (SSD
preferred) for Windows OS, and virtual memory file.

Hot-Spare drives for each drive type.

Minimum 1 Gb Ethernet adapter, preferred 2 balancing/failover teamed.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 12



3.8

N+1 redundant cooling.

N+1 redundant power.

Windows Server 2012 R2 Standard Edition - server license and user CALs.

IS 8.5.

MS SQL Native Client.

.NET Framework 4.0.

Delays. Any delay by the County in performing any of its obligations under this Agreement shall
extend all due dates and times for performance of DEVNET's obligations under this Agreement by a
like amount of time. DEVNET shall be excused for failing to perform, or for any delay in performing, in
accordance with this Agreement to the extent that such failure or delay is caused by the County, any
third parties, or by problems or issues with County Equipment, County Software, or County Databases.
The County shall be excused for failing to perform or for any delay in performing in accordance with
this Agreement to the extent that such failure or delay is caused by any third parties or situations
outside of the County’s control.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 13



41

42

43

Article 4: Term and Termination

Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless earlier
terminated in accordance with Section 4.2, shall continue in force and effect until 12:01 a.m. on the fifth
anniversary of the Effective Date. Any renewals or extensions of the term of this Agreement shall be
on such terms as are mutually agreed upon by the Parties in writing from time to time. This provision is
subject to the provisions of NRS 244.320

Termination.

a. If either Party (hereinafter “Defaulting Party”) at any time neglects, fails, or refuses to perform
under any of the material provisions of this Agreement, then the other Party may serve upon
the Defaulting Party a Notice to Cure said neglect, failure or refusal to perform. The notice to
cure shall specify the alleged neglect, failure, or refusal and shall be served as provided for
service of notices in paragraph 10.4 herein. [f, within fifteen (15) days of the date of service of
such notice, the Defaulting Party has not fully cured all the items indicated therein, or
presented a plan acceptable to the other Party to cure such items, then upon expiration of said
fifteen (15) days, the other Party may, at its option, elect to serve a Notice of Termination as
provided in paragraph 4.2(b) herein below.

b. In addition to termination pursuant to Article 5, if either Party (hereinafter "Defaulting Party”) at
any time neglects, fails, or refuses to perform under any of the material provisions of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of service of the Notice to Cure provided in paragraph 4.2(a)
hereinabove, then the other Party may serve upon the Defaulting Party notice of its intention
to terminate this Agreement. The notice of termination shall specify the alleged neglect,
failure, or refusal and shall be served by registered mail. If, within thirty (30) days of the date
of service of such notice, the Defaulting Party has not fully cured all the Defaults indicated
therein, or presented a plan acceptable to the other Party to cure such Defaults, then upon
expiration of said thirty (30) days, the other Party may, at its option, elect to terminate this
Agreement by providing the Defaulting Party a second written notice. This paragraph is
subject to Paragraph 10.4 — Notices.

c. The right of either Party to terminate this Agreement shall not be affected by its failure to take
action with respect to any previous Default.

d. Inthe event one Party desires to terminate this Agreement before expiration of the Term when
there is not a Default, and the Parties are unable to agree upon a fair and equitable
settlement, the Parties will submit the maker to binding arbitration. Each Party will select one
(1) arbitrator each with the two (2) selected arbitrators agreeing upon the third arbitrator.

Effects of Termination. Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement: (i) the County shall
immediately cease using the DEVNET Property Tax Software System; and (ii) each Party shall
promptly return or destroy all Confidential Information of the other Party then in such Party's
possession or control, and an officer of each Party shall certify in writing to the other Party that all such
return or destruction has been completed.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 14



5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

Article 5: Fees and Payment

The payment schedule set forth herein is priced over the following five years, payable quarterly,
effective from the date of execution of this Agreement. All invoices submitted by DEVNET pursuant to
this Agreement shall be due and paid by the County within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof.

Year 01 (August 1, 2017-July 31, 2018): For services received by Storey County under this
Agreement during Year 01, Storey County shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $80,388.90, payable as
follows:

The sum of $50,746.29 on or before August 1, 2017; and,
The sum of $9,880.87 on or before November 1, 2017: and,
The sum of $9,880.87 on or before February 1, 2018; and,
The sum of $9,880.87 on or before May 1, 2018.

cooo

Year 02 (August 1, 2018- July 31, 2019): For services received by Storey County under this
Agreement during Year 02, Storey County shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $37,431.92, payable as
follows:

The sum of $18,200.42 on or before August 1, 2018; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before November 1, 2018; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before February 1, 2019; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before May 1, 2019.

coop

Year 03 (August 1, 2019- July 31, 2020): For services received by Storey County under this
Agreement during Year 03, Storey County shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $37,481.44, payable as
follows:

The sum of $18,249.94 on or before August 1, 2019; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before November 1, 2019; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before February 1, 2020; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before May 1, 2020.

apow

Year 04 (August 1, 2020- July 31, 2021): For services received by Storey County under this
Agreement during Year 04, Storey County shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $37,530.96, payable as
follows:

The sum of $18,299.460n or before August 1, 2020; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before November 1, 2020; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before February 1, 2021; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before May 1, 2021.

Q0oTo

€  $2,195.40 for third-party software and hardware.

Year 05 (August 1, 2021- July 31, 2022): For services received by Storey County under this
Agreement during Year 05, Storey County shall pay to DEVNET the sum of $37,580.48, payable as
follows:

The sum of $18,348.98 on or before August 1, 2021; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before November 1, 2021; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before February 1, 2022; and,
The sum of $6,410.50 on or before May 1, 2022.

o oo

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 15



56

6.1

6.2

6.3

Fees for Additional Services. Unless otherwise mutually agreed by the Parties in writing, the fees to
be paid by the County to DEVNET for any additional services provided by DEVNET pursuant to Section
2.9 (or any other relevant provision of this Agreement) shall be charged on a time-and-materials basis,
at DEVNET's then-current standard hourly rate.

Article 6: Proprietary Rights

Reservation of Rights. Except as expressly provided in this Article 6, no licenses are granted
hereunder. In no event shall title to any software, equipment, or asset pass from DEVNET to the
County, nor shall title to any of the County Equipment, the County Software, or other asset (including
data) of the County's pass from the County to DEVNET, by reason of this Agreement. As between the
Parties, DEVNET shall exclusively own all right, title, and interest (including, but not limited to, all
copyrights and all renewals and extensions thereof, all other intellectual property and proprietary rights
(and all applications therefor), recognized by any country in the world) in and to the DEVNET Property
Tax Software System and all related Documentation, Application Programs, demonstration programs,
training programs and materials, data screens, interfaces, and marketing literature and other materials,
as well as any other software developed by DEVNET pursuant to this Agreement and all
improvements, enhancements, customizations, modifications, derivative works, and the like of any of
the foregoing.

License by DEVNET. DEVNET hereby grants to the County, effective upon the written mutual
agreement by the Parties upon a Scope of Work pursuant to Section 2.2, a limited, non-exclusive, non-
transferable license to use, only for the County's internal business purposes and only during the term of
this Agreement (as the term of this Agreement may be renewed and extended, as provided for herein),
the compiled Application Programs of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System that DEVNET
provides to the County hereunder and that at any given time reside on the County Equipment. Except
as set forth herein, the County may not use, sublicense, distribute, sell, rent, or otherwise transfer or
dispose of, or modify, decompile, disassemble, or reverse engineer, in whole or in part, the DEVNET
Property Tax Software System or any Application Programs, or any modified forms of any of the
foregoing, in any manner whatsoever. The County will protect against the disclosure of the DEVNET
Property Tax Software System in accordance with Article 7 below. The license granted under this
Article 6.2 will be immediately revoked in the event that the County breaches any of these provisions.
the County shall be allowed to make a reasonable number of copies of the DEVNET Property Tax
Software System for the purpose of routine system backup and archival.

License by the County. The County hereby grants to DEVNET, effective as of the Effective Date, a
limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable (except in the event of an assignment of this Agreement by
DEVNET in accordance with Section 10.3), fully-paid, royalty-free license and right to access and use
the County Equipment, and County Software, and the County Databases, as necessary and
appropriate for DEVNET to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement and as otherwise contemplated
by this Agreement.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 16



71

7.2

Article 7: Confidentiality

Definition. DEVNET and the County may disclose to each other certain Confidential Information in
connection with this Agreement. The term “Confidential Information” shall mean any information or data
(including, but not limited to, software (in either source code or object code form), documentation,
product designs and plans, pricing schedules, customer and supplier lists, trade secrets, know-how,
processes, techniques, inventions (whether or not patentable), and other technical, business, and
financial information that is not generally known or available to the public) that is disclosed by either
Party to the other Party under or in connection with this Agreement and that: (a) if in tangible form or
other media that can be converted to readable form, is marked as “proprietary,” “confidential,” “private,”
or the like when disclosed or otherwise would reasonably under the circumstances be expected or
considered to be confidential or proprietary by a prudent person with no special knowledge of the
applicable industry; or (b) if disclosed orally or in visual form, is identified as proprietary, confidential,
private, or the like at the time of disclosure and is summarized and indicated as being confidential in a
writing delivered by the disclosing Party to the other Party within ten (10) days after such disclosure.
Confidential Information of a Party may be the property of, or otherwise relate to, either the disclosing
Party itself or an Affiliate of the disclosing Party. As used in this Agreement, an “Affiliate” means: (i)
with respect to the County, any governmental agency or body associated with, and subordinate to, the
County; and (ii) with respect to DEVNET, any person or entity that, at any given time, directly or
indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, DEVNET, whether through
ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise (with, for this purpose, and without limiting the
foregoing, any person or entity that owns more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding voting
securities (or other equity interests) of any other entity shall be deemed to control such other entity).

Obligations. Each Party acknowledges the value to the other Party of the Confidential Information of
the other Party. In addition, each Party shall:

¢ Use the Confidential Information of the other Party only as required for this Agreement;

e Use at least the same level of care to protect and prevent the unauthorized disclosure of the
Confidential Information of the other Party as such Party uses to protect its own information of a
similar nature (but not less than reasonable care);

e Restrict disclosure of the Confidential Information of the other Party solely to those employees of
such Party and its Affiliates and third-party contractors with a reasonable need to know such
Confidential Information (i.e., who reasonably require access to the Confidential Information in
order to perform their respective assigned duties or responsibilities) and who are subject to legally
binding obligations of confidentiality substantially similar to those set forth herein, and not disclose
any Confidential Information of the other Party to any other person or entity without the prior written
consent of such other Party;

e Make only such number of copies of the Confidential Information of the other Party as is necessary
for performance under this Agreement; and

e Reproduce and include on all copies made by such Party of any Confidential Information of the
other Party any confidentiality notices that are contained on the Confidential Information, as
received from the other Party hereunder.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 17



7.3

74

7.5

76

Exceptions. The obligations of Section 7.2 above shall not apply to any Confidential Information that
the receiving Party can demonstrate:

Is or becomes available to the public through no breach of this Agreement;

Was previously known by the receiving Party without any obligation to hold it in confidence;

Is received from a third party free to disclose such information without restriction;

Is independently developed by the receiving Party without reference to or use of Confidential

Information of the disclosing Party;

* |s approved for release by written authorization of the disclosing Party, but only to the extent of,
and subject to such conditions as may be imposed in, such written authorization;

¢ Is required by law or regulation (including, but not limited to, by any applicable “freedom of
information,” “sunshine,” or "right-to-know” law or act) to be disclosed, but only to the extent and for
the purposes of such required disclosure; or

e |Is disclosed in response to a valid order of a court and other governmental body of the United

States or any political subdivisions thereof, but only to the extent of and for the purposes of such

order; provided, however, that, in such a case, the Party subject to such an order shall first notify

other Party of the order and permit such other Party to seek an appropriate protective order.

Return or Destruction. Except for any rights expressly granted in this Agreement, any Confidential
Information (including, but not limited to, any permitted copies thereof) of either Party shall be deemed
and shall remain the property of such Party. Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, and
upon the written request of the other Party, each Party shall, within twenty (20) days after such
expiration or termination or receipt of such written request, return all Confidential Information, including
all copies thereof, of the other Party to the other Party or, if so directed by the other Party, destroy all
such Confidential Information.

Equitable Relief. Each Party agrees that any breach or violation by it of any provision of this Article 7
would cause the other Party irreparable injury for which it would have no adequate remedy at law, and
that, in such a case, the other Party shall be entitled to seek immediate injunctive relief prohibiting such
violation, in addition to any other rights and remedies available to such Party.

Survival. All obligations undertaken respecting Confidential Information provided hereunder shall
survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 18



8.1

8.2

8.3

Article 8: Warranty

The warranties provided in this Agreement do not cover malfunctions or failure caused by:

a. The County’s modification or relocation of the County equipment or software, unless mutually
agreed upon in writing prior to each such modification or relocation.

b. The County’s or any third party's abuse, misuse or negligence;

c. Power failure or surges, lightning, fire, flood, accident, and other events outside DEVNET's
reasonable control;

d. The County's failure to fulfill its contractual obligations set forth in this Agreement; and

e. Hardware, network or operating system failure.

Except for the warranties expressly set forth above in this Article 8, DEVNET makes no other
warranties of any kind, express or implied, regarding the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, any
component thereof, any work to be performed by DEVNET hereunder, or otherwise with respect to this
Agreement, and all other warranties (including, but not limited to, any warranties of merchantability or
fitness for a particular purpose) are expressly disclaimed and excluded, to the maximum extent
permissible by applicable law.

The County expressly acknowledges that systems made available or accessible on or through the
Internet or other public networks cannot be guaranteed to be totally secure and that no security
measures are impenetrable. If, pursuant to this Agreement, the County is licensing or otherwise being
provided by DEVNET with any program, product, or component that will be made available or
accessible on or through the internet or any other public network (e.g., DEVNET'S “wEdge" product),
the County acknowledges that, as between the parties, the County (and not DEVNET) is solely and
exclusively responsible for deploying, monitoring, and maintaining appropriate security measures,
systems, and infrastructure (e.g., firewalls) that reasonably and appropriately protect, and prevent
unauthorized access to, the County's systems, data, and other resources. Without limiting the
provisions of Article 8.3, DEVNET expressly does not represent, warrant, or covenant that any such
DEVNET-provided program, product, or component shall be available or accessible on a completely
uninterrupted or error-free basis. DEVNET shall not have any obligation or liability with respect to: (1)
inaccuracies, errors, or omissions in data or information provided by third parties or that arise in the
transmission of any data or information over the internet or other public networks; or (Il) security
breaches or incidents that result from causes not under the control of DEVNET.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 19



9.1

9.2

Article 9: Indemnification

By the County. The County shall defend, indemnify and hold DEVNET and its Affiliates, and their
respective employees, officers, directors, agents, representatives, and shareholders, harmless from
and against any third-party claim or suit against DEVNET or any of the foregoing, to the extent such
claim or suit arises out of or in connection with an assertion that any County Equipment or County
Software, the County Database (or any data contained therein), or any other data, software,
documentation, or materials provided or made available by the County to DEVNET in connection with
performance under this Agreement, or any use of any of the foregoing in accordance with this
Agreement, infringes any copyright, trademark, patent, or other intellectual property or proprietary right,
or constitutes a misappropriation of any trade secret. In the event of any such claim or suit: (a)
DEVNET shall promptly notify the County in writing of such claim or suit (except that the failure of
DEVNET to promptly notify the County shall reduce the County's obligations of indemnification
hereunder only to the extent that the County is prejudiced thereby); (b) the County shall have the sole
control of the defense and settiement thereof; and (c) DEVNET shall reasonably cooperate with the
County regarding such defense and shall furnish to the County, on request, information reasonably
available to DEVNET for such defense. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, the
County is in no way authorized to agree to any settlement, compromise, or the like that would require
DEVNET to make any payment or that does not fully release DEVNET.

By DEVNET. DEVNET shall defend, indemnify and hold the County and its Affiliates, employees,
officials, agents, and representatives harmless from and against, any third-party claim or suit against
the County or any of the foregoing, to the extent such claim or suit arises out of or in connection with an
assertion that the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or any other deliverables or services
provided by DEVNET to the County hereunder, or any use of any of the foregoing in accordance with
applicable Documentation and this Agreement, infringes any copyright, trademark, patent, or other
intellectual property or proprietary right, or constitutes a misappropriation of any trade secret. In the
event of any such claim or suit: (a) the County shall promptly notify DEVNET in writing of such claim or
suit (except that the failure of the County to promptly notify DEVNET shall reduce DEVNET’ obligations
of indemnification hereunder only to the extent that DEVNET is prejudiced thereby); (b) DEVNET shall
have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof; and (c) the County shall reasonably
cooperate with DEVNET regarding such defense and shall furnish to DEVNET, on request, information
reasonably available to the County for such defense.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, DEVNET is in no way authorized to agree to
any settlement, compromise, or the like that would require that the County make any payment. In the
event that the use of any portion of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or any other
deliverables or services provided by DEVNET to the County hereunder, is enjoined, or is likely to be
enjoined, on account of any claim or suit referred to above, DEVNET shall promptly: (1) procure, at its
sole expense, the right for the County to continue using the applicable materials in accordance with this
Agreement; or (2) replace or modify the applicable materials to be outside the scope of the injunction
and no longer infringing, but still substantially equivalent in functionality and performance to the
materials at the time such claim or suit was brought. If neither of these actions is reasonably feasible
through DEVNET's exercise of commercially reasonable efforts, DEVNET may terminate this
Agreement upon notifying the County thereof in writing, without liability or penalty, refunding to the
County, on an appropriately prorated basis, any fees prepaid by the County for the use of the DEVNET
Property Tax Software System, or for Software Maintenance, for periods of time not yet expired as of
the effective date of the termination.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary set forth in this Section or elsewhere in this Agreement,
DEVNET shall have no obligation of indemnification under this Section to the extent that the given
claim or suit (and the alleged infringement or misappropriation) arises from: (X) modification of the
DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or modification of any other deliverables or services provided
by DEVNET to the County hereunder, by other than DEVNET or any party under the direction or
control of DEVNET; (Y) the combination of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or of any other

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 20



10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

deliverables or services provided by DEVNET to the County hereunder, with hardware or software
other than those supplied, approved, or recommended by DEVNET or any party under the direction or
control of DEVNET or specified in the applicable Documentation as being suitable or appropriate for
use with the DEVNET Property Tax Software System or the applicable deliverables or services
provided by DEVNET to the County hereunder; or (Z) any specifications or requirements provided by
the County with respect to any portions of the DEVNET Property Tax Software System, or of any
deliverables or services provided by DEVNET hereunder, that were developed or created hereunder
(or the DEVNET Property Tax Software Systems, or any such deliverables’ or services’, adherence or
conformance to any such specifications or requirements).

Article 10: Miscellaneous

Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any amendments hereto, if any, constitutes the entire
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous
proposals, negotiations, representations, commitments, documents and all other communications
between the Parties, both oral and written. It may not be released, discharged or modified except by an
instrument in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the Parties. The terms of this
Agreement shall prevail notwithstanding any variance with the terms and conditions of any form
document, such as a purchase order, submitted by either Party to the other Party.

Force Majeure. A party is not liable for failure to perform the party's obligations if such failure is as a
result of Acts of God (including fire, flood, earthquake, storm, hurricane or other naturai disaster), war,
invasion, act of foreign enemies, hostilities (regardless of whether war is declared), civil war, rebellion,
revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power or confiscation, terrorist activities, nationalization,
government sanction, blockage, embargo, labor dispute, strike, lockout or interruption or failure of
electricity or telephone service. No party is entitled to terminate this Agreement under Article 4
(Termination) in such circumstances.

Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the written consent of the
other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Notices. Except as otherwise provided for herein, any notice, communication or demand which under
the terms of this Agreement or under any statute must or may be given or made by either Party to the
other shall be in writing and shall reference this Agreement. Such notice shall be conveyed by personal
delivery, facsimile during business hours with hard copy to follow within 24 hours, or certified, express,
overnight or other mail service which provides proof of receipt, addressed to the respective Parties at
the following addresses, as each Party updates its address from time to time by notice delivered in
accordance herewith;

To DEVNET: DEVNET, Inc.
1709 Afton Road
Sycamore, lllinois 60178

To the County:  Storey County
26 S. B Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

The date upon which such notice is so personally delivered, or, if the notice is given by said mail

service or facsimile, the date that it is received by the addressee, shall be deemed to be the date of
such notice, irrespective of the date appearing thereon.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 21



10.5

106

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Independent Contractor. DEVNET and the County are acting hereunder as independent contractors,
and under no circumstances shall any of the employees of one Party be deemed the employees of the
other for any purpose. This Agreement shall not be construed so as to constitute DEVNET and the
County as partners or joint ventures, or as authority for either Party to act for the other Party in any
agency or other capacity, or to make commitments of any kind for the account of or on behalf of the
other except to the extent and for the purposes provided for herein.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of
the State of Nevada.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
part or provision of this Agreement.

Non-Waiver. Failure of either Party to insist in any instance upon strict performance by the other Party
of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed or deemed to be a waiver of such
provision, or any other provision hereof.

Non-Exclusive Remedies. Unless expressly otherwise provided in this Agreement, the remedies
under this Agreement shall be cumulative and are not exclusive or mutually exclusive. Election of one
remedy shall not preclude pursuit of other remedies available under this Agreement or at law or in
equity. In any equitable action or arbitration conducted in connection with this Agreement, each Party
may seek any remedy generally available under the governing law.

Compliance with Laws. Each Party shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations that pertain
to its performance of its obligations and exercise of its rights under this Agreement. Both parties shall
conduct their respective actions under this Agreement in such manner as to comply in all respects with
the laws of the United States of America, the State of Nevada, and any other state, federal or local
agency or unit of government that may legally control or direct the actions of either Party. In the event
any provision of this Agreement shall now or at any time in the future be in conflict with any such law,
rule, ordinance, decision or other writing of any such governmental agency or unit of government, then
said provision shall be null and void and of no force and effect, and the remainder of this Agreement
shall continue in full force and effect as if said provision had not been included herein.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding on each of the Parties and their respective
successors and assigns.

Approvals. This Agreement shall not be binding upon DEVNET until it is approved and signed by
DEVNET's duly authorized representative and all officials and officers of the County that are required
by statute or ordinance to execute it.

Survival. Any provision of this Agreement that imposes or contemplates continuing obligations on a
Party or that, by its nature or terms, would be reasonably understood to have been intended to survive
and continue in force and effect after expiration or termination of this Agreement shall so survive for as
long as intended, including, but not limited to, the provisions of Section 4.3, Article 6, Article 7, Article 8,
Article 9, Article 10, and Article 11.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 22



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly

authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

Storey, Nevada

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

DEVNET Inc.

By:

Michael J. Gentry, President

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV

23



Appendix A: Software Description
Property Tax Assessment
a. Parcel Maintenance, includes:
i Name and Address Maintenance
ii. Legal Description Maintenance
iii. Site Address Maintenance

iv. Parcel Split and Combinations
V. Time Memo Maintenance

b. Farmland Processing
i Soils Maintenance
ii. Farmland Reporting
iii. Farmland Calculations
¢. Notices and Reporting
d. State Abstracts
e. Parcel Inquiry
f.  Assessor functions for Corrections
g. Vacant Land Maintenance
h. TIF Maintenance
Property Tax Calculation
a. Tax District maintenance
b. State Reporting
c. Calculate Taxes

d. Notices and Reporting

e. Rollover to County Treasurer

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV

24



Property Tax Collection / Distribution

a. Tax Billing

b. Tax Collection and Distribution

C. Treasurer functions for Corrections
d. Delinquent Notices

e. Reports and inquiry

f. State Reporting of Tax Collections

Delinquent Tax Module

a. Tax Sale Maintenance and Processing
b. Postponement of taxes Maintenance
c. Bankruptcy Handling

d. Reports and Inquiry

Personal Property Processing

a. Maintenance of Personal Property Accounts.
b. Calculation of Personal Property Tax.

c. Billing of Personal Property Tax.

d. Collection of Personal Property Tax.

e. Distribution of Personal Property Tax.

f. Reporting of Personal Property Tax.

g. State Reporting of Personal Property Tax.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV

25



Mass Appraisal

a. Replacement Cost Module for Residential, Agricultural, Commercial and Industrial Structures
b. Cost Table Maintenance

C. Sales Maintenance including Land Sales

d. Sales Ratio / Study Module

e. Land Appraisal Module

f. Multiple Regression Analysis

g- Comparable Property Analysis

Mobile Home Module

a. Mobile Home Maintenance includes:
i Name and Address Maintenance
ii. Vehicle information Maintenance

ii. Calculate/print Mobile Home Tax Bills

b. Mobile Home Collection. This will be made part of the Real Estate Collection Module.

¢. Mobile Home Distribution.

d. Notices and Reporting.

Planning, Building, and Zoning

a. Permit Maintenance, including:
i Permit Type Maintenance
ii. Permit Tracking
iii. Printing of Building Permits
iv. Printing of Certificates of Occupancy

b. Inspection Maintenance

¢. Violation ("Red Tag") Maintenance

d. Monthly and Annual Reporting

e. Fee Table Maintenance

f. Tax System Integration

g. Business Licensing

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV

26



DEVNET Hosted wEdge E-Government Solution

Industry leading e-government and property search platform that integrates property information, GIS, and
other government services through a single application.

wEdge is a customizable inquiry solution that integrates with the Edge® applications providing county and
public users access to important taxpayer information.

wEdge Features
e Highly-customizable user interface
e Search properties by parcel number (PIN), property address, owner name and address, sale date,
taxing body, property class, neighborhood, building attributes, and more
Sort results by property/account number, property address, or name.
Parcel detail view can show any and all information associated with a property
Unlimited number of images, sketches, and scanned documents
Integrates with Google Maps, Bing Maps, county GIS, and Pictometry
Section 508 and WAI-AAA accessibility standards compliant
Captures the full history for each property for all years
Online Collection — A DEVNET approved Partner should be selected for shopping cart integration

GIS Map Option
wEdge supports embedding ArcGIS Online webmaps when configured using Esri’s Web AppBuilder. This is
included at no additional cost, if the following requirements are met and in place.

Minimum requirements:
ArcGIS Online
e ArcGIS Online Organization for publishing content and optionally hosting GIS data.
e Single named user for publishing.
Publically accessible web map with parcel polygon layer, parcel number field, and pop-ups enabled.
Publically accessible web app published with Web AppBuilder.

GIS data hosting options:
1. Parcel data and other GIS layers can be published to ArcGIS Online as hosted feature services.
2. Parcel data can be served from ArcGIS Server as feature services
1. Services can be hosted on premises. DEVNET data can be joined to parcel polygons
producing near real-time information
2. Services can be hosted by a GIS vendor.

DEVNET Hosted wEdge Deliverables
There are many benefits that come with DEVNET hosting the wEdge solution:

e DEVNET maintains the server and infrastructure
® Hosting is offered for FREE with the purchase of wEdge
e All updates, bug fixes, database fixes and phone support for county staff

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 27



Not Included: Software support for wEdge online inquiry shall not include:

Phone Support for the public or subscribers. This is chargeable at $125.00 per hour. The County also has the
option of buying support in blocks of hours for the public/subscribers at $110.00 per hour for a minimum of
20 hours. Any time spent by DEVNET supporting the public or subscribers with issues pertaining to wEdge
that are not already covered under this agreement will be tracked in fifteen minute increments and billed to
the county monthly at the above hourly rate.

Support due to infrastructure problems at the county site is not covered. Support for this instance is billable
at $125.00 per hour with a minimum of one hour per incident. Any time spent by DEVNET providing support
due to infrastructure problems not already covered under this agreement will be tracked in fifteen minute
increments and billed to the county monthly at the above hourly rate.

DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 28

:



Appendix B: Third Party License and Maintenance Fees

License Fees
Third Party License
and Maintenance
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
Marshall and Swift $1,1,490.40 $1,539.92 $1,589.44 $1,638.96 $1,688.48
Lead Tools $375.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total License,
Maintenance and $1,865.40 $1,539.92 $1,589.44 $1,638.96 $1,688.48
Third Party Cost
DEVNET Inc. Property Tax & CAMA Agreement for Storey County, NV 29




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 18, 2017 Estimate of time required: 5-10 min

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion and possible action with regards setting a date for a workshop to discuss
possible Ad Valorem rate reduction.

2. Recommended motion: I recommend we set the date of for a
workshop to discuss the possible of an Ad Valorem rate reduction.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary:

S. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ___x_ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
~x__ Department Head Department Name: Comptroller’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e b

Agenda Item No. | 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7 -18-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephane: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Departiment Head Department Name:
———
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[S——1

Agenda Item No. | 4



Storey County Community Bebvelopment

Business @ Licensing

P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

July 10, 2017

To: Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk/Treasurer vstephens@storeycounty.org
Pat Whitten, County Manager PWhitten@storcycounty.org

Re: Business License Inspections
Commissioner’s Meeting: July 18, 2017

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code requirements
necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. DORNER MFG, CORP - Contractor / 975 Cottonwood Ave ~ Hartland, Wi(Installation)

B. ABEINSA ABENER TEYMA GENERAL PARTNERSHIP - Contractor /3030 N Central Ave Sle 808 ~
Phoenix, AZ (Engineering)

C. PIGLER AUTOMATION, LLC — Contractor / 724 Main Street Ste F ~ Longmonty, Co (Programming Service)

D. ADVANCED MACHINES & TOOL CORPORATION —Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane Stel00~Reno,NV
(Engincering)

E. SPECIALTY WELDING SUPPLY (dba)- Contractor /~ PO Box 504 Sparks, NV (Sales & Distribution)

F. SMALL MINE DEVELOPMENT, LLC. —Contractor / 967 E ParkCenter Blvd PMB 396 ~ Boise , ID
(Contracting Service)

G. PROGRESSIVE PEST MANAGEMENT - Pro/ PO Box 50117 ~Reno, NV (Pest & weed control)

H. COATING UNLIMITED, INC — Contractor / 4325 Bridgeton Industrial Dr. Bridgeton MO (Painting Contractor)

I. WESTERN ENVIROMENTAL TESTING LABORATORY -Contractor/ 475 E Greg Street #119 Sparks,
NV(Testing Service)

J. SMC CORPORATION OF AMERICA. — Contractor/ 10100 SMC Blvd ~ Noblesville, IN (Distribution)

K. APPLIED INNOVATION GROUP, INC. — Contractor / 2365 Paragon Dr. Ste C ~ San Jose, CA (Installation)

L. INTEGRATED SAFETY CONCEPTS, INC. - Pro / 2200 N D’ Andrea Parkway Ste1726 ~ Sparks, NV (Safety
Consulting)

M. COMPOINTE CORPORATION —Pro/ 1128 Keene [.and Ct ~ Indianapolis ,IN (Software)

N. HARELSON MECHANICAL, INC. — Contractor / 3899 Security Park Dr. ~ Rancho Cordova, CA(Contractor)

0. APPLIED ENERGY SYSTEMS - Contractor/ 180 Quaker Lane ~MalVem, PA (Manufacturer)

P. LASER DEPTH DYNAMICS, INC - Contractor / 176 Railway Street ~ Kingston ON , Canada (Monitoring
Instruments)

Q. HUMANUS SOLUTIONS, LLC —Contractor / 9835 N Desert Rose Dr. ~ Fountain Hills AZ(Consultant)

R. OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC - Contractor/ 11911 M 529 Houston, TX (Engineering)

S. NORTHERN NEVADA FIRE PROTECTION, INC - Contractor / PO Box 1921 ~ Femley, NV(Fire
Protection)

T. NEWARK CORPORATION - Pro/ 481 Renaissance Dr ~ St. Joseph, MI (Distribution)

U. R.S. HUGHES COMPANY, INC - General / 1162 Sonora Ct. Sunnyvale, CA (Wholesaler)

V. AVNET, INC - Pro/2211 S 47" Street ~ Phoenix, AZ(Wholesaler)

W. KISTLER INSTRUMENT CORP - Pro/ 75 John Glenn Dr., Amherst, , NY (Distributor)

X. S&A SOLUTIONS, INC — General / 38600 Van Dyke Ave Ste 350 ~ Sterling Heights, MI (Staffing)

Y. VALKYRIE METAL WORKS, LLC - GeneralPO Box 1040 Virginia City, NV~VC Blacksmith reenactment
& Sales)

Z. PHANTOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC — Contractor /5421 Kietzke Lane Stel00 ~ Reno, NV (Software
Installation)

AA. IBG PRUFCCOMPUTER GMBH - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane Stel00 ~ Reno, NV (Manufacturer)



Storey County Community Bevelopment

Buginesg -"z\t*. ) Licenging

"

P O Box 526 -« Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

BB.
CC,
DD.
EE.
FF.

GG.

HH.
IL.
JJ.
KK.
LL.

MM,

NN.
00.
PP.

QQ.

RR.
SS.

TT.
UU.
VV.

CHEMETALL US, INC - Contractor / 675 Central Ave ~ New Providence NJ (Sales & Manufacture)
MOTION CONTROLS ROBOTICS, INC — Contractor / 1500 Walter Ave ~ Fremont, OH (Robotic Service)
MICHIGAN CUSTOM MACHINES — Contractor / 22750 Heslip Dr. Novi, MI (Machine Construction)
PSARA TECHNOLOGIES, INC — Pro/ 10925 Reed Hartman hwy Ste220 Cincinnati OH (Consulting)
PHOENIX CONSULTING, LLC- Contractor/ 3201 Stellhorn Road ~ Ft Wayne, IN Programing Support)
AUTOMATION & MODULAR COMPONENTS, INC, - Contractor / 10301 Enterprise Dr. ~ Davisburg, MI
(Installation)

PARTNER PERSONNEL, INC. — General / 2222 Franklin Rd~ Bloomfield Hills, MI (Staffing)
INTERROLL CORPORATION - Contractor / 3000 Corporate Dr ~ Wilmington, NC Manufacturer)

LANCE JOHNSON, INC. - Contractor / 2152 Reno hwy #E ~ Fallon , NV( Earthwork )

NOL-TEC SYSTEMS, INC - Pro /425 Apollo Dr. ~ Lino Lakes MN ( sales)

AVERNA - Contractor / 3500 Hasselt ~ Belgium , Poland (Engineering Consulting)

CALVARY DESIGN TEAM, INC — Pro/ 855 Publishers Parkway, Webster, NY (Installation)

AMBRELIL CORPORATION - Contractor / 39 Main Street ~ Scottsville NY (Manufacturer)

IBG NDT SYSTEMS CORPORATION — Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno NV (Designer)

EXACT LASER MEASUREMENTS USA - Contractor /

FULLER ENGINEERING CO., LLC - Contractor /43334 Seven Mile Rd ~Northville, MI (Automotive &
Aerspace)

WISE CONSULTING & TRAINING, INC. — Contractor / 500 Ryland Street Ste250 ~ Reno, NV (Consulting)
NEVADA TAP MASTER - Contractor / 1647 Willow Pass Road #131, Concord CA (Industrial Plumbing)
AIR WAY AUTOMATION - Contractor / PO Box 563, Grayling MI ( Tool Designer)

LOGOMAT AUTOMATION SYSTEMS, INC- Contractor/2595 Arbor Tech Dr. Hebron KY ( Installation)
A.J’S STOVES- Contractor/ 1267 A Hwy 395 N Gardnerville NV ( Chimney Cleaning)

WW. AITA CONSULTING SERVICE- Pro/ 6-80 Towne Center Dr. North Brunswick NJ ( Professional service)

XX.
YY.
Z7.

COPPER STATE BOLT & NUT CO., INC.-Contractor/ 3622 N 34" Ave~ Phoenix AZ (Distributor)
ABICOR BINZEL US- Contractor/ 650 Medimmune Ct. #110 Fredrick MD
STTRUCTURES, INC.- Contractor/5224 US Hwy 50 East ~ Carson City, NV ( Steel Fabrication)

AAA.DWFRITZ AUTOMATION, INC.- Contractor/ 27200 SW Parkway Ave~ Wilsonville OR ( Installation)
BBB. DIVERSE AUTOMATION, INC. — Contractor/ 3271 Brushy Creek Road~ Greer SC ( Automation)
CCC.GUDEL INC. - Contractor/ 4881 Runway Blvd ~ Ann Arbor MI ( linear Automation)

DDD. ROBOT SUPPORT, INC. - Contractor/ 20506 Hall Rd. Clinton Township, MI (Software service )
EEE. CARSON MFG., INC- General /5001 Grumman Dr.~ Carson City, NV ( Manufacturing)

FFF.

ASIAN UNION CHEMICALS RENO - General/ 1400 Waltham Way ~ McCarran , NV (Office Use Only)

ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office

Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



CORRESPONDENCE

Hem: 5



Vanessa Stephens

From: Austin Osborne

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 10:06 AM

To: Vanessa Stephens; Pat Whitten; Keith Loomis; Anne Langer
Cc: Jessie Fain

Subject: RE: Agenda Request

Attachments: 20170710114935.pdf

Vanessa,

Thank you for providing the agenda request by Mr. Phillips. At this time the request is denied, but we will look
into the matter further and make an appropriate determination.

Thank you,
Austin

Austin Osborne, PHR, SHRM-CP
Administrative Officer/Planning Director
Storey County Courthouse

Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440

Office: 775.847.0968

Cell: 775.291.4693 Fax: 775.847.0949
aosborne@storeycounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLAIMER:

This e-mail and an attachments are intended only for use by the addressee(s) named herein and may contain legally privileged

any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify me and permanently delete

the original and all copies and printouts of this e-mail and any attachments.

From: Vanessa Stephens

Sent: Monday, July 10, 2017 12:10 PM

To: Pat Whitten; Austin Osborne; Keith Loomis; Anne Langer
Subject: Agenda Request

Afternoon,

Attached is an agenda item request from Mr. Phillips. Please advise if this item is to go on the agenda.
Vanessa

Vanessa Stephens

Clerk & Treasurer

Storey County, NV
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider & Employer



Storey County, Nevada

Commission Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agenda. The policy states that all requests must be made in writing and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting: 18 - JULY 2017 Date Request Submitted: 10 JULY 2017

Agenda Item Requested: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To establish by resoluti¢n
“—| the requirements for certifying and for continuing education (NRS 278.57%( L.)

This item is intended for: [ ] Discussion Only ¥X| Discussion/Possible Action (at the Board’s discretion)

)Tf] Supporting documentation is attached [_] No supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: Mark Joseph Phillips

(please print name clearly)

Address: POST OFFICE BOX 1092, VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440

Phone: Email (optional):

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

f)t(gr[e)};-g);n]t)y Clerl’s Office Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0921

Virginia City NV 89440 FILED

Deputy

For Office Use Only Lo
Date Request Received: =7 / /171 Received: lg/ InPerson [ | Via FAX By: C\@
IE/ Supporting documentation attached - # of pages A Meeting date of this item: "7 / |8 / 17

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdufresne@storeycounty.org



MARK JOSEPH PHILLIPS F I L E D

POST OFFICE BOX 01092
UL 10 2017

VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440-1092 ‘@ g/ .

10 JULY 2017 Deputy

SUBJECT: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING DATE:
18 JULY 2017, 10:00AM. WRITTEN REQUEST TO HAVE
AN ITEM PLACED ON MEETING AGEDDA.

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

MARSHALL MCBRIDE: CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
VANESSA STEPHENS: COUNTY CLERK/TREASURER
ANNE LANGER : DISTRICT ATTORNEY

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK; STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY NV 83440

Dear Chairman McBride,

It is clear in NRS 278.610(1l.), ...that it would be
unlawful to erect, construct, reconstruct, alter or change
the use of any building or structure... without obtajning a
building permit from the building official... after a building
official is appointed... by the board of county commissioners...

pursuant-,.to NRS 278,570...

I attach this letter as supporting documentation, togebher
with my ' agenda item request form ', and I have filed these two
pages in the office of the Storey County Clerk, on or before
12 :00PM, Monday 10 JULY 2017.

Witk respe




—>

PLANNING AND ZONING 278.¢

(a) Prepare a list of national and international organizations which cer
persons who inspect a structure or a portion of a structure and which are approved
the city or county, as appropriate, for certifying persons pursuant to this subsectior

(b) Require a person who fills the position of building official, reviews plans
inspects a structure or building or a portion of a structure or building pursuant
NRS 278.570 or 278.575 to be certified by an organization included on the
prepared pursuant to paragraph (a);

(c) Establish requirements for continuing education for a person who is requi
to be certified pursuant to this subsection; and

(d) Prohibit a person who is not certified or does not fulfill the requirements
continuing education pursuant to this subsection from filling the position of build
official, reviewing plans or inspecting a structure or building or a portion o
structure or building pursuant to NRS 278.570 or 278.575.

2. A city or county specified in subsection 1 may authorize an employee of
city or county to perform duties for which certification is required pursuant to t
subsection if those duties are performed under the supervision of a person whe
certified by an organization that is included on the list prepared by the city or cou
pursuant to paragraph (a) of that subsection. The city or county may authorize
employee to perform duties pursuant to this subsection for not more than 1 year.

3. The requirements for continuing education established pursuant to paragr:
(c) of subsection 1 must:

(a) Include the completion of at least 45 hours of continuing education ever
; and

.: - Specify the manner in which a person may complete those hours.

In a county whose population is less than 100,000, or in any city loca

vithinrSuch a county, if the city or county provides for the inspection of structu
and the enforcement of building codes pursuant to NRS 278.570, 278.573 ¢
278.575, the city or county shall, by resolution, establish the requirements
certifying and for continuing education for a person who, on a full-time basis, f
the position of building official, reviews plans or inspects a structure or building ¢
portion of a structure or building pursuant to NRS 278.570 or 278.575.

(Added to NRS by 2001, 1245)

REVISER’S NOTE.
Ch. 275, Stats. 2001, the source of this section, contains the following provision not included in NRS:
“Notwithstanding the amendatory provisions of this act, a city or county shall not require a person wh
employed by the city or county before October 1, 2001, to comply with the requirements for certification
continuing education pursuant to the provisions of section 3 of this act [NRS 278.577] before Ociober 1, 2007

NRS 278.580 Building codes: Adoption; fees for permits; applicability
State and Nevada System of Higher Education; authorization of use of materi
and technologies that conserve resources in construction and use of solar
wind energy; adoption of seismic provisions and standards.

l. Subject to the limitation set forth in NRS 244.368 and 278.586,
governing body of any city or county may adopt a building code, specifying
design, soundness and materials of structures, and may adopt rules, ordinances ¢
regulations for the enforcement of the building code.

2. The governing body may also fix a reasonable schedule of fees for
issuance of building permits. A schedule of fees so fixed does not apply to the St
of Nevada or the Nevada System of Higher Education, except that such entities i
enter into a contract with the goveming body to pay such fees for the issuance
building permits, the review of plans and the inspection of construction. Except a.
may agree to in such a contract, a governing body is not required to provide for

278-159 0



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/18/17 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. The meeting will commence immediately
following the regular board of commissioners meeting.

2. Recommended motion. No action
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2014-2017 bargaining agreements
between the Storey County Firefighters Association and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners, and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association and the
Storey County Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreements are proposed to
be modified separately as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
@’ _ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[r— p—
[ S T —

Agenda Item No. ] 8



